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1 THOMAS A. DUBBS, declares as follows, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1746:
2 1. I am a Partner at Labaton Sucharow LLP, Co-Counsel for Lead
3 || Plaintiff, the State of New Jersey, Department of Treasury, Division of Investment
4 || (“Lead Plaintiff’), and the Class, and am admitted pro hac vice before this Court. [
5 || was actively involved in the prosecution of this case, am intimately familiar with
6 ||its proceedings, and have personal knowledge of the matters set forth herein based
7 || upon my close supervision and participation in all material aspects of the action.
8 2. I respectfully submit this declaration in support of Class
9 || Representatives’ motion, pursuant to Rule 23 of the Federal Rules of Civil
10 || Procedure (“Rule 23”), for final approval of: (a) the proposed $35,750,000 cash
11 || settlement (the “Settlement”) of all claims against defendants STEC, Inc.
12 || (“STEC”), Manouch Moshayedi, Mark Moshayedi and Raymond Cook
13 || (collectively, “Defendants™) in this class action, as set forth in the Stipulation and
14 || Agreement of Settlement, dated as of October 5, 2012, as amended on February 20,
15 || 2013 (the “Stipulation”)'; (b) the proposed Plan of Allocation; and (c) Plaintiffs’
16 || Counsel’s motion for attorneys’ fees and payment of litigation expenses; and (d)
17 || the request of certain Plaintiffs for reimbursement of lost time and expenses.
18 || L DEFINITIONS
19 3. As used in this Declaration, the following terms shall have the
20 || meanings set forth below, consistent with the terms defined in the Stipulation:
21 (a)  “Authorized Claimant” means a Class Member who timely
22 || submits a valid Proof of Claim and Release form to the Claims Administrator that
23 ||1is accepted for payment by the Court.
24 (b) “Claims Administrator” means the Garden City Group.
25
26
27 1 . : : .
2 || the é%lloﬁ?a}t)tli?llll.zed terms not defined herein have the same meaning as set forth in
DECLARATION OF THOMAS A. DUBBS
CASENO. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)
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1 (c) “Class” or “Class Member” means all Persons that, between
2 ||June 16, 2009 and February 23, 2010, inclusive, purchased or otherwise acquired
3 || the publicly traded common stock of STEC and were damaged thereby. Excluded
4 || from the Class are: Defendants; the members of the immediate families of the
5 || Individual Defendants; the subsidiaries and affiliates of Defendants; any Person
6 || who is an officer, director, partner or controlling person of STEC or any other
7 || Defendant; any entity in which any Defendant has a controlling interest; and the
8 || legal representatives, heirs, successors and assigns of any such excluded Person or
9 || entity. Also excluded from the Class are any Class Members who properly
10 || exclude themselves by filing a valid and timely request for exclusion in accordance
11 || with the requirements set forth in the Notice.
12 (d) “Class Period” means the period from June 16, 2009 through
13 || February 23, 2010, inclusive.
14 (e)  “Class Representatives” means Lead Plaintiff, International
15 || Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 103 (“Local 103”"), Norfolk County
16 || Retirement System (“Norfolk County’) and Mark Ripperda.
17 (f) “Co-Lead Counsel” means the law firms of Labaton Sucharow
18 ||LLP and Lite DePalma Greenberg, LLC.
19 (g) “Court” means the United States District Court for the Central
20 || District of California.
21 (h)  “Defendants” means STEC and the Individual Defendants.
22 (1)  “Defendants’ Counsel” means the law firm of Latham &
23 || Watkins LLP.
24 ()  “Individual Defendants” means Manouch Moshayedi, Mark
25 ||Moshayedi, and Raymond Cook.
26 (k)  “Liaison Counsel” means Lim, Ruger & Kim LLP.
27 (1)  “Lead Plaintiff” means the State of New Jersey, Department of
28 || Treasury, Division of Investment.
ChSE No. SACY 09-01304VS (MLG) :
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1 (m) “Net Settlement Fund” means the Settlement Fund less: (1)
2 || Court-awarded attorneys’ fees and expenses; (i1) Notice and Administration
3 || Expenses; (ii1) Taxes; and (iv) any other fees or expenses approved by the Court,
4 ||including any award to Class Representatives for reasonable costs and expenses
5 || (including lost wages) pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
6 || 1995 (“PSLRA”).
7 (n)  “Notice” means the Notice of Pendency of Class Action and
8 || Proposed Settlement and Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses, which was
9 || sent to Members of the Class.
10 (o) “Party” or “Parties” means Defendants and the Class
11 || Representatives on behalf of themselves and other Class Members.
12 (p) “Person” means an individual, corporation (including all
13 || divisions and subsidiaries), general or limited partnership, association, joint stock
14 || company, joint venture, limited liability company, professional corporation, estate,
15 || legal representative, trust, unincorporated association, government or any political
16 || subdivision or agency thereof, and any other business or legal entity.
17 (@) “Plaintiffs” means Lead Plaintiff, Local 103 and Norfolk
18 || County.
19 (r)  “Plaintiffs’ Counsel” means Co-Lead Counsel and the firms of
20 ||Lim, Ruger & Kim LLP, Green & Noblin, P.C. and Bienert, Miller & Katzman.
21 (s)  “Preliminary Approval Order” means the proposed order
22 || preliminarily approving the Settlement and directing notice to the Class of the
23 ||pendency of the Action and of the Settlement, which, was entered on February 11,
24 112013.
25 (t)  “Proof of Claim” means the Proof of Claim and Release form
26 || for submitting a claim, which accompanied the Notice.
27 (u)  “SAC” means the Second Amended Complaint which was filed
28 ||on February 22, 2011 (ECF No. 178).
ChSE No. SACY 09-01304VS (MLG) .
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(v)  “Settlement Amount” means the total principal amount of
thirty-five million seven hundred fifty thousand dollars ($35,750,000) in cash.

(w)  “Settlement Fund” means the Settlement Amount and any
earnings thereon.

(x)  “Settlement” means the resolution of the Action as against the
Defendants in accordance with the terms and provisions of the Stipulation

(y) “Stipulation” means this Stipulation and Agreement of
Settlement dated October 5, 2012.

(z)  “Summary Notice” means the Summary Notice of Pendency of
Class Action and Proposed Settlement and Motion for Attorneys’ Fees and
Expenses for publication, which was published in Investor’s Business Daily and
1ssued over the PR Newswire on March 8, 2013.

(aa) “TAC” means the Third Amended Complaint, which was filed

on December 14, 2012.
II. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

A. Introduction

4. I respectfully submit that the proposed $35.75 million settlement
represents an outstanding result for the Class, and more than satisfies the “fair,
adequate, and reasonable” standard that is required for final approval of a common
fund settlement under Rule 23. It also has the support of Lead Plaintiff, as set forth
in the accompanying Declaration of Brian F. McDonough (“McDonough Decl.”),
annexed hereto as Exhibit 1.

5. Lead Plaintiff fully supports this Settlement based on, in large
measure, the extraordinary effort and vigorous prosecution of the case by Co-Lead
Counsel, including, among other things, and as described more fully below, (1) Co-
Lead Counsel’s defeat of Defendants’ efforts to dismiss the complaint for failing to
state a claim, (i1) Co-Lead Counsel’s discovery and marshalling of evidence

potentially raising triable issues regarding not only misstatements or omissions by

DECLARATION OF THOMAS A. DUBBS 4
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Defendants alleged in the SAC, but also, regarding additional misstatements and
omissions first discovered during the process of discovery, (iii) Co-Lead Counsel’s
defeat of Defendants’ efforts to reduce the amount of Class Members’ alleged
damages by eliminating from the certified class period the last of the alleged
disclosures of the truth on February 23, 2010, (iv) Plaintiffs’ successful addition to
the case of claims under the Securities Act specifically alleged on behalf of Class
Members who purchased in the Offering, and (v) Co-Lead Counsel’s negotiation
of a substantial settlement amount.

6. In Defendants’ motions to dismiss successive iterations of the
consolidated complaint, Defendants repeatedly argued that Plaintiffs could not
allege facts sufficient to show either that Defendants made a statement or omission
that was false, or that Defendants had scienter for any such statement—i.e., knew
when they made such statement that it was false, or made the statement with
reckless disregard for whether it was true or false. When addressed to the SAC,
these arguments by Defendants were rejected by the Court, which held that “in
light of the supplemental allegations in the SAC, the Court now finds that the
statements STEC made announcing the EMC [Agreement] could reasonably be
interpreted to create [the] impression [alleged in the SAC] and that the information
omitted from the statements could render them material, misleading ‘half-truths.””
(Emphasis added.) Specifically, the Court held that the SAC’s marshalling and
analysis of data about recent growth in STEC’s revenues from its ZeusIOPS solid
state drive, Defendants’ statements in the Prospectus about expected continued
growth of such revenues, and analysts’ interpretations of Defendants’ statements as
estimates that ZeusIOPS sales would continue at the same level as under the EMC
Agreement all supported Class Representative’s allegation that statements or
omissions made by Defendants regarding the EMC Agreement were misleading.
The Court also held that Defendants’ scienter was adequately alleged based on, not

only the Moshayedi Defendants’ suspicious stock sales, an admission by Manouch

DECLARATION OF THOMAS A. DUBBS 5
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Moshayedi made during an earnings conference call and a “patently disingenuous”
statement made by Defendants in a letter to the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”), but also based on Defendants alleged failure to file the EMQ
Agreement with the SEC, in apparent violation of SEC regulations—a violation
never alleged by the previous Lead Plaintiffs.

7. During discovery, Co-Lead Counsel uncovered evidence that, in Class
Representatives’ view, potentially raises triable issues regarding, not only
numerous misstatements or omissions by Defendants alleged in the SAC, but also,
additional misstatements and omissions by Defendants discovered for the first time
during the process of discovery. This achievement by Co-Lead Counsel was
disclosed to Defendants at the close of the fact discovery period, in Class
Representative’s written responses to Defendants’ contention interrogatories.
Defendants’ contention interrogatories requested, among other things, that Class
Representatives list every statement or omission by Defendants for which Class
Representatives allege Defendants may be held liable, and, for each such statement
or omission, evidence tending to prove that the statement or omission was
misleading, as well as evidence tending to prove that the statement or omission
was made by Defendants with scienter. Co-Lead Counsel was able to list such
evidence for fourteen (14) such statements or omissions alleged in the SAC, and an
additional five (5) such statements or omissions not alleged in the SAC.” It is
logical to conclude that the substantial size of the settlement amount, which the
Court’s decision preliminarily approving the Settlement held to be “fair and

reasonable,” reflects, among other things, Defendants’ belief that Co-Lead Counsel

? For the purpose of this tally, 1f the same misstatement or omission appears in
two seFarate places—e.g., in both the Prospectus and the 2009 Second Quarter
Form 10-Q—it is counted twice. Similarly, if a statement contains botha
misrepresentation and an omission, or two distinct omissions, it is counted twice.

DECLARATION OF THOMAS A. DUBBS 6
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has assembled evidence of Defendants’ liability sufficient to raise significant
triable issues.

8. In response to Co-Lead Counsel’s motion for certification of a
litigation class, Defendants attempted to reduce the amount of Class Members’
alleged damages by eliminating from any certified class period the last of the
alleged corrective disclosures—the alleged corrective disclosure made on February
23, 2010, which was followed by a drop in the price of STEC’s stock of $3.15 per
share, or 23%. Defendants argued that any truth about the EMC Agreement
concealed by Defendants’ alleged false statements or omissions had been fully
disclosed by the alleged corrective disclosure on November 3, 2009, so that the
fraud-on-the-market presumption of reliance could not apply after that date. After
reviewing the briefing by the Parties, the Court rejected Defendants’ argument,
noting, among other things, that “Plaintiffs have corroborated their claims [in
support of the fraud-on-the-market presumption] with expert testimony regarding
the relationship between STEC’s alleged misstatement and the security price
changes over the course of the Class Period.”

0. Co-Lead Counsel added claims under the Securities Act to this case.
Co-Lead Counsel’s first step was to allege such claims in the Amended Complaint,
along with claims under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchange
Act”). The original consolidated complaint, filed by the previous lead plaintiff,
alleged claims only under the Exchange Act. Although the Court dismissed the
claims under the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) in the Amended
Complaint without prejudice, because the named plaintiff asserting them lacked
standing, the Court also held that these claims “have adequately alleged material
misrepresentation” and would not be dismissed for failure to state a claim.
Subsequently, based on Co-Lead Counsel’s filing of the TAC and, after a

comprehensive search, naming of a representative plaintiff with standing to allege

DECLARATION OF THOMAS A. DUBBS 7
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the Securities Act claims in the TAC, the Court certified a settlement class with
claims under the Securities Act as well as under the Exchange Act.

10.  The amount of the settlement obtained by Co-Lead Counsel, which
has been found “fair and reasonable” by the Court in its order preliminarily
approving the settlement, indicates that Plaintiffs’ Counsel not only successfully
prosecuted this case, but also successfully negotiated the Settlement.

B. Overview of Strengths and Weaknesses of Claims

11.  That this case has merit is supported by the fact that the SEC has filed
suit regarding some of the same wrongful conduct alleged herein. However, that
this case 1s difficult is shown by the fact that it took the SEC three years before it
decided to bring suit, and when it did bring suit it named only one defendant,
Manouch Moshayedi, and none of the other Defendants named herein. Moreover,
in bringing suit, the SEC has important advantages over private plaintiffs. For one
thing, in order for the SEC to establish liability, the SEC need not prove that the
wrongful conduct at issue caused any damages. For another thing, SEC lawsuits
arguably are not governed by the PSLRA safe harbor, which protects defendants
from liability for forward looking statements made in the context of cautionary
language.

12.  Herein, as discussed in detail below, Class Representatives and the
Class face significant risks in establishing that Defendants are liable, and that the
amount of any damages 1s substantial.

13.  From the inception of the litigation, Defendants have disputed the
falsity of their statements, their scienter for those statements, and, as explained
above, whether there is a causal relationship between one of the alleged corrective
disclosures and any part of Class Members’ damages.

14.  Moreover, although it is not unusual for Defendants to contest the
falsity of their statements, in this case, Defendants also have contested that their

statements had the meaning attributed to them by Plaintiffs.

DECLARATION OF THOMAS A. DUBBS 8
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15.  Still further, Defendants have persistently asserted that the majority of
the alleged misstatements were “forward looking” statements made in the context
of cautionary language. Under the PSLRA, which governs certain aspects of
securities lawsuits, defendants may not be held liable even for false statements, if
those false statements were predictions about the future, and were made in the
context of statements adequately cautioning investors against relying on just such
predictions.

16.  Although Co-Lead Counsel was able to persuade the Court that none
of the foregoing arguments by Defendants was adequate to prevent Plaintiffs from
going forward with the discovery—i.e., with the court supervised process of
collecting evidence from Defendants and third parties regarding Class Members’
claims—in almost every instance, the Court specifically noted that, while
Plaintiffs’ pleading was adequate, Defendants would have an opportunity to
contest the same issue at trial, based on the evidence collected during discovery.

17.  In addition, Class Representatives face a significant hurdle at trial
because the key witnesses in this case, other than Defendants themselves, are, in
large part, (1) Defendants’ large corporate customers, who, it is fair to assume,
would like to maintain good relationships with their suppliers, such as STEC, and
(11) securities analysts who depend on the companies that they analyze, such as
STEC, to provide them with information for their reports.

18.  Yet another risk is that the amount of any damages to be awarded also
is subject to dispute. Thus, even if Defendants were to be held liable after trial,
there is no guarantee that the amount of damages awarded would be substantially
larger than the currently available settlement.

19. Finally, any judgment favorable to Class Representatives is likely to

be appealed and could be reversed.
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C. Summary of Relief Requested

20. In addition to approval of the Settlement, Class Representatives and
Plaintiffs’ Counsel also respectfully request that the Court approve the Plan of
Allocation, which was prepared by the Class Representatives and Co-Lead Counsel
in conjunction with a consulting damages expert. The Plan of Allocation provides
for a pro rata distribution of the Net Settlement Fund (the Settlement Fund minus
expenses and attorneys’ fees) to each Class Member. The Class received copies of
the Plan of Allocation as part of the Notice program pursuant to the Preliminary
Approval Order. As set forth in detail below, Class Representatives and Plaintiffs’
Counsel respectfully submit that the Plan of Allocation is fair, adequate and
reasonable and should be approved.
21. Plaintiffs’ Counsel also request a fee award of 16.07% of the
Settlement Fund, which includes accrued interest, and payment of litigation
expenses in the amount of approximately $1,925,895.67, plus accrued interest.
This 16.07% fee request is made on behalf of the following Plaintiffs” Counsel:
(a) Co-Lead Counsel, the law firms of Labaton Sucharow LLP and Lite
DePalma Greenberg, LLC, along with Liaison Counsel, Lim Roger &
Kim, LLP;

(b) Tom Bienert of Bienert, Miller & Katzman, and Robert S. Green of
Green & Noblin, P.C., counsel for Plaintiff Mark Ripperda; and

(c)  Berman DeValerio, who Lead Plaintiff retained to serve as local
counsel in the District Court of Massachusetts to pursue the discovery
claims against EMC Corporation, as more fully set forth in Section
V(C)(3), supra.

22. Plaintiffs’ Counsel respectfully submit that the 16.07% fee award and
payment of expenses should be approved by the Court because, among other
reasons, it is supported by Lead Plaintiff. See Ex 1 99 14-17. Lead Plaintiff is a

sophisticated public institution, has experience in securities class actions in
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addition to this one, and takes its fiduciary responsibilities with the utmost
seriousness and care. Lead Plaintiff was involved in every significant strategic
decision made regarding the handling of the case as well as the settlement of the
Action. Based on its experience and deep involvement in the case, Lead Plaintiff
believes that the application to the Court for attorneys’ fees and payment of
expenses is manifestly reasonable.

23.  Finally, Kahn Swick & Foti, LLC (“KS&F”) is one of the two former
co-lead counsel in this action who represented former lead plaintiffs Keith A. Ovitt
and Arman Rashtchi. KS&F has represented to Co-Lead Counsel that it has a
lodestar of $781,297 for its work in prosecuting the action on behalf of these
former lead plaintiffs. KS&F has agreed to accept the same negative multiplier as
Plaintiffs’ Counsel in this case, which is approximately 0.27. Accordingly, KS&F
has agreed to request a fee in the amount of $195,324, or one-quarter of its
lodestar, which is approximately 0.55% of the Settlement Fund. Lead Plaintiff
does not object to this request.

24.  Therefore, the total request for fees sought by Co-Lead Counsel,
Ripperda’s counsel, Berman DeValerio and KS&F is 16.66% of the Settlement
Fund. The request for attorneys’ fees is well within the range of fees that courts in
this Circuit and across the country award in comparable securities class actions.
Specifically, it is well below the 25 percent “benchmark” applied within the Ninth
Circuit for fees in common fund cases. Vizcaino v. Microsoft Corp., 290 F.3d
1043 (9th Cir. 2002) (affirming the award of a 28 percent fee); Paul v. Graulty,
886 F.2d 268 (9th Cir. 1989) (“the district court should take note that 25 percent
has been a proper benchmark figure). The fee requested by Plaintiffs’ Counsel

also represents a negative lodestar multiplier of 0.27. Courts have noted that a

_* The lodestar multiplier is calculated b%/ dividing gl) the fee requested by
(i1) the number of hours counsel billed to the case multiplied by each counsel’s
standard hourly rate.

DECLARATION OF THOMAS A. DUBBS 11
CASE NO. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)




Case §

O© 0 3 O »n K~ W N =

N NN N N N N N N M e e e e e e e
o I O W A W NN = ©O OV 00 NN O BN WD - O

09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386 Filed 04/08/13 Page 18 of 108 Page ID
#:9261

percentage fee that falls below counsel’s lodestar further supports the
reasonableness of the award. See, e.g., In re Flag Telecom Holdings, Ltd. Sec.
Litig., No. 02-CV-3400, 2010 WL 4537550, at *26 (S.D.N.Y. Nov. §, 2010).
Accordingly, Plaintiffs’ Counsel respectfully submits that the Court should

approve the fees and expense application as reasonable.
III. THE SETTLEMENT

25. The terms of the proposed Settlement are set forth in the Stipulation,
previously filed with the Court on October 5, 2012 (ECF No. 328-1), between and
among: (1) Class Representative, on behalf of itself and all the Members of the
Class; and (2) Defendants. Pursuant to the Settlement, Defendants paid $35.75
million in cash into an interest-bearing escrow account, defined in the Stipulation
as the Settlement Fund. The Settlement Fund will not be distributed to the Class
unless the Settlement is approved by the Court, and will then be held in the
Settlement Fund until the Claims Administrator reviews all eligible claim forms,
and the Court issues an Order authorizing distribution to the Class.

26. The consideration received by Defendants is the entry of a judgment
that will dismiss this action against Defendants, with prejudice, and bar and
permanently enjoin Class Representatives and each Member of the Class (with the
exception of those who validly requested exclusion from the Class) from
prosecuting the Released Claims.* Any such Member of the Class will be
conclusively deemed to have fully, finally, and forever resolved, discharged and
settled the Released Claims.

A.  Preliminary Approval and Court Ordered Notice Program

27.  On February 11, 2013, the Court granted preliminary approval (ECF
No. 361) and on March 7, 2013, the Court entered an Order: (i) preliminarily

approving the Settlement as fair, adequate and reasonable; (i1) scheduling a

* See Stipulation q(1)(cc).
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Settlement Hearing; (iii) approving the form, substance and requirements of the
Notice and Summary Notice; and (iv) appointing The Garden City Group, Inc.
(“GCQG”) as the Claims Administrator to supervise and administer the notice
procedure and process all the claims. See Preliminary Approval Order, ECF No.
372.

28.  Compliance with the court-approved notice program is discussed in
detail in the accompanying Affidavit of Jose C. Fraga Regarding (A) Mailing of
the Notice and Proof of Claim; (B) Publication of the Summary Notice; and (C)
Requests for Exclusion Received to Date (“Fraga Aff.””), annexed hereto as Exhibit
2.

29.  GCG has undertaken an extensive effort to execute the notice
program, as ordered by the Court. Through records maintained by STEC,
information gathered from brokerage firms and requests made by individuals and
brokerage firms, GCG mailed and published the notices by the deadlines the Court
set. It mailed 125,482 Notices and Proof of Claim forms to potential Class
Members. Fraga Aff. 99 6. Also, a Summary Notice was published in Investor’s
Business Daily (id. at 9 7, Ex. 2-B)’ and issued over the PR Newswire on October
29,2012. Id. atq 7, Ex. 2-C.

30. GCQG also created a dedicated website,
www.stecsecuritiessettlement.com to publicize the Settlement and provide easy
access to download information to interested investors. Id. q 8.

31. The Notice program has also included providing substantial assistance
to potential Class Members. For instance, in order to address Class Member

questions effectively, GCG created a toll free Interactive Voice Response where

> Citations to exhibits that also attach sub-exhibits will be referenced as “Ex. -
__.” The first numerical reference refers to the designation of the entire exhibit
attached hereto and the second reference refers to the designation within the
exhibit itself.
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potential Class Members could request information and leave messages requesting
that they be contacted. /Id. 9. GCG has received 451 calls. Id. Each call that
requested to speak with GCG administrators was responded to in a timely manner.
ld.

32.  To date, there have been no objections to any aspect of the
Settlement, Plan of Allocation or fees and expenses. The deadline for such
objections is April 22, 2013.

IV. THE COMPLAINTS FILED IN THE ACTION

A. Background

33. Asalleged in the Third Consolidated Amended Complaint for
Violation of the Federal Securities Laws (the “TAC”), Defendant STEC

manufactures data storage devices, including solid-state drives (“SSDs,” also
known as “flash drives™), for computer systems. §4.° STEC’s flagship product is
the ZeusIOPS, a high-performance SSD. 4 5. STEC’s customers include original
equipment manufacturers (“OEMSs”), such as EMC, IBM, Hitachi, Hewlett-
Packard (“HP”), and Sun Microsystems (“Sun”). q 3.

34. Asalleged in the TAC, Defendants Manouch Moshayedi and
Mehrdad (“Mark”) Moshayedi (the “Moshayedi Brothers™) founded STEC, then
named Simple Technology, Inc., in 1990. q 27. At the beginning of the Class
Period, the Moshayedi Brothers held approximately 45% of the Company’s
common stock. g 7.

35. Asalleged in the TAC, at all relevant times, Defendant Manouch
Moshayedi was STEC’s Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of
Directors, 4 29; Defendant Mark Moshayedi was STEC’s Chief Operating Officer,

Chief Technical Officer, President, and Secretary, as well as a member of its Board

Tl:gnless otherwise indicated, all citations to “q] _  refer to paragraphs in the
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of Directors and Equity Awards Committee, 4 30; and Defendant Raymond D.
Cook (“Cook”) was STEC’s Chief Financial Officer and Principal Accounting

Officer, § 31.
B. Complaints Filed in this Action

1. The Initial Complaints

36. Beginning on November 6, 2009, several securities fraud class action
complaints were filed on behalf of investors who had purchased or otherwise
acquired STEC common stock between June 16, 2009 and November 3, 2009. See
Jean v. STEC, Inc., No. 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG (C.D. Cal. filed Nov. 6, 2009);
Sakhai v. STEC, Inc., No. 8:09-cv-01306-JVS-MLG (C.D. Cal. filed Nov. 6,
2009); Greenwald v. STEC, Inc., No. 8:09-cv-01315-JVS-MLG (C.D. Cal. filed
Nov. 9, 2009); Munter v. STEC, Inc., No. 8:09-cv-01320-JVS-MLG (C.D. Cal.
filed Nov. 10, 2009); Fischer v. STEC, Inc., No. 2:09-cv-08536-JVS-MLG (C.D.
Cal. Nowv. filed 19, 2009); Weinberger v. STEC, Inc., No. 8:09-cv-01460-CJC-RNB
(C.D. Cal. filed Dec. 11, 2009). On January 21, 2010, the Court issued an Order
consolidating the six initial actions under the caption /n re STEC, Inc. Securities
Litigation, No. SACV-09-01304-JVS (MLGx) (the “Action”). ECF No. 54.

(a)  Pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of
1995 (“PSLRA”), 15 U.S.C. § 78u-4(a)(3)(A), a notice of pendency was published,
advising investors of the deadline to seek appointment as lead plaintiff with respect
to a class period between June 16, 2009 and November 3, 2009.

(b)  On February 8, 2010, the Court issued an Order appointing two
individual STEC investors, Arman Rashtchi (“Rashtchi”) and Keith Ovitt
(“Ovitt”), as co-lead plaintiffs and Kahn Swick & Foti, LLC and Bernstein
Litowitz Berger & Grossman LLP (“BLBG™) as co-lead counsel. ECF No. 61.

37.  On March 2, 2010, a putative class action was filed on behalf of

investors who had purchased or otherwise acquired STEC stock between
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November 4, 2009 and February 23, 2010.” On March 26, 2010, the Court
consolidated that action with the Action. ECF No. 71.
2. The Consolidated Complaint

38.  On April 9, 2010, Rashtchi and Ovitt filed a Consolidated Complaint

for Violations of the Federal Securities Laws (the “Consolidated Complaint”),
which alleged claims under Sections 10(b) and 20(a) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (the “Exchange Act”) on behalf of investors who purchased or
otherwise acquired STEC common stock between June 16, 2009 and February 23,
2010 (the “Class Period”). ECF No. 83. In light of the expanded class period, the
Court directed publication of a new notice of pendency and the lead plaintiff
process was reopened. ECF No. 71.

39.  On May 12, 2010, Defendants moved to dismiss the Consolidated
Complaint. ECF No. 89. On June 11, 2010, Rashtchi and Ovitt opposed the
motion, ECF No. 92, and, on June 28, 2010, Defendants filed a reply, ECF No.
113. Although the motion was fully briefed, it was never decided because the

Court appointed a new lead plaintiff.
3. The Consolidated Amended Complaint

40.  On July 14, 2010, the Court issued an Order appointing New Jersey as
Lead Plaintiff and approving New Jersey’s choice of Co-Lead and Liaison Counsel
to represent the putative class. ECF No. 123.°

41.  On August 13, 2010, New Jersey and representative plaintiffs the
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 103 (“Local 103”) and the
Norfolk County Retirement System (“Norfolk County”) (collectively, “Plaintiffs™)

2071 g)leda v. STEC, Inc., No. SACV 10-00248 AG (ANx) (C.D. Cal. filed Mar. 2,

® The Court denied Ovitt and Rashtchi’s motion pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1292(b)
for an order certifying the Court’s July 14, 2010 Order for interlocutory appeal.
ECF No. 135. The Ninth Circuit subsequently denied their petition for a writ of
mandamus vacating the Order. See ECF No. 144 (Order, Rashtchi v. U.S. District
Court (Selna), No. 10-72711 (9th Cir. filed Sept. 3, 2010)).
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filed a Consolidated Amended Complaint for Violation of the Federal Securities
Laws (the “CAC”). ECF No. 131. Plaintiffs alleged claims under Sections 10(b),
20(a), and 20A of the Exchange Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 78j(b), 78t(a), 78-t1(a), and
Rule 10b-5 promulgated by the SEC under Section 10, 17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5 (the
“Exchange Act Claims”), and, as to Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions
in connection with the Offering, under Sections 11, 12(a)(2), and 15 of the
Securities Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 77k, 771(a)(2), 770 (the “Securities Act Claims™). Id.
q13.

(@) Local 103 alleged the Section 20A claim on behalf of all Class
Members who purchased STEC common stock contemporaneously with sales by
the Moshayedi Brothers during the Class Period. /d. 9 18.

(b) Norfolk County alleged the Securities Act Claims on behalf of
all Class Members who acquired STEC common stock pursuant or traceable to
STEC’s August 2009 secondary offering (the “Offering”). Id. 4 19. The Securities
Act Claims were alleged against Defendants; Rajat Bahri, a member of STEC’s
Board of Directors and Chair of its Audit Committee, id. 49 31-33; and the four
investment banks that acted as underwriters with respect to the Offering
(collectively, the “Underwriters”): J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. (“J.P. Morgan
Securities”), Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. (“Deutsche Bank Securities™), Barclays
Capital Inc. (“Barclays Capital”), and Oppenheimer & Co. Inc. (“Oppenheimer”).
1d. 99 34-41.

42.  On January 10, 2011, the Court issued a tentative Order dismissing
the CAC for failure to adequately plead falsity; the parties submitted on the
tentative Order. ECF No. 175.

4. The Second Amended Complaint

43.  On February 22, 2011, Plaintiffs filed a Second Consolidated
Amended Complaint for Violation of the Federal Securities Laws (the “SAC”).
ECF No. 178.
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44.  On June 17, 2011, the Court granted the Underwriters’ motion to
dismiss the Securities Act Claims. ECF No. 200. The Court found that Plaintiffs
had adequately stated claims for relief under the Securities Act, but that Norfolk
County lacked standing because it did not adequately allege that it had acquired
STEC stock pursuant or traceable to the Offering. Id. at 20-21. In the same Order,
the Court sustained the Exchange Act Claims against Defendants STEC, the
Moshayedi Brothers, and Cook. /d. at 23.

45.  On July 15, 2011, the remaining Defendants answered the SAC. ECF
No. 203.

C. The Operative Complaint

46. The TAC was filed herewith in connection with Class
Representatives’ motion for preliminary approval of the proposed settlement of the
Action (the “Settlement”). The purpose of this amendment was to add plaintiff Dr.
Mark V. Ripperda (“Dr. Ripperda”) as a proposed Class Representative. 9 25. Dr.
Ripperda purchased STEC common stock on the Offering and held that stock until
at least the first partial corrective disclosure alleged in the TAC. ECF No. 335-11
(Ripperda Decl.) at Ex. 1. Therefore, he has standing to assert the alleged

Securities Act Claims on behalf of similarly situated Class members.

1. The Alleged Fraud

47. Inthe TAC, Class Representatives contend that from mid-June 2009
through early August 2009, Defendants knowingly made material
misrepresentations and omissions, including, among others:

(a) that an agreement signed by STEC with its largest customer,
EMC, in the middle of 2009 for a huge volume of purchases to be made in the
second half of 2009 (the “EMC Agreement”) was an ordinary course contract
whose size was determined solely by an increase in the customer’s supply
requirements such that a similar volume of purchases by the same customer could

be expected on a regular recurring basis;
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(b) that purchases by EMC would remain “a significant
percentage” of STEC’s total revenues, including in the first quarter of 2010;

(c) that, as of August 2009, STEC was expecting the volume of
purchases of its ZeusIOPS by its other large customers (the “Other OEMs”) to
increase during the second half of 2009;

(d) that, as part of the expected increase in purchases by the Other
OEMs during the second half of 2009, STEC was expecting IBM to transition to a
much larger volume of purchases during that period;

(e) that IBM was selling the ZeusIOPS as a standard feature in
certain of its products;

(f)  that, as of September 2009, one or more of the Other OEMs
would have been willing and able to replace EMC as the purchaser under the EMC
Agreement, or to purchase a similar amount of ZeusIOPS under a similar
agreement;

(g) that during the 2009 second quarter, STEC’s reported revenue
would grow, and then did grow, by an amount that—unknown to investors—had
been artificially inflated; and

(h) that, as of August 3, 2009, no competition existed for the
ZeusIOPS, or was expected to emerge during 2009 or early 2010. 9 9.

48. Class Representatives allege that Defendants’ misrepresentations and
omissions had the effect of doubling the price of STEC’s common stock in mid-
2009. g 11.

49. The TAC alleges that the Moshayedi Brothers took advantage of that
artificial inflation to sell more than 50% of their own stock in the Company
through the Offering, for a total of $267.8 million. 9 12.

2. The Partial Corrective Disclosures Alleged in the TAC

50. Only a few weeks after the Offering, a series of partial corrective

disclosures began to reveal the falsity of Defendants’ misstatements and omissions,
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and, in turn, drove down the price of STEC’s stock to below its pre-Class Period
level. 9 10.

51.  First, on September 17, 2009, a major drop in the price of STEC’s
common stock was allegedly caused by the revelation of the falsity of statements
and omissions in the Prospectus that competition for the ZeusIOPS neither existed
nor was imminent (the “September 17, 2009 Corrective Disclosure™). 99 194-97.

52.  Then, on November 3, 2009, the price of STEC’s stock dropped
dramatically in the immediate wake of several revelations (collectively, the
“November 3, 2009 Corrective Disclosure”):

(@) Manouch Moshayedi revealed, among other things, that:
(1) the EMC Agreement was a non-recurring “one-off type
of a deal;”

(i1)) IBM’s purchases of ZeusIOPS had “dropped off
significantly in the third quarter” and that Sun’s purchases of ZeusIOPS were
below “normal volumes;” and

(i11)  none of the Other OEMs could have replaced EMC under
terms similar to the EMC Agreement since the Other OEMs were not “selling to
any degree yet” and were all “a year behind” EMC in product development, 9 173.

(b) Asdisclosed in STEC’s 2009 third quarter earnings release,
EMC might have excess inventory of ZeusIOPS at the end of 2009 that it would
carry into 2010; and

(c) Based on STEC’s fourth quarter revenue guidance, purchases of]
ZeusIOPS in the second half of 2009 by the Other OEMs would not even match
the level of such purchases in the first half of 2009, let alone increase. 9 144.

53.  Finally, on February 23, 2010, Defendant Manouch Moshayedi
announced that STEC did not expect any revenue from EMC in the first half of
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2010, and that ZeusIOPS sales to the Other OEMs would not recover in the first
quarter of 2010 (the “February 23, 2010 Corrective Disclosure”). 9 156-57.° The
earnings release projected a dramatic decline in STEC’s 2010 first quarter
revenues, which Plaintiffs allege, disclosed the falsity of STEC’s 2009 second
quarter revenues. I/d. The day after this new information came to light, STEC’s

common stock price fell significantly. 9§ 300.
3. The Indemnified Non-Parties

54. The SAC named the Underwriters as defendants and alleged
Securities Act Claims against them. ECF No. 178 99 36-40, 334-40, 354-66. The
Court dismissed the Securities Act Claims in the SAC for lack of standing, and, for
that reason, also dismissed the Underwriters as Defendants, ECF No. 200.

55. At the time of the Offering, Defendants STEC and the Moshayedi
Brothers agreed to indemnify the Underwriters against any liabilities relating to the
Offering that might arise under the Securities Act. See Prospectus at S-29.
Therefore, even if Plaintiffs were able to bring Securities Act claims to trial, any
damages owed by the Underwriters after such trial would be paid by STEC and
the Moshayedis. Moreover, it is exceedingly rare that any liability on the part of
an underwriter can increase the amount of a Securities Act plaintiff’s damages,
because, under the Securities Act, an issuer, such as STEC, if found liable, is liable
for the entire amount of such plaintiff’s damages—and, moreover, under the
Securities Act, it is easier to prove the liability of an issuer than the liability of the
1ssuer’s underwriter. See ECF No. 335 at 15. For these reasons, and because the

results of discovery did not provide any reason to the contrary, the Underwriters

° STEC also disclosed that the Moshayedi Brothers had been subpoenaed by the
SEC as part of a formal 1nvest1]%f1tlon. 99 14, 253. The SEC is now prosecuting a
civil action against Defendant Manouch Moshayedi for insider trading and some of]
the same misstatements and omissions alleged in this Action. See SEC v.

Moshayedi, No. 8:12-cv-01179-JVS-MLGx (C.D. Cal. filed July 19, 2012).
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have not been named as Defendants in the TAC, but, rather, are referred to in the

TAC as “Indemnified Non-Parties.” See 99 37-45.
4. The Competition Claim

56. The CAC alleged false and misleading statements and material
omissions related to the competition for ZeusIOPS. Defendants allegedly
maintained that STEC had a virtual monopoly in the high-end SSD market, and
that STEC’s ZeusIOPS had “no competition” (the “Competition Claim”). ECF No.
1319 140. The CAC alleged losses resulting from a September 17, 2009,
Corrective Disclosure that competition for the ZeusIOPS was imminent. ECF No.
131-1 99 176-79.

57.  After the Court’s dismissal of the CAC, Plaintiffs elected not to allege
the Competition Claim or losses resulting from the September 17, 2009 Corrective
Disclosure, in the SAC, see ECF No. 178. Plaintiffs made this decision based on
the Court’s reasons for dismissing the Competition Claim, and a subsequent
discovery by Plaintiffs’ that cast doubt on the credibility of the September 17,
2009, disclosure. See ECF No. 335 at 10-12, 335-7, and 335-8.

58.  Despite not having realleged the Competition Claim in the SAC,
Plaintiffs vigorously investigated this claim during discovery, because, among
other reasons, (1) certain facts relevant to the Competition Claim also are relevant
to the EMC Agreement claim, see ECF No. 335-1 4 11; (2) if the claim were
supported by evidence obtained during discovery, Plaintiffs could seek leave to re-
allege the Competition Claim prior to any motions for summary judgment or an
appeal, and (3) even if a claim is not strong enough to prevail at trial, it may have
settlement value.

59. Based on Plaintiffs’ conclusion that the Competition Claim is worth
something for purposes of settlement, the TAC reinstates the Competition Claim,
alleges relevant misstatements and omissions in the Prospectus, and alleges losses

resulting from several partial disclosures relating to competition for ZeusIOPS,
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which were included among the corrective disclosures that comprise the September
17, 2009 Corrective Disclosure, the November 3, 2009 Corrective Disclosure, and
the February 23, 2010 Corrective Disclosure. 99 70-72, 187-223, 275-78, 298-99,
314-26, 366-71.

S. Other Amendments

60. The TAC includes additional allegations that Defendants made false
and misleading statements regarding:

(a)  the quality of STEC’s products, 9 203, 385-86; and

(b) Defendants’ belief that purchases by EMC would remain “a
significant percentage” of STEC’s total revenue, including into the first quarter of
2010. 94 76, 280, 301-04, 364-65.

61. The TAC includes additional allegations indicative of Defendant
Manouch Moshayedi’s scienter:

(a) that STEC was informed by EMC that EMC’s demand for
ZeuslOPS for the third quarter of 2009 was substantially less than half of what
EMC had agreed to purchase for the second half of 2009;

(b) that STEC made a secret side deal with EMC, pursuant to
which EMC agreed to increase its 2009 third quarter purchases to an amount that
exceeded its needs for the third quarter of 2009, and that was greater than the
amount that it had told STEC it would purchase, in exchange for an additional
discount from STEC on EMC’s purchases in the fourth quarter of 2009; and

(c) that on August 3, 2009, STEC issued its third quarter revenue
guidance without disclosing the side deal, thereby concealing the fact that EMC’s
actual third quarter demand had fallen short of the average quarterly demand
implied by the volume of the EMC Agreement. 9§ 99.

62. The TAC also includes allegations relating to the timeliness of the
Securities Act Claims. 9411-27.
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V. DISCOVERY TAKEN IN THE ACTION

A. Written Discovery

1. Lead Plaintiff’s Requests for Production
of Documents by Defendants

63. On October 13, 2011, Lead Plaintiff served its First Request for

Production of Documents on each of Defendants STEC, Manouch Moshayedi,
Mark Moshayedi and Raymond Cook (“First Requests”). Among other things, this
document request asked for documents that Defendants produced to, or received
from, the SEC. In response, Defendants produced nearly 1.6 million pages of
documents on November 7, 2011 and served their Objections and Responses on
November 17, 2011. In response to this same request, Defendants made twelve
additional productions containing a total of more than 75 thousand pages, starting
on November 18, 2011, and finishing on June 6, 2012.

64. On October 20, 2011, Lead Plaintiff served its Second Request for
Production of Documents on Defendant STEC (“Second Request”). STEC served
its Objections and Responses on November 28, 2011. STEC initially produced
about 540 pages of documents in response to Lead Plaintiff’s Second Request on
December 19, 2011. The parties then met and conferred regarding STEC’s
responses to Lead Plaintiff’s Second Request. On January 20, 2012, Lead Plaintiff
filed a Joint Stipulation Of Discovery Dispute In Connection With Lead Plaintiff’s
Motion To Compel Production Of Documents. On February 10, 2012, Magistrate
Judge Goldman held a hearing on Lead Plaintiff’s motion to compel, and issued an
Order stating that “during the course of the hearing, the parties reached an
agreement resolving the motion,” such that “[STEC] shall produce the categories
of documents agreed upon at the hearing as soon as practicable, but commencing
no later than March 2, 2012, with a completion date of March 9, 2012.” In

response to Judge Goldman’s Order, Defendants made six productions of over

DECLARATION OF THOMAS A. DUBBS 24
CASE NO. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)




Case §

O© 0 3 O »n K~ W N =

N NN N N N N N N M e e e e e e e
o I O W A W NN = ©O OV 00 NN O BN WD - O

09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386 Filed 04/08/13 Page 31 of 108 Page ID
#:9274

61,000 pages on the following dates: January 31, 2012; February 28, 2012; March
1,2012; March 9, 2012; March 31, 2012; and April 5, 2012.

65. On February 24, 2012, Lead Plaintiff served its Third Request for
Production of Documents on the Defendants (“Third Request”). Defendants
served their Objections and Responses on March 29, 2012. In response to Lead
Plaintiff’s Third Request, Defendants produced about 1,000 pages of documents on
March 31, 2012.

2. Defendants’ Requests for Production of Documents

66. On November 9, 2011, Defendants served their First Set of Requests
for Production of Documents on Lead Plaintiff. In response, Lead Plaintiff
produced over 88,000 pages of documents on December 9, 2011.

67. On November 25, 2011, Defendants served their Second Set of
Requests for Production of Documents on Lead Plaintiff, which were directed to
the native format regression models and related documents of Lead Plaintiff’s
damages expert, Dr. John Finnerty. Lead Plaintiff served its Objections and
Responses on December 30, 2011. After several meet and confers, Lead Plaintiff
agreed to produce certain information underlying Dr. Finnerty’s report that did not
disclose Dr. Finnerty’s proprietary information.

68. On February 27, 2012, Defendants served their Third Set of Requests
for Production of Documents on Lead Plaintiff. Lead Plaintiff served its
Objections and Responses on April 2, 2012, but did not produce any documents in
response to this request at that time on the ground that they relate to Defendants’
interrogatories (as discussed below) and class damages. On April 11, 2012,
Defendants sent Lead Plaintiff a meet and confer letter regarding the Third Set of
Requests for Production of Documents; the parties met and conferred and agreed to
further meet and confer after the status conference on May 15, 2012. Following

that status conference, as more fully set forth below, the Parties entered into an
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1 ||agreement regarding the deadline for answering the contention interrogatories and
2 ||producing the relevant documents.
3 3. Document Productions Subpoenaed from
Non-Parties by Lead Plaintiff
4
5 69. Lead Plaintiff subpoenaed documents from twenty-six non-parties to
. this action, including STEC’s six largest OEM customers plus Smart Modular
. Technologies, Inc., who was a purchasing intermediary for two of the OEMs; the
. four Underwriters for the Offering; ten securities analysts not working for any of
0 the Underwriters; STEC’s outside counsel at the time of the Offering, Reed Smith
0 LLP; STEC’s outside auditor, Pricewaterhouse Coopers LLP; the Moshayedi
" Defendants’ retired brother, Mike Moshayedi; EMC’s consultant, McKinsey &
. Co.; and West Virginia Laborers’ Pension Trust Fund. Together, these non-parties
3 produced over one million pages of responsive documents, not including the
" Native files. The dates of the subpoenas and productions, and the number of pages
s or files in native format included in each production are set forth in the table, infra.
Non-Party Date Served Beginning and Ending | Number of
16 Dates of Productions Pages or
Received by Class Natives
17 Counsel Produced
EMC Corporation 10/21/2011 12/5/2011 5,197
18 1/26/2012
Sun Microsystems 10/21/2011 2/3/2012 180
19 ||| International, Inc.
International Business 10/21/2011 12/29/2011 1,098
20 ||| Machines Corporation
Hitachi Data Systems 10/20/2011 10/27/2011 31 Native
21 ||| Corporation files
) Hewlett-Packard Company 10/21/2011 1/5/2012 11,513
Cisco Systems, Inc. 10/21/2011 11/11/11 913
23 11/14/11
Barclays Capital Inc. 11/9/2011 12/2/2011 2,247
24 4/12/2012
75 Barclays Capital Inc. 2/27/2012 see above see above
Deutsche Bank Securities 11/9/2011 12/2/2011 337,118
26 ||| Inc. 2/22/2012
Deutsche Bank Securities 2/27/2012 3/28/2012 393,982
27 ||| ne. 5/31/2012
78 J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. 11/9/2011 2/14/2012 274,123
4/19/2012
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Non-Party Date Served Beginning and Ending | Number of
Dates of Productions Pages or
Received by Class Natives
Counsel Produced
J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. 2/27/2012 see above see above
Oppenheimer & Co., Inc. 11/9/2011 12/5/2011 61,629
4/12/2012
Oppenheimer & Co., Inc. 2/27/2012 see above see above
Masoud Mike Moshayedi 11/25/2011 1/30/2012 6,459
2/23/2012
Smart Modular 11/15/2011 2/9/2012 55,742
Technologies, Inc. 2/16/2012
West Virginia Laborers' 1/26/2012 refused to produce 0
Pension Trust Fund
McKinsey & Co. 1/24/2012 3/13/2012 49
PricewaterhouseCoopers 1/24/2012 2/27/2012 408
LLP 2/28/2012
Reed Smith LLP 1/24/2012 4/10/2012 2,164
B. Riley & Company 1/24/2012 2/7/2012 263 Native
files
CapStone Investments 1/24/2012 2/15/2012 4,255
Needham & Company 1/24/2012 2/16/2012 14 Native
files
Noble Financial Group 1/24/2012 2/10/2012 23 Native
files
Pacific Crest Securities 1/24/2012 2/13/2012 42 Native
files
Stifel Nicolaus 1/24/2012 2/13/2012 58 Native
files
ThinkEquity LLC 1/24/2012 2/13/2012 4148 Native
files
Thomas Weisel Partners 1/24/2012 0
Thrivent Asset Management | 1/24/2012 2/13/2012 13 Native
files
Wedbush Securities, Inc. 1/24/2012 2/14/2012 13 Native
files
TOTAL PAGES 1,157,077
TOTAL NATIVE 4,605
FILES
4. Defendants’ Contention Interrogatories

70.  Defendant STEC served its First Set of Interrogatories to Lead

Plaintiff on January 24, 2012. During a status conference before Judge Goldman
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held on February 10, 2012, Lead Plaintiff requested that the responses to these
interrogatories be deferred. Based on matters discussed during the February 10,
2012 hearing and Judge Goldman’s comments, Lead Plaintiff believed that its
responses to the Interrogatories were not due on February 24, 2012, that the
Interrogatories would be lodged with Judge Goldman and that the Court would set
a deadline for responses.

71.  In a meet and confer on February 24, 2012, and in a subsequent email
dated February 28, 2012, Defendants stated their position that responses to certain
of the requests by STEC were due on March 2, 2012 and that Lead Plaintiff’s
failure to respond at all to those interrogatories would result in waiver of Lead
Plaintiff’s objections. In addition, on February 27, 2012, Defendant Manouch
Moshayedi served his First Set of Interrogatories to Lead Plaintiff.

72.  During a hearing on February 27, 2012, Judge Selna, inter alia, stayed
all dates in the action except for fact depositions and scheduled a status conference
for May 8, 2012.

73.  On March 20, 2012, Lead Plaintiff filed a letter motion regarding the
Interrogatories issue with Judge Goldman. On March 23, 2012 and April 11, 2012,
Defendants filed letters in opposition.

74.  On April 2, 2012, Lead Plaintiff served Objections and Responses to
Manouch Moshayedi’s First Set of Interrogatories. Lead Plaintiff objected to
specific interrogatories on, among other grounds, the fact that these were
“contention interrogatories” and, thus, served prematurely, given that fact
discovery had not been concluded.

75.  On April 11, 2012, Defendants sent Lead Plaintiff a meet and confer
letter regarding Manouch Moshayedi’s First Set of Interrogatories; the parties met
and conferred and agreed to further meet and confer after the status conference

with Judge Selna, which had been rescheduled for May 15, 2012. ECF No. 298.
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76.  On June 1, 2012, prior to Judge Goldman having made any ruling on
this Interrogatories issue, the Parties reached an agreement that, with certain
limited specific exceptions, the deadline for Lead Plaintiff to serve its Answers
And Objections to Defendant STEC’s Interrogatories, and its Supplemental
Answers And Objections to Defendant Manouch Moshayedi’s Interrogatories
(together, the “Interrogatory Responses”) would be June 25, 2012. The
interrogatories not included in this deadline were scheduled to be answered after
the close of expert discovery.

77. STEC’s Interrogatories contained 25 individual interrogatories, and
Manouch Moshayedi’s Interrogatories contained 22 individual interrogatories,
making for a total of 47 individual interrogatories served by the two Defendants
together. On June 25, 2012, consistent with the prior agreement of the Parties,
Lead Plaintiff served Answers and Objections to STEC’s Interrogatories, and
Supplemental Answers and Objections to Manouch Moshayedi’s Interrogatories,
including responses to all but six of the 47 individual interrogatories served by the
two Defendants together.

78.  OnJuly 17, 2012, Lead Plaintiff served its Answers and Objections or
Supplemental Answers and Objections to the remaining six interrogatories.

79. Defendants’ Interrogatories asked Lead Plaintiff to, among other
things, list each statement made by any Defendant that Lead Plaintiff contended
was false when made, “all facts supporting your contention that the statement was
false . .. when made,” each material fact that Lead Plaintiff contended was
concealed by each alleged false statement, all facts supporting any contention that
when any of the allegedly false statements was made any Defendant knew or was
reckless in not knowing that the statement was false, whether by any of several
specific dates any Defendant was aware of the facts allegedly concealed by any of
the allegedly false statements, all evidence demonstrating that each such fact was

known by any Defendant by each such specific date, all facts supporting any
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contention that by certain specific dates any Defendant knew for certain specific
reasons that certain allegedly false statement were false, when and how the market
learned that each allegedly false statement was false, and when and how each fact
concealed by each false statement was made known to the market.

80. Defendants’ Interrogatories asked questions specifically about Lead
Plaintiff’s contentions regarding, among other subjects, the EMC Agreement,
Defendants’ creation of unearned revenues, Defendants’ channel stuffing,
Defendants’ manipulation of deliveries to OEMs other than EMC, the market’s
expectation regarding sales of ZeusIOPS to OEMs other than EMC, the causation
of Class Members’ damages and the identity of confidential witnesses referenced
in the SAC.

81.  Lead Plaintiff’s Interrogatory Responses fill approximately two
hundred and fourteen (214) pages of text. The portion that was served on June 25,

2012, fills approximately one hundred ninety (190) pages of text.
5. Lead Plaintiff’s Proposed Stipulation to Certain Facts

82.  On March 29, 2012, based on documents produced by Defendants,
Lead Plaintiff proposed that the parties stipulate to certain facts for the purpose of
this litigation, and emailed Defendants a proposed stipulation, along with a list of
documents produced by Defendants that Lead Plaintiff believed supported the
proposed stipulation. The purpose of the proposed stipulation was to establish
certain details regarding each of the orders received by STEC from its leading
customer, EMC, during the first half of 2009, the dates on which those orders were
shipped, and the price EMC was charged for each shipment. Lead Plaintiff
believed this information was relevant to, among other things, Defendants’ scienter
for their allegedly false statements and material omissions regarding the EMC
Agreement. Lead Plaintiff explained to Defendants that, if Defendants were not

willing to execute the stipulation, Defendants would request permission from the
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Court to take a Rule 30(b)(6) deposition of STEC regarding the issues that Lead
Plaintiff hoped to resolved by the proposed stipulation.

83.  Defendants responded by email that, in principle, they were agreeable
to executing such a stipulation, but that Defendants were not convinced that the
proposed stipulation was adequately comprehensive or accurate, and that
Defendants needed time to develop their own view of the facts. Subsequently, on
March 30, 2012, during a meet and confer telephone call, Defendants stated that
they would draft their own alternative proposed stipulation, but that they would not
agree to a Rule 30(b)(6) deposition.

84.  On April 2, 2012, Lead Plaintiff notified Magistrate Goldman that, if
Defendants did not produce an alternative proposed stipulation satisfactory to Lead
Plaintiff, Lead Plaintiff would request an order permitting Lead Plaintiff to take a
Rule 30(b)(6) deposition of STEC regarding the facts and documents related to
Lead Plaintiff’s proposed stipulation.

85.  Thereafter, the Parties entered into a negotiation of a stipulation
regarding the orders received by STEC from, and shipments made by STEC to,
EMC, during the relevant period. STEC produced multiple successive iterations of]
a stipulation and accompanying exhibits, and Lead Plaintiff requested
modifications and additions to each such iteration, until, on August 16, 2012,
STEC sent Lead Plaintiff an email noting the Parties’ agreement that further
negotiation of the stipulation was “on hold while settlement discussions continue.”

B. Depositions of Fact Witnesses

1. Depositions Taken by Lead Plaintiff

86. Lead Plaintiff deposed the following twenty-five individuals:

. Roberto Basilio, analyst at Hitachi Data Systems Corporation, on
February 29, 2012 in San Francisco, California;

. Gary Hsueh, former analyst at Oppenheimer & Co., Inc., on March 1,

2012 in San Jose, California;
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Kevin Vassily, analyst at Pacific Crest Securities, on March 2, 2012 in|
Portland, Oregon;

Michael Desens, at International Business Machines Corporation, on
March 6, 2012 in Poughkeepsie, New Y ork;

William J. Fahey, III, STEC Director of Sales, on March 6, 2012 in
Costa Mesa, California;

Timothy Smith, Senior Director, Disk Drive Global Supply Chain
Management at EMC Corporation, on March 8, 2012 in Boston,
Massachusetts;

Anthony Anvari, STEC Vice President of Sales, on March 13, 2012 in
Costa Mesa, California;

Aaron C. Rakers, analyst at Stifel Nicolaus, on March 13, 2012 in St.
Louis, Missouri;

Anthony Anvari, STEC Vice President of Sales, on March 13, 2012 in
Costa Mesa, California;

Vijay R. Rakesh, analyst at ThinkEquity LLC, on March 14, 2012 in
Chicago, Illinois;

Cindy Reese, Senior Vice President of Worldwide Operations at
Oracle, on March 15, 2012 in Menlo Park, California;

Mitch Gellman, STEC Vice President of Investor Relations, on March
19, 2012 in Costa Mesa, California;

Michael Roy Crawford, analyst at B. Riley & Company, on March 21,
2012 in Los Angeles, California;

Tommy Vogtman, STEC Director of Program Management, Japan
Sales on March 21, 2012 in Costa Mesa, California;

Betsy Van Hees, analyst at Wedbush Securities, Inc., on March 22,
2012 in Palo Alto, California;
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Jeffrey Schreiner, analyst at CapStone Investments, on March 23,
2012 in Palo Alto, California;

Michael Higa, STEC Senior Vice President of Finance, on March 23,
2012 in Costa Mesa, California;

Christopher J. Casella, Senior Manager, Global Supply Chain
Management at EMC Corporation, on March 26, 2012 in Boston,
Massachusetts;

Mark Pridgen, Strategic Procurement Manager at Hewlett-Packard
Company, on March 29, 2012 in Boise, Idaho;

Mark Moshayedi, STEC President/COQO, on March 28, 2012 in Costa
Mesa, California;

Raymond Cook, STEC CFO, on March 30, 2012 in Costa Mesa,
California;

Sherri Scribner, analyst at Deutsche Bank, on April 2, 2012 in New
York, New York;

Manouch Moshayedi, STEC CEO, on April 4-5, 2012 in Costa Mesa,
California;

David Mittelman, partner at Reed Smith LLP, on April 24, 2012 in
San Francisco, California;

Lorenzo Salhi, former STEC Vice President of Sales, on April 30,
2012 in Palo Alto, California; and

Trevor Schick, Vice President of Global Supply Chain Management
and Chief Procurement Officer at EMC Corporation, on May 4, 2012
in Chicago, Illinois.

2. Depositions Taken by Defendants

87. Defendants deposed the following five individuals:
. Timothy Walsh, the Director of the Division of Investment, on
December 21, 2011 in Newark, New Jersey;
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. Vincent Benedetti, an Investment Analyst at the Division of
Investment, on December 21, 2011 in Newark, New Jersey;
. Michael Donovan, the Chief Financial Officer of Representative
Plaintiff the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local
103, on January 6, 2012 in Boston, Massachusetts;
. Leighton Christopher Wood, Jr., confidential witness (“CW?”) 2 in the
Lead Plaintiff’s Second Consolidated Amended Complaint for
Violation of the Federal Securities Laws (“SAC”), on March 20, 2012
in Menlo Park, California; and
. Gloria Alvarado, CW 3 in the SAC, on March 25, 2012 in Costa
Mesa, California.
Defendants also subpoenaed Chris Pages, CW 4 in the SAC, for a deposition
scheduled to be held on March 15, 2012 in Menlo Park, California, but Mr. Pages
failed to appear.
C. Discovery Disputes

1. Defendants’ Effort to Obstruct Plaintiffs’
Discovery from Non-Parties

88.  On October 20 and 21, Plaintiffs served document subpoenas on each
of STEC’s six large OEM customers, EMC, Sun, IBM, Hitachi, HP and Cisco.

89. By letter, dated October 28, 2011, Defendants informed Plaintiffs that
Defendants would seek a protective order limiting production in response to the
subpoenas served by Plaintiffs on these OEMs, unless Plaintiffs were to
“immediately withdraw” the subpoenas.

90. By letter, dated November 9, 2011, Plaintiffs informed Defendants
that, without waiving their rights at a later date to demand responses to these
subpoenas as originally served, or to any other subpoenas served by Plaintiffs on
these OEMs, Plaintiffs would narrow their requests in certain specific ways, in

return for Defendants withdrawing their objections.
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91. Apparently informed by Defendants about the existence and content
of Defendants’ letter to Plaintiffs, certain of the OEMs then refused to make any
production until Defendants’ objection was resolved and/or until a stipulated
protective order governing confidential information was entered in the case.

92. Defendants never responded to Plaintiffs’ letter, dated November 9,
2011, or made any motion for a protective order regarding these subpoenas.

93. With each OEM, Plaintiffs eventually were able to negotiate modified
document requests acceptable to both the OEM and to Plaintiffs.

94. On December 9, 2011, a stipulated protective order was filed by the
Parties.

95.  On December 12, 2012, the Court “so ordered” the Parties’ stipulated
protective order.

96. The OEMs’ document productions commenced and finished on the

dates set forth in the table in paragraph 69, supra.

2. Lead Plaintiff’s Effort to Obtain An Expedited
Procedure for Resolving Discovery Disputes

97. During a meet and confer process held in November and December
2011, Lead Plaintiff proposed to Defendants that the parties jointly seek the
appointment of a special master who could expedite discovery dispute procedures.
ECF No. 236 at 4. Specifically, Lead Plaintiff proposed the appointment of former
Orange County Superior Court judge, the Honorable James L. Smith, as Special
Master. Id. However, Defendants rejected Judge Smith and declined to suggest
any additional candidates. /d.

98. In ajoint status report filed with the Court on January 20, 2012, Lead
Plaintiff informed the Court that it intended to file a motion, pursuant to Fed. R.
Civ. P. 53, for the appointment of a special master to oversee discovery issues. Id.
Lead Plaintiff argued that, “given the discovery deadlines, the progress of the case

will be thwarted should the parties be required to resolve discovery disputes
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pursuant to Local Rule 37.1, which may require up to 38 days to present each
discovery dispute to the Court.” Id. Lead Plaintiff noted that, at the time, April 10,
2012 was the deadline for nonexpert discovery and April 24, 2012 was the
deadline for expert discovery; accordingly, discovery disputes needed to be
resolved on an expedited basis so as not to jeopardize those deadlines and the trial
date, which was then set for July 24, 2012. Id. at 4-5. As evidence of the potential
for delay, Lead Plaintiff cited four specific discovery disputes, including disputes
relating to the document requests that Lead Plaintiff had served on STEC and third
parties, as well as a dispute concerning the number of deposition to be taken in the
Action. Id. at 5-6.

99. Defendants responded that the appointment of a special master was
inappropriate and unnecessary because there were no “exceptional circumstances
to justify the appointment of a special master.” Id. at 7.

100. At a status conference on January 23, 2012, the Court stated that,
because a contested motion for the appointment of a special master would take too
long to resolve, the Court had consulted with Magistrate Judge Goldman, who had
assured the Court that he was “prepared to give this case the hands-on attention
that you believe it needs not only in the form of ruling on discovery motions, but
also visiting with the parties informally to get to the bottom of the problems to
make sure that this case moves along the way it should.” Transcript of
Proceedings on January 23, 2012, at 8. The Court further stated, “I think you have
a good point that the 38-day cycle spelled out under the local rules is unduly
cumbersome given the trial date in this case. I am prepared right now to order
shortening of times with respect to those interim dates.” Id. The Court therefore
reduced the ten-day notice requirement for the Local Rule 37.1 “meet and confer”
to five days and shortened other time periods under the Rule nearly in half. /d.
The Court also stated that it would suggest to Magistrate Judge Goldman that he
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meet with the parties in order to have a “global discussion of where the problems
are and how they are going to get addressed.” Id. at 9.

101. After the status conference, the Court issued an order memorializing
its order with respect to the time periods under Local Rule 37.1 and further stating
that “The Magistrate Judge may make such other adjustments to the Local Rule for
resolving discovery disputes as he finds warranted.” ECF No. 246.

102. At a hearing before Magistrate Judge Goldman on February 10, 2012,
Lead Plaintiff requested that the parties adopt an even more expedited protocol
under which the parties could raise discovery dispute via letter briefs. Transcript
of Proceedings on February 10, 2012, at 5-12. In response, Magistrate Judge
Goldman issued an order further expediting the discovery dispute procedure “[i]n
light of the impending discovery cutoff date, and the amount of discovery yet to be
completed.” ECF No. 255. That order adopted Lead Plaintiff’s proposal,
providing for a procedure under which the parties would submit letter briefs in
advance of an expedited telephonic hearing on any discovery disputes. /d.

3. Motion Practice Against Non-Parties
(i) EMC
103. On October 21, 2011, Plaintiffs served EMC Corporation, STEC’s

largest customer during the proposed Class Period, with a subpoena issued out of
the District of Massachusetts, which sought “all documents received by EMC from
the SEC in connection with any SEC investigation relating to STEC.” That request
was specifically directed towards the production of the deposition transcripts of
two EMC employees, Timothy Smith and Trevor Schick, whose depositions were
taken as part of an ongoing SEC investigation into securities violations of STEC.
EMC refused and, on January 20, 2012, Lead Plaintiff and its local counsel,
Berman DeValerio, filed a Motion to Compel Production of the subpoenaed SEC
transcripts. In re STEC, Inc. Securities Litigation, Misc. No. 12-mc-91018-RGS
(D. Mass.) (Stearns, J.)
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104. After briefing, on February 16, 2012, the Court granted EMC’s Cross-
Motion to Quash, holding in a one sentence decision that, “Plaintiffs have not
shown that the information, whether privileged or not, cannot be obtained from
other sources, including depositions taken by plaintiffs themselves.” Lead Plaintiff]
thereafter deposed Mr. Smith who was directed by counsel not to answer questions
concerning his SEC testimony.

105. Accordingly, on March 30, 2012, Lead Plaintiff filed a motion for
reconsideration before Judge Stearns on the grounds that EMC’s counsel instructed
Mr. Smith not to answer questions related to their SEC testimony. After briefing
by Lead Plaintiff and EMC, the Court entered an electronic order on May 29, 2012
denying the motion for reconsideration, holding that “Plaintiffs still have not
shown that they cannot find what they wish to know (about the testimony
contained in the SEC transcript) from another source other than EMC.”

106. On June 28, 2012, Lead Plaintiff filed a Notice of Appeal from Judge
Stearn’s decision with the United States Court of Appeals for the First Department.
Lead Plaintiff subsequently voluntarily dismissed the appeal following the

execution of the Stipulation of Settlement.

(ii) The Underwriters

107. On February 27, 2012, Co-Lead Counsel issued document subpoenas
to each of the four Underwriters to obtain the names and addresses of all persons of
entities who purchased on the Offering.

108. During the week of March 19, 2012, the Underwriters produced on
the names of the purchasers. Since many of the purchasers were individuals, and
not institutional investors, Co-Lead Counsel sought production of the mailing
addresses for the purchasers.

109. Counsel for the Underwriters initially refused to produce contact
information for the purchasers. Therefore, Co-Lead Counsel filed a letter motion

with Magistrate Judge Goldman on March 28, 2012. While that letter motion was
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pending, the Underwriters consented to produce the contact information for the
purchasers.
110. In mid-April 2012, the Underwriters produced the relevant contact

information.

4. Lead Plaintiff’s Motion to Compel
Production of Documents by Defendants

111. On October 20, 2011, Lead Plaintiff served its Second Request for

Production of Documents on STEC. Three months later, on January 20, 2012,
having failed to obtain satisfactory productions in response to a number of the
individual requests in the Second Request, and, despite Lead Plaintiff having
offered to narrow the requests, having failed to obtain any agreement from
Defendants that satisfactory productions in response to these narrowed requests
would be made, Lead Plaintiff filed a motion to compel production of documents
by STEC. See ECF Nos. 237 & 237-1.

112. The requests at issue regarded documents relating to communications
regarding ZeusIOPS with certain of STEC’s OEM customers, documents sent to or
received from certain of STEC’s OEM customers during the 2009 second or third
quarter, documents relating to any sale of any product or service by STEC during
STEC’s 2009 second quarter, documents relating to any shipment delivered by
STEC to any customer during STEC’s 2009 second quarter, documents relating to
revenue reported by STEC for its 2009 second quarter, documents relating to
revenue reported by STEC for its 2009 third quarter, documents relating to STEC’s
cost of revenues during the 2009 third and fourth quarters, documents relating to
any discount given to any STEC customer in return for such customer advancing
into the 2009 second quarter purchases that such customer had planned to make in
a later quarter, documents relating to any request that a STEC customer make a
purchase in the 2009 second quarter that such customer had planned to make, or,

otherwise would have made, in a later quarter, and documents created, modified, or
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used during the second or third quarters of 2009, relating to any communication
between STEC Vice President of Sales, Lorenzo Salhi, and HP or Cisco, See id.
113. On February 10, 2012, after a hearing on the motion by Magistrate
Judge Marc L. Goldman, during which Magistrate Goldman stated in general terms
how he believed the motion should be resolved, it was resolved by an agreement of|
the parties that, for the most part, required STEC to produce documents in response
to the specific requests at issue, as previously narrowed by Lead Plaintiff. See

ECF No. 255.
D. Expert Discovery

1. Class Certification

114. As discussed in greater detail, in Part VI, infra, on November 21,
2011, Lead Plaintiff filed the Declaration of John D. Finnerty, Ph.D. in Support of
Lead Plaintiff’s Motion for Class Certification, and, on December 21, 2011, Dr.
Finnerty was deposed by defense counsel on class related issues.
2. Merits
115. Following the close of fact discovery, the Court entered an Order on
June 11, 2012 (ECF No. 310) that set forth the following deadlines governing
expert discovery:
(a) 1nitial disclosure of expert witnesses on or before July 10, 2012;
(b) rebuttal disclosure of expert witnesses on or before July 24,
2012; and
(c)  expert discovery cut-off date of August 3, 2012.
(i)  Plaintiffs’ Initial Expert Reports

116. Pursuant to this Order, Plaintiffs designated the following four experts
and served their respective reports on July 10, 2012:
(@)  John D. Finnerty, Ph.D.
Finnerty Economics Consulting

(b) Alan D. Jagolinzer, Ph.D.
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University of Colorado at Boulder

(c)  Richard Willis, Ph.D.

Vanderbilt University
(d) Steven L. Henning, Ph.D.
Marks Paneth & Shron
Each expert is more fully discussed below.

117. Dr. Finnerty was retained by Co-Lead Counsel in the Spring of 2012
to:

(a)  opine on the materiality of Defendants’ alleged
misrepresentations and omissions;

(b)  opine on whether and to what degree investor losses were
proximately caused by Defendants’ alleged violations of the federal securities
laws; and

(c)  quantify the damages suffered by Class members on a per share
basis under Section 10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 10b-5
promulgated hereunder.

118. Dr. Finnerty prepared a 39 page report, along with 10 exhibits totaling
another 17 pages of supporting graphs, that was served on Defendants on July 10,
2012. Dr. Finnerty (1) opined that declines in the price of STEC common stock on
November 4, 2009 and February 24, 2010 were attributable to and substantially
caused by identifiable news events relating to the disclosure of the alleged fraud;
and (2) calculated the damages per share suffered by purchasers of STEC common
stock as a result of the alleged fraud.

119. Co-Lead Counsel retained Dr. Jagolinzer to:

(a) provide an expert opinion regarding the trading proceeds
that Manouch and Mark Moshayedi would have received had their shares been
sold within the Rule 10b5-1 plans that were adopted by STEC on May 29,

2009 and to determine whether those proceeds would have been greater or smaller
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than the proceeds that they received from the shares they sold in the secondary
offering on August 11, 2009; and

(b) provide an expert opinion regarding the testimony of Manouch
and Mark Moshayedi that their Rule 10b5-1 Plans would have started executing
and every day they would have sold hundreds of thousands of shares “with zero
visibility for the investors when this is going to end” (Mark Moshayedi deposition
transcript, March 28, 2012, p. 95) and that “[1]t is not customary” for making the
terms of 10b5-1 plans available to the public (/d. at 96) and that “5 million shares
were going to go into the market and all be dumped at the same time with no
explanation to any investors of why this is happening.” (Manouch Moshayedi
deposition transcript, April 5, 2012, pp. 413-414).

120. Dr. Jagolinzer prepared a 23 page report, along with several
appendices of charts that totaled another 36 pages, that was served on Defendants
on July 10, 2012.

121. Dr. Willis was retained by Co-Lead Counsel to opine on the role of
financial analysts, who gather and analyze financial information about the
companies they cover in order to build financial “models” used to predict the
future performance of those companies. Dr. Willis is a CPA and the Ann Marie
and Thomas B. Walker, Jr. Associate Professor of Accounting at the Owen
Graduate School of Management at Vanderbilt University

122. 1In his 65 page report, including exhibits, Dr. Willis opined that
analysts significantly increased their fiscal year 2010 revenue estimates, earnings
per share (“EPS”) forecasts and price targets for STEC stock following
Defendants’ announcements in July and August 2009 concerning the EMC
Agreement.

123. Dr. Willis also opined that analysts decreased their fiscal year 2010

revenue estimate, EPS forecasts and price targets for STEC stock following the
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November 3, 2009 Corrective Disclosure and again following the February 23,
2010 Corrective Disclosure.

124. Dr. Henning was retained by Co-Lead Counsel to opine on the
disclosures required by relevant SEC regulations concerning the EMC Agreement
and the materiality of STEC’s omission to disclose that $12 million of its third
quarter revenue guidance resulted from its promise to give EMC a benefit in the
2009 fourth quarter in return for EMC’s promise to increase its purchases of
ZeusIOPS during the 2009 third quarter. Dr. Henning is a CPA and a Partner at
Marks Paneth & Shron, LLP. He is a former Academic Fellow at the SEC’s Office
of the Chief Accountant.

125. 1In his 18 page report, excluding exhibits, Dr. Henning opined that
STEC was required to file the $120 million agreement with the SEC on or before
August 3, 2009, for each of two independent reasons, namely, (a) because the
agreement was not entered into in the ordinary course, and (b) because it was an
agreement on which STEC was substantially dependent.

126. Dr. Henning further opined that if, on August 3, 2009, STEC had
reason to believe it was unlikely that the $120 million agreement would be
renewed, even if STEC was not otherwise required to disclose that likely non-
renewal, STEC was obligated by the provisions of SEC Regulation S-K to disclose
that likely non-renewal in the MD&A section of its second quarter Form 10-Q; and
STEC’s failure to make such disclosure rendered its statement about the $120
million agreement in the Form 10-Q misleading to investors.

127. Finally, Dr. Henning opined that under SEC guidance, the materiality
of STEC’s omission to disclose that $12 million of its 2009 third quarter revenue
guidance was the result of its agreement to provide EMC a benefit in the 2009
fourth quarter must be evaluated based on qualitative as well as quantitative

factors. Each of these factors indicates that the omission was material, and,
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considering them collectively, the conclusion is even stronger that the omission

was material.

(ii) Defendants’ Initial Expert Reports

128. Pursuant to the June 11, 2012 Order, Defendants designated the
following two experts and served their respective reports on July 10, 2012:
(a) Allan W. Kleidon, Ph.D.
Cornerstone Research
(b) Dale Kitchens
Berkeley Research Group, LLC
129. Dr. Kleidon, Senior Vice President at Cornerstone Research and
Honorary Professor in the School of Business at the University of Queensland in
Australia, was retained by Defendants to opine on issues related to alleged
inflation, loss causation and damages. In his report, Dr. Kleidon opined that Lead
Plaintiff had not specified what could and should have been said in lieu of the
alleged misrepresentations sufficiently for an economist to calculate the amount of
the artificial inflation in STEC’s stock price relating to the alleged fraud..
130. Dr. Kitchens, a CPA and Director with Berkeley Research Group,
LLC, was retained by Defendants as an accounting expert to opine on the
allegations regarding STEC’s revenue recognition accounting policies and
practices, including Plaintiffs’ claims of “channel stuffing” and improper “pull-
ins” and “push-outs.” Dr. Kitchens opined that, among other things, Defendants

did not engage in channel stuffing.
(iii) Plaintiffs’ Rebuttal Expert Witness Reports

131. On July 24, 2012, the parties exchanged their rebuttal expert reports.

Plaintiffs submitted the following rebuttal expert reports:
(@)  John D. Finnerty, Ph.D.

Finnerty Economics Consulting

DECLARATION OF THOMAS A. DUBBS 44
CASE NO. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)




Case §

O© 0 3 O »n K~ W N =

N NN N N N N N N M e e e e e e e
o I O W A W NN = ©O OV 00 NN O BN WD - O

09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386 Filed 04/08/13 Page 51 of 108 Page ID
#:9294

(b) Steven L. Henning, Ph.D.
Marks Paneth & Shron

132. Dr. Finnerty responded to the expert report of Dr. Kleidon. In his 33
page rebuttal report, Dr. Finnerty opined that Lead Plaintiff specified the alleged
material misstatements and omissions in the SAC and Interrogatory Responses in
sufficient detail to enable an economist to calculate the amount of share price
inflation throughout the Class Period and the losses caused by those alleged
misstatements and omissions.

133. Dr. Henning responded to the expert report of Dr. Kitchens, ina 12
page rebuttal report.

134. Dr. Henning addressed the issue of channel stuffing, opining that,
among other things, channel stuffing transactions, even when resulting in revenue
recognized in accordance with GAAP, can constitute misleading or improper
financial reporting, and a violation of SEC regulations.

135. Dr. Henning also opined that STEC violated GAAP by recording
revenue upon reshipment of 402 modules to Hewlett-Packard in April 2009, and

thereby overstated its revenues for the second quarter of 2009.

(iv) Defendants’ Rebuttal Expert Witness Reports

136. Pursuant to the June 11, 2012 Order, Defendants designated the
following four rebuttal experts:
(a) Allan W. Kleidon, Ph.D.
Cornerstone Research
(b) Robert A. Barron
(c)  Allen Ferrell
Harvard Law School
(d) Bradford Cornell

Compass Lexicon
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137. Dr. Kleidon responded to the initial expert report of Dr. Finnerty and
opined that Dr. Finnerty’s inflation and damages numbers were flawed.

138. Dr. Barron, a former senior vice president and co-director of
Executive Financial Services at Salomon Smith Barney, Inc. responded to the
initial expert report of Dr. Jagolinzer. He opined that Securities Act Rule 144
volume limitations did not impede Manouch’s and Mark’s ability to sell their
shares under their respective 10(b)5-I plans.

139. Dr. Farrell, the Greenfield Professor of Securities Law at Harvard
Law School, responded to the initial expert report of Dr. Henning. He opined that
Dr. Henning had failed to provide the requisite support for his opinions.

140. Dr. Cornell, Visiting Professor of Financial Economics at California
Institute of Technology, responded to the expert report of Dr. Willis. He opined
that Defendants did not mislead investors regarding the $120 million volume sales
agreement with EMC or STEC’s expected sales of ZeusIOPS products during the

second half of 2009 to customers other than EMC.
(v) Expert Depositions

141. By mid-July 2012, the Parties had agreed to an expert deposition
schedule, commencing on July 27 and ending on August 17, 2012.

142. Defendants commenced expert depositions by deposing Dr. Henning
on July 27, 2012 in New York City.

143. On July 30, 2012, a more fully set forth in Section X, supra, the
Parties attended a mediation in Orange County, California. While no agreement
was reached during that mediation, the Parties did agree, subject to approval of the
Court, to postpone the remaining discovery and pleading deadlines and focus on

continued mediation.
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E. Consulting Experts

144. In addition to expert discovery, Co-Lead Counsel also contained
several consulting experts.

145. Forensic Economics provided Co-Lead Counsel with an analysis of
the stock market’s reaction to the new information released by STEC during the
Class Period by analyzing press releases, analysts reports and news stories and
merging that information with daily STEC stock prices and other price data.

146. JuryScope provided Co-Lead Counsel with deliberation group
research in which a large group of surrogate jurors were selected from the trial
venue. The surrogate jurors were presented with the case facts for both plaintiffs’
and defendants’ case. Various testing of the surrogate jurors’ opinions was done
throughout the presentations. The surrogate jurors were subsequently divided into
groups, given jury instructions, deliberated and rendered verdicts. JuryScope then
analyzed that data for Plaintiffs’ Counsel.

147. Tom Barker is the William Paul Measey Professor of Law and Health
Sciences at the University of Pennsylvania Law School. He provided Plaintiffs’
Counsel with an analysis of securities fraud class action settlements and the

allocation of settlement monies among various subclasses.
VI. THE CLASS CERTIFICATION PROCESS

A. Plaintiffs’ Initial Motion for Class Certification

148. Plaintiffs initially filed a Motion for Class Certification and
Appointment of Class Counsel on November 21, 2011. ECF No. 218. That
motion included declarations from counsel, Lead Plaintiff and the proposed class
representatives, as well as the Declaration of John D. Finnerty.

149. Plaintiffs originally retained Dr. Finnerty in the Fall of 2010, to
conduct appropriate studies and opine on the efficiency of the market for STEC
common stock during the alleged Class Period. On November 21, 2011, Lead
Plaintiff filed the Declaration of John D. Finnerty, Ph.D., in Support of Lead
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Plaintiff’s Motion for Class Certification (the “Finnerty Market Efficiency
Report”), in which Professor Finnerty opined that the market for the common stock
of STEC was open, developed, and efficient during the Class Period. ECF No.
220. On December 21, 2011, Professor Finnerty was deposed by defense counsel
in Menlo Park, California regarding his expert qualifications and the opinions that
he expressed in the Finnerty Market Efficiency Report concerning the responses of
STEC’s stock price to several economically significant events.

150. Defendants did not challenge the Finnerty Market Efficiency Report
in their opposition to Plaintiffs’ motion for class certification. ECF No. 233.

151. Defendants thereafter deposed Plaintiffs’ expert, Dr. Finnerty, on
class-related issues on December 21, 2011 in Menlo Park, California and deposed
two client representatives: Vincent Benedetti, an Investment Analyst at the New
Jersey Department of Treasury, Division of Investment, on December 21, 2011, in
Newark, New Jersey, and Michael Donovan, the Chief Financial Officer of the
International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local 103, on January 5, 2012 in
Boston, Massachusetts.

152. On January 6, 2012, non-party West Virginia Laborers’ Trust Fund
(“West Virginia”), represented by BLBG filed a Motion For Leave To Intervene
Regarding Plaintiffs’ Motion For Class Certification. ECF No. 228.

153. West Virginia sought modification of the proposed class definition to
exclude the Securities Act Claims. ECF No. 231 99 14-17. In its motion to
intervene in this Action, West Virginia asserted that it purchased STEC stock on
the Offering but did not assert that it held that stock until at least the first alleged
partial corrective disclosure. See ECF No. 333 at 25.

154. West Virginia asserts Securities Act Claims arising from the Offering,
against Defendants and the Underwriters on behalf of a putative class of investors,
in an action in the Superior Court of Orange County styled West Virginia

Laborers’ Trust Fund v. STEC, Inc., No. 30-2011-0489022-CU-SL-CXC (Cal.
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Super. Ct. filed July 1, 2011) (the “State Court Action). See ECF No. 250 at Ex.
A. The State Court Action arises out of the same set of facts as this Action and the
complaint in the State Court Action includes substantial portions of the SAC,
copied verbatim. ECF No. 249 at 4-5.

155. After West Virginia moved to intervene, Plaintiffs issued a subpoena
to West Virginia seeking production of its trading records with respect to its
purchases and sales of STEC stock. See ECF No. 249 at 6-7. West Virginia did
not produce its trading records in response to that subpoena.'® However,
subsequently, when filing an objection to Class Representatives’ motion for
preliminary approval of the Settlement, West Virginia filed an affidavit disclosing
that it had sold the last of its stock purchased in the Offering on October 20, 2009,
prior to the first corrective disclosure alleged in the SAC, although after the first
alleged disclosure alleged in the TAC. See ECF No. 336-2 atq 3 & Ex. B.

156. On January 12, 2012, Defendants filed their opposition to Plaintiffs’
motion for class certification and argued, among other things, that Plaintiffs’
Motion for Class Certification should be denied because: (1) the named plaintiffs
were not adequate class representatives and (2) the alleged Class Period was too
long. Defendants asserted that the named plaintiffs were not adequate
representatives of the proposed class because there was an impermissible conflict
between the interests of the named plaintiffs, who had standing to assert claims
under only the Exchange Act, and the interests of those members of the proposed
class who had standing to assert claims under both the Exchange Act and under the
Securities Act. Defendants asserted that the alleged Class Period, which extended

to the February 23, 2010 Corrective Disclosure, was too long because the “relevant

' On March 7, 2012, the Court issued an Order denying West Virginia’s motion
to intervene. ECF No. 279 at 21.
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truth” was disclosed to the market by the November 3, 2009 Corrective Disclosure.
ECF No. 233.

157. On February 6, 2012, Plaintiffs filed their opposition to West
Virginia’s motion to intervene and argued that West Virginia, as a non-Class
Member, could not meet the requirements for mandatory intervention based on its
“representative plaintiff” status in the State Court Action, which had not (and still
has not) been certified as a class action. Plaintiffs further argued that West
Virginia’s motion was deficient to the extent it sought to exclude the Offering
Purchasers (defined below) from the Class because doing so would improperly
force absent Class Members to give up their Exchange Act Claims. ECF No. 249.

158. The following week, on February 13, 2012, Plaintiffs filed their reply
papers in further support of its motion for class certification, arguing that no
impermissible class conflict existed where Plaintiffs and all Class Members sought
only economic damages for the same alleged injury based on identical facts, and
that Defendants’ attack on the length of the alleged Class Period was a premature
merits issue. ECF No. 256.

159. Also on February 13, 2012, West Virginia filed its reply papers in
further support of its motion to intervene, asserting that it sought to exclude only
Securities Act claims from the alleged Class Definition (not the Offering
Purchasers themselves) and that Plaintiffs cited no authority for the proposition
that the Offering Purchasers could not be members of both an Exchange Act class
in this Action and a Securities Act class in the State Court Action. ECF No. 257.

160. On February 27, 2012, the Court heard oral argument on Plaintiffs’
motion for class certification and West Virginia’s motion to intervene. The Court
took the motions under submission and stayed the case for 60 days, except for
discovery, in order to permit Plaintiffs to search for a representative plaintiff with

standing to assert the Securities Act Claims. ECF No. 278.
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161. On March 7, 2012, the Court entered an Order denying the motion for
class certification and the motion to intervene. The Court found that the Class was
certifiable under Rule 23(b)(3) and that Plaintiffs satisfied the numerosity,
commonality and typicality requirements of Rule 23(a). The Court also rejected
Defendants’ attack on the alleged Class Period. However, the Court found that the
adequacy requirement was not satisfied because Plaintiffs did not present a class
representative who had standing to bring the Securities Act Claims. The Court
rejected West Virginia’s proposal to carve out the Securities Act Claims from the
Class Definition because it would result in impermissible “claim-splitting” by the
Offering Purchasers who had both Exchange Act and Securities Act Claims. The
Court granted Lead Plaintiff 60 days to add a new class representative who had
standing to assert those claims. ECF No. 279.

B. The Rule 23(f) Appeal

162. On March 23, 2012, Lead Plaintiff filed a Rule 23(f) petition with the
United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit (“Ninth Circuit”), Defendants

filed their opposition to that petition on April 5, 2012.
163. The Ninth Circuit denied Lead Plaintiff’s Rule 23(f) petition on June
14, 2012.

C. Mailings, Advertisements, and Other Efforts
to Identify a Securities Act Plaintiff

164. Following the February 27, 2012 oral argument, Plaintiffs issued a
document subpoena to each of the four Underwriters to obtain the names and
addresses of all persons or entities who purchased on the Offering (“Offering
Purchasers”). ECF No. 307-1 2."" The Underwriters produced the relevant
contact information in mid-April 2012. Id. § 5. Immediately thereafter, Co-Lead

"' The Underwriters initially refused to produce contact information for the
Offering Purchasers, but they agreed to produce that information after Plaintiffs
filed a letter motion with Magistrate Judge Goldman. See ECF No. 307-1 9 3-4.
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Counsel sent a letter to each of the 464 Offering Purchasers, of which 212 were
individuals and 252 were business entities. /d. ] 6-8. The letters described the
Action and stated that Plaintiffs were seeking an investor who purchased STEC
stock pursuant or traceable to the Offering. ECF No. 307-2 at Exs. A, B. Counsel
for Plaintiffs retained Diane Karpman, Esq. of Karpman & Associates to ensure
that the letters complied with all California ethics rules and restrictions. Karpman
& Associates is one of the premiere legal ethics firms in California and exclusively
serves the legal profession. Ms. Karpman reviewed, revised, and approved the
contents of these letters.

165. One of the 252 business entities that purchased in the Offering, was
Jeffries & Company, Inc., now known as Jeffries Group, Inc. (“Jeffries”). A
Jeffries broker at the Harborside Financial Center in Jersey City, New Jersey,
purchased STEC common stock on the Offering for a limited partnership client.
ECF No. 307-1 9.

166. In response to the letter described in paragraph 164 supra, this Jeffries
office produced the names and addresses of 665 clients who purchased STEC
common stock during the Class Period, but not necessarily on the Offering. In an
abundance of caution, Co-Lead Counsel sent to each of these 665 individuals or
entities a letter that was identical in all material respects to the letter described in
paragraph 164 supra. See id.

167. On Monday, April 23, 2012, Co-Lead Counsel caused an
advertisement to be placed in Investor’s Business Daily, which has a total audience
0f' 401,000 and a total distribution on Monday of 162,758. ECF No. 307-1 9 11-
12. The advertisement described the Action and stated that Plaintiffs were seeking
an investor who purchased STEC stock pursuant or traceable to the Offering. ECF
No. 307-2 at Ex. D.

168. On May 10, 2012, Plaintiffs caused the same advertisement to be
placed in the Eastern Edition of The Wall Street Journal, which has a total
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circulation of 733,611. See ECF No. 307-1 § 13; ECF No. 307-2 at Ex. G."* The
Eastern Edition of The Wall Street Journal was selected because an analysis of the
geographical location of the 464 Offering Purchasers revealed that the vast
majority of them resided within the circulation area of the Eastern Edition. ECF
No. 307-1 9 13.

169. As aresult of the mailings and advertisements, Co-Lead Counsel was
contacted by 23 investors, none of whom had standing to bring the Securities Act
Claims, as alleged in the SAC. Id. 4 15. Three of the 23 investors did not purchase
on the Offering. Id. 9 17. The other 20 investors purchased STEC stock on the
Offering but sold that stock prior to the first partial corrective disclosure alleged in
the SAC. Id. § 16. Dr. Ripperda was among the 20 Offering Purchasers who
contacted Co-Lead Counsel in response to the mailings and advertisements.

170. Finally, Co-Lead Counsel sought assistance from more than ten law
firms, including BLBG (counsel for Rashtchi, Ovitt, and West Virginia), in
identifying an adequate class representative. None of these attorneys were able to
refer an investor who had standing to assert the Securities Act Claims, as alleged in
the SAC. I1d. q 18.

D. Plaintiffs’ Renewed Motion For Class Certification

171. The Court held a status conference on May 15, 2012 during which
Lead Plaintiff explained that it had been unable to find a putative class member
with standing to assert the Securities Act claim, despite its diligent efforts to do so.
The Court instructed Lead Plaintiff to file supplemental briefing by May 25, 2012,
documenting its efforts to find an adequate Securities Act representative. ECF No.
300. Defendants were instructed to file a response by June 1, 2012 if they chose to
respond. /d.

'> Ms. Karpman also reviewed, revised, and a()pgproyed the text of the
advertisements described in paragraphs 9§ 167-69 prior to their publication.
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172. On May 25, 2012, Lead Plaintiff submitted a supplemental
memorandum of law in further support of Plaintiffs’ Motion for Class
Certification. ECF No. 307.

173. The supplemental memorandum detailed Lead Plaintiff's efforts to
search for a representative plaintiff with standing to assert the Securities Act
Claims, which, as discussed supra, included sending a letter to each of the 464
Offering Purchasers and the 665 clients Jeffries who may or may not have been
Offering Purchasers, as well as placing advertisements in Investor’s Business Daily
and The Wall Street Journal. ECF No. 307.

174. The supplemental memorandum reported to the Court that, as a result
of these mailings and advertisements, Lead Plaintiff was contacted by 23
individuals or entities who either did not purchase in the Offering or purchased on
the Offering but sold their STEC stock prior to the what was then the first alleged
partial disclosure on November 3, 2009. Id. at 2. It therefore concluded that Lead
Plaintiff had not been able to identify a class representative who had standing to
assert the Securities Act Claims. /d.

175. On June 1, 2012, Defendants files a notice of intent to rely on their
prior briefing regarding Plaintiffs’ motion for class certification.

176. On June 19, 2012, the Court entered an Order certifying the Class for
Plaintiffs’ Exchange Act Claims. ECF No. 314. The Court held, in part, that
“certifying an Exchange Act only Class is preferable o the alternative of certifying
no class at all. Indeed, a class action is the superior method for adjudicating an
Exchange Act claim.” Id. at 6. The Court also held that “to the extent that Class
notification reveals the identity of a class member with standing to assert a

Securities Act claim, the Court may reexamine the certification issue.” /d.
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E. Defendants’ Rule 23(f) Appeal
177. On July 5, 2012, Defendants filed a Rule 23(f) petition with the Ninth
Circuit. Plaintiffs filed their opposition to that petition on July 16, 2012. The

Ninth Circuit declined to take the appeal on September 6, 2012.

VII. FILING, REMOVAL AND REMAND OF
WEST VIRGINIA’S CASE IN STATE COURT

178. Prior to New Jersey’s appointment as Lead Plaintiff in the Federal
Action, two individual investors, Arman Rashtchi (“Rashtchi”) and Keith Ovitt
(“Ovitt”) served as Court-appointed lead plaintiffs. Counsel for Rashtchi and
Ovitt, BLBG and KS&F, served as Court-appointed lead counsel.

179. On April 9, 2010, on behalf of Rashtchi and Ovitt, KS&F and BLBG
filed the first consolidated class action complaint in this Action (the “Consolidated
Complaint”), which asserted only Exchange Act claims and not any Securities Act
claims. See ECF No. 83. Because the Consolidated Complaint significantly
expanded the alleged class period, the Court re-opened the lead plaintiff
appointment process in this Action. See ECF No. 123. On July 14, 2010, the
Court issued an Order appointing New Jersey as Lead Plaintiff. /d.

180. On August 13, 2010, Co-Lead Counsel filed an amended consolidated
complaint (the “First Amended Complaint”) on behalf of New Jersey. See ECF
Nos. 131 & 131-1. The Amended Complaint was the first consolidated complaint
filed in this Action that alleged any Securities Act Claims.

181. OnJuly 1, 2011, BLBG filed a separate action in California state court
alleging Securities Act claims against STEC and the Individual Defendants (the
“State Action”) on behalf of the West Virginia Laborers’ Trust Fund (“West
Virginia”)."” As BLBG acknowledged during a recent hearing in this Action, if

3 KS&F is not involved in the State Action.
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West Virginia had filed its complaint in federal court, the parties would have
sought to consolidate it with this Action. See ECF No. 360-2.

182. West Virginia’s complaint is based on the same facts as those alleged

in this Action, as West Virginia itself later admitted, stating:

Any challenge to the adequacy of the Complaint’s falsity

allegations would be misplaced. On June 17, 2011,

United States District Judge James V. Selna for the

Central District of California found that Plaintiffs in a

parallel federal securities class action alleging the same

facts as in this action adequately stated a claim under the

Securities Act against these same defendants.
ECF No. 250-53 at 2 n.2 (emphasis added) (quoting Opposition to Defendants’
Demurrer at 2 n.2, West Virginia v. STEC (Cal. Super. Dec. 16, 2011)); see also
ECF No. 335 at 9-10 (showing that the misstatements and omissions alleged in the
State Action are generally the same as those alleged in this Action). Indeed, West
Virginia’s complaint includes significant portions of Lead Plaintiff’s SAC, copied
verbatim. See ECF No. 249 at 4-5 (listing portions of the SAC copied verbatim in
West Virginia’s complaint).

183. Defendants removed the State Action to federal court, but West
Virginia resisted consolidation with this Action and successfully moved to remand.
See Order, West Virginia v. STEC, No. 11-cv-01171 (C.D. Cal. Oct. 12, 2011)
(ECF No. 26).

184. On remand, Defendants filed demurrers and moved to stay the State
Action pending the outcome of this Action. West Virginia opposed the stay and
the demurrers. On February 17, 2012, the court presiding over the State Action
stayed that Action “pending the resolution of” this Action and declined to rule on

the defendants’ demurrers in light of the stay. See Order, West Virginia v. STEC
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(Cal. Super. Feb. 17, 2011). Therefore, the State Action has not yet survived the
defendants’ demurrers and has never been certified as a class action.

185. 1In September 2012, West Virginia filed a motion to lift the stay and,
in October 2012, West Virginia sought the opportunity to proceed with informal
discovery. The state court denied the motion to lift the stay as premature. See
Order, West Virginia v. STEC (Cal. Super. Oct. 18, 2012)."*

VIII. PLAINTIFFS VIGOROUSLY PROSECUTED
THE EXCHANGE ACT CLAIMS

A.  Plaintiffs Vigorously Prosecuted the EMC Agreement Claims

186. Plaintiffs reviewed publicly available documents and the voluminous
documents produced in discovery by Defendants and various third parties,
including EMC, the Other OEMs, Securities Analysts, the Underwriters, McKinsey
& Co., and STEC’s outside attorney, regarding the issues, some of which are
described, infra, that are relevant to these claims.

187. The deponents who were questioned regarding these same issues,
described, infra, included, without limitation, Defendant Manouch Moshayedi who
(1) made or participated in making all of the alleged misstatements and omissions
regarding the EMC Agreement, (i1) as STEC’s CEO, had ultimate authority over
sales, purchasing of supplies and communications with investors, and (ii1)
personally negotiated sales agreements with EMC and STEC’s other large
customers; Defendant Mark Moshayedi, who signed the EMC Agreement for
STEC, and who, as STEC’s Chief Technology Officer had intimate relations with
EMC and STEC’s other OEM customers; Anthony Anvari, STEC’s Vice President
of Sales in charge of sales to, among others, EMC; William Fahey, STEC’s

Director of Sales in charge of sales to EMC, who obtained information from EMC

'* Defendants in the State Action subsequently agreed to produce certain
documents to West Virginia. See Stipgplemental Joint Status Report at 2-3, West
Virginia v. STEC (Cal. Super. Nov. 28, 2012).
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about its expected demand and actual purchase orders for STEC’s ZeusIOPS,
including under the EMC Agreement, and who lived in relatively close proximity
to EMC’s headquarters and therefore had substantial in-person contact with
relevant EMC personnel; Mitch Gellman, STEC’s Investment Relations Officer;
Lorenzo Salhi, STEC’s former Vice President of Sales in charge of sales to
Hewlett-Packard and Cisco; Thomas Vogtman, STEC’s Strategic Accounts
Manager, in charge of sales to Hitachi; David Mittleman, partner at Reed Smith
LLP, which during the relevant time period was outside counsel for STEC; Trevor
Schick, who had ultimate authority for, and signed, the EMC Agreement on behalf
of EMC Corporation, and was Vice President of Global Supply Chain
Management and Chief procurement Officer at EMC; Timothy Smith, who, on
behalf of EMC, personally negotiated the EMC Agreement and other purchase
arrangements with STEC, and who was Senior Director, Disk Drive Global Supply
Chain Management at EMC; Christopher J. Casella, who during the relevant time
period played a key role in communicating EMC’s expected demand for ZeusIOPS
to STEC, and who was Senior Manager, Global Supply Chain management at
EMC; Cindy Reese, former Senior Vice President of Worldwide Operations at
Sun, and current Senior Vice President of Worldwide Operations at Oracle, who
personally negotiated with Manouch Moshayedi regarding Sun’s purchases from
STEC; Michael Desens, Vice President of System Z and Power Development at
IBM; Roberto Basilio, Vice President of Hardware Product Management at Hitachi
Data Systems Corp.; Mark Pridgen, Strategic Procurement Manager at Hewlett-
Packard Co.; and eight different securities analysts who covered STEC during the
relevant time period, including Gary Hsueh, formerly at Oppenheimer & Co., Inc.;
Kevin Vassily, at Pacific Crest Securities; Aaron C. Rakers, at Stifel Nicolaus;
Vijay R. Rakesh, at ThinkEquity LLC; Michael Roy Crawford, at B. Riley & Co.;
Betsy Van Hees, at Wedbush Securities, Inc.; Jeffrey Schreiner, at CapStone

Investments; and Sheri Scribner, at Deutsche Bank.
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188. Issues relevant to this claim for which documents were reviewed and
deponents were questioned include, without limitation: based on Defendants
alleged misstatements and omissions, what did investors understand Defendants to
be telling them about the nature of the EMC Agreement; what did Defendants want
investors to believe about the EMC Agreement; what did Defendants believe they
were telling investors about the EMC Agreement; what cautionary statements did
Defendants believe investors should hear regarding the EMC Agreement; what
cautionary statements did Defendants actually make; did the cautionary statements
change over time, and, if so, when, how and why; what was the text of the EMC
Agreement; at the time of the negotiation and execution of the EMC Agreement,
how was it characterized by EMC; what was EMC’s motive for executing the
EMC Agreement, and to what extent were Defendants aware of that motive; prior
to the making of Defendants’ alleged false statements and omissions regarding the
EMC Agreement, what were EMC’s forecasts regarding its future demand for
ZeuslIOPS, and to what extent were Defendants aware of those forecasts; at the
time when Defendants made their alleged misstatements and omissions, what were
STEC’s internal forecasts of EMC’s future demand; pursuant to its normal
business practices, how far ahead did Defendants usually know the size of its OEM
customers purchases of ZeusIOPS, and, in particular, the size of EMC’s purchases
of ZeusIOPS; what was the relationship, if any, between expectations for the
timing of the emergence of competition for the ZeusIOPS and the likelihood that
the EMC Agreement would be renewed, and what was the expected timing for
such emergence of competition; at the time when Defendants made their alleged
misstatements and omissions, what were Defendants’ expectations regarding future
changes in end-user demand, and what was, or would have been, the reasonably
expected effect of those changes, in combination with the emergence of
competition for the ZeusIOPS, on EMC’s demand for the ZeusIOPS; what was the
actual effect on EMC’s demand for the ZeusIOPS when competition finally
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emerged; what relationship, if any, was there between EMC renewing the volume
commitment made under the EMC Agreement, and the size of EMC’s likely
purchases after the termination of the period governed by the EMC Agreement;
what light might be shed on the answer to the previous question based on
Defendants’ motive for executing the EMC Agreement, and/or by STEC’s efforts
to obtain volume commitments regarding ZeusIOPS from its other OEM
customers; how does Defendants’ conduct after making the alleged misstatements
and omissions reflect on Defendants’ knowledge of the falsity of their statements
and materiality of their omissions at the time when those alleged misstatements
and omissions were made; aside from their alleged false statements and omissions,
did Defendants make other efforts to hide the truth regarding the EMC Agreement;
when did Defendants first learn that EMC might have excess inventory of
ZeusIOPS at the end of 2009 that EMC would carry into 2010; what was the
reason for the Moshayedi Defendants cancelling their 10b5-1 plans for selling their
STEC stock gradually, over a long period of time, and was this related to their
knowledge of the falsity of their statements and omissions regarding the EMC
Agreement; what was the reason for the Offering and its timing; did Defendants
deal truthfully or falsely with investors regarding matters other than the EMC
Agreement; and, during the relevant period, what was the credibility of EMC’s
Timothy Smith and Trevor Schick, and did Defendants reasonably believe that
Smith and Schick had a motive to mislead Defendants?

189. One of the facts discovered by Plaintiffs through discovery was that,
although EMC had committed under the EMC Agreement to purchase $120
million of ZeusIOPS during the second half of 2009, only days before Defendants
made alleged misstatements and omissions regarding the EMC Agreement in the
Prospectus and during STEC’s 2009 second quarter earnings conference call, EMC
told STEC it did not need more than $33-34 million of ZeusIOPS in the 2009 third

quarter, and thereafter, but still prior to the filing of the Prospectus and convening
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of STEC’s earnings conference call, Manouch Moshayedi and EMC’s Timothy
Smith agreed to a secret deal pursuant to which EMC committed to purchase $55
million of ZeusIOPS during the 2009 third quarter, and, in return, STEC agreed to
give EMC an additional approximate $2 million discount on its 2009 fourth quarter
purchases of ZeusIOPS.

190. Another fact discovered by Plaintiffs through discovery was that, just
hours before the filing of the Prospectus, Manouch Moshayedi received an e-mail
from EMC’s Timothy Smith, stating, among other things, “I think I can say with a
high degree of confidence that our most recent volume commitment deal will be
our last.”

191. Through document discovery and depositions, Plaintiffs investigated
the extent to which the foregoing secret deal and email from Timothy Smith to
Manouch Moshayedi support or contradict the falsity of Defendants’ statements
and omissions regarding the EMC Agreement, and Defendants’ scienter for those
statements and omissions. This investigation included, without limitation, an
investigation of the content of the deal and email, an investigation of the context in
which the deal and email occurred, the contemporaneous understanding of these
transactions by the parties involved, the possible motives of the parties to these
transactions, and how securities analysts, and, thus, investors would have reacted
had they known about these transactions.

192. The evidence obtained by Plaintiffs regarding the foregoing secret
deal and email is among the evidence featured prominently in Plaintiffs’
Interrogatory Responses.

193. Approximately three weeks after Plaintiffs served Defendants with
Plaintiffs’ Interrogatory Responses, the SEC publicly disclosed the existence of the
foregoing secret deal and email, by referencing the deal and email in the SEC’s
complaint filed in this Court against Manouch Moshayedi. See SEC v. Moshayedi,
No. 12-cv-01179-JVS-MLG (C.D. Cal. July 19, 2012) (ECF No. 1).
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B.  Plaintiffs Vigorously Prosecuted the Other OEMs Claims

194. Plaintiffs reviewed publicly available documents and the voluminous
documents produced in discovery by Defendants and various third parties,
including the Other OEMs, Cisco, Smart Modular Technologies, Inc., Securities
Analysts, the Underwriters, and STEC’s outside counsel during the relevant
period—Reed Smith LLP—regarding the issues, some of which are described,
infra, that are relevant to these claims.

195. The deponents who were questioned regarding these same issues,
described, infra, included, without limitation, Defendant Manouch Moshayedi who
(1) made or participated in making all of the alleged misstatements and omissions
regarding the Other OEMs, and IBM, (ii) as STEC’s CEO, had ultimate authority
over sales, purchasing of supplies and communications with investors, and (iii)
who personally negotiated sales agreements with Sun; Defendant Mark
Moshayedi, who as STEC’s Chief Technology Officer had intimate relations with
each of the Other OEMs; Defendant Raymond Cook, STEC’s CFO, who signed
the September 10, 2009, letter from STEC to the SEC; Mike Higa, STEC’s Senior
Vice President of Finance, who sometimes circulated internal STEC forecasts of
sales in upcoming quarters; Mitch Gellman, STEC’s Investment Relations Officer;
Anthony Anvari, who (1) was STEC’s Vice President of Sales in charge of sales to,
among others, IBM, and (ii) participated in the drafting certain of STEC’s press
releases relevant to this claim; Lorenzo Salhi, STEC’s former Vice President of
Sales in charge of sales to Hewlett-Packard and Cisco; Thomas Vogtman, STEC’s
Strategic Accounts Manager, in charge of sales to Hitachi; Christopher Wood, Jr.,
former chief technologist for the storage division at Sun; Gloria Alvarado, former
HP sales coordinator for STEC; David Mittleman, partner at Reed Smith LLP,
which during the relevant time period was outside counsel for STEC; Cindy Reese,
former Senior Vice President of Worldwide Operations at Sun, and current Senior

Vice President of Worldwide Operations at Oracle, who personally negotiated with
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Manouch Moshayedi regarding Sun’s purchases from STEC; Michael Desens,
Vice President of System Z and Power Development at IBM; Roberto Basilio,
Vice President of Hardware Product Management at Hitachi Data Systems Corp.;
Mark Pridgen, Strategic Procurement Manager at Hewlett-Packard Co.; and eight
different securities analysts who covered STEC during the relevant time period,
including Gary Hsueh, formerly at Oppenheimer & Co., Inc.; Kevin Vassily, at
Pacific Crest Securities; Aaron C. Rakers, at Stifel Nicolaus; Vijay R. Rakesh, at
ThinkEquity LLC; Michael Roy Crawford, at B. Riley & Co.; Betsy Van Hees, at
Wedbush Securities, Inc.; Jeffrey Schreiner, at CapStone Investments; and Sheri
Scribner, at Deutsche Bank.

196. Issues relevant to this claim for which documents were reviewed and
deponents were questioned include, without limitation: What was the amount of
STEC’s sales of ZeusIOPS to each of the Other OEMs during the second half of
2009; how did this compare to STEC’s sales of ZeusIOPS to the same customers
during the first half of 2009, both for each individual OEM, and for the Other
OEMs in the aggregate; what was the amount of STEC’s sales of ZeusIOPS to
each of its Other OEM customers in each quarter of 2009, and does the variation
among quarters show any trend different from the trend between halves of the year;
what was the universe of statements made by Defendants during the relevant time
period regarding (i) expected sales of ZeusIOPS to the Other OEMs, (i1) expected
sales of ZeusIOPS to IBM, and (ii1) whether IBM was selling the ZeusIOPS as a
standard feature in certain of its systems; what did securities analysts, and, thus,
investors understand Defendants to be stating regarding (i) expected sales to the
Other OEMs, (i1) expected sales to IBM, and (i11) whether IBM was selling the
ZeusIOPS as a standard feature in certain of its systems; in retrospect, how do
Defendants understand their own statements; what was Defendants’ intention in
drafting the relevant portion of the September 10, 2009, letter to the SEC; at the

time when Defendants made their alleged misstatements; what did Defendants,
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any individual Defendant, or any other STEC or OEM employee actually expect
regarding (1) future sales to the Other OEMs, (i1) future sales to IBM, (ii1) whether
IBM was selling the ZeusIOPS as a standard feature in certain of its systems; and
(iv) whether a replacement for EMC could be found under the EMC Agreement or
a similar contract; what was the amount of supplies for building ZeusIOPS drives
ordered by STEC during the relevant time period, and does that amount of supplies
provide evidence of Defendants’ expectations regarding future sales of ZeusIOPS;
during the relevant time period, what did each of STEC’s OEM customers tell
Defendants about their expected future purchases of ZeusIOPS; did Defendants
have non-public discussions with securities analysts regarding future sales of
ZeusIOPS to the Other OEMs, or, specifically, IBM, and, if so, what was the
content of those discussions; apart from Defendants’ allegedly false statements
regarding the Other OEMs and IBM, is there other evidence of an intention on the
part of Defendants to mislead investors regarding expected sales to the Other
OEMs and IBM; how, if at all, did the history of ZeusIOPS sales to each of
STEC’s OEM customers impact Defendants’ ability to estimate sales to each OEM
in the near future; what efforts did Defendants make to obtain volume
commitments from each of the Other OEMs, what was the result of such efforts,
and how did that result impact likely future sales to the Other OEMs; and how did
Defendants react, both privately and publicly, to information showing that sales to
the Other OEMs and IBM were below Defendants’ previously announced

expectations?

C. Plaintiffs Vigorously Prosecuted the Inflated Revenues Claims

197. Plaintiffs reviewed publicly available documents and documents
produced in discovery by Defendants and various third parties, including EMC and
the Other OEMs, relating to, inter alia, STEC’s reported revenue; STEC’s revenue
guidance; STEC’s anticipated, forecast, or estimated sales of ZeusIOPS to its

customers; STEC’s anticipated, forecast, or estimated revenue from ZeusIOPS
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sales; any decline in STEC’s ZeusIOPS sales, whether in total, or in regard to any
specific customer; customers’ projected or actual requirements of ZeusIOPS;
ZeusIOPS inventory held by customers; communications between STEC and its
customers regarding ZeusIOPS; customers’ production of systems incorporating
ZeusIOPS; STEC’s purchase of inventory; any discount STEC gave to a customer
in return for such customer advancing purchases; and research reports published by
financial analysts concerning STEC’s sales and revenues.

198. Plaintiffs also reviewed documents produced by PwC, STEC’s
auditor, relating to the procedures applied, work performed, evidence obtained, and
conclusions reached in the auditing engagement (“workpapers”) concerning, inter
alia, PwC’s quarterly review of STEC’s 2009 second quarter revenue and PwC’s
interim audit testing concerning STEC’s 2009 second quarter revenue.

199. Co-Lead Counsel questioned numerous deponents about Defendants’
alleged inflation of STEC’s reported revenues for the second quarter of 2009:

(a) Defendant Cook and Michael Higa (“Higa”), Senior Vice
President of Finance at STEC, were questioned about STEC’s revenue recognition
policies. Raymond Cook Dep. Tr. at 159; Michael Higa Dep. Tr. at 17-23."

(b)  Christopher Casella, Manager of Global Supply Chain at EMC,
was questioned about return material authorization and negative revenue
recognition. Christopher Casella Dep. Tr. at 111-14.

(c) Co-Lead Counsel questioned numerous deponents about
whether Defendants engaged in channel stuffing in order to inflate STEC’s
reported revenues:

(1) Defendant Manouch Moshayedi and Cindy Reese

(“Reese”), Senior Vice President of Sun, were questioned about Manouch

" Lead Plaintiff is not filing the deposition transcripts cited herein because they
are generally designated confidential. See ECF Nos. 224 and 225.
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Moshayedi’s insistence that Sun purchase more STEC products than it actually
needed. See Manouch Moshayedi Dep. Tr. at 192-94; Cindy Reese Dep. Tr. at 33-
35.

(11))  William Fahey (“Fahey”), Director of Sales at STEC,
was questioned about excess inventory at EMC and shipping products to EMC at a
time when EMC did not want additional products. William Fahey Dep. Tr. at 143-
60, 201-04.

(i11)  Anthony Anvari (““‘Anvari”), Vice President of Sales at
STEC, was quested about Manouch Moshayedi’s instruction to ship everything he
could in the second quarter of 2009. Anthony Anvari Dep. Tr. at 152-55.

(iv)  Higa was questioned about timing shipments according
to internal revenue targets and incentives to sales employees. Michael Higa Dep.
Tr. at 33-40.

(v) Thomas Vogtman (“Vogtman”), Director of Program
Management — Japan Sales at STEC, was questioned about internal pressure to
ship products. Thomas Vogtman Dep. Tr. at 101-02.

(vi)  Mark Pridgen (“Pridgen”), Strategic Procurement
Manager of HP, was questioned about STEC’s insistence that HP increase
volumes; HP’s inventory of and demand for ZeusIOPS; pulling forward July
purchase orders into June; and STEC’s refusal to push out purchase orders. Mark
Pridgen Dep. Tr. at 74-77, 93-118.

(vil)  Michael Desens, Vice President of System and Power
Development at IBM, was questioned about the timing of shipments from STEC
and pushing out orders. Michael Desens Dep. Tr. at 40-41.

(viii))  Lorenzo Salhi (“Salhi”), former Director of Sales for
OEMs at STEC, was questioned about, inter alia, STEC sales employees inflating
sales and revenue figures; pulling purchase orders from future quarters into earlier

quarters; STEC’s refusal to cancel orders; excess inventory held by HP and
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STEC’s attempts to advance shipments to HP; offering discounts to dissuade
customers from cancelling orders or to convince customers to take shipments early;
and the timing of sales to Cisco. Lorenzo Salhi Dep. Tr. at 87, 163, 151-59, 185-
89, 193-94.

(ix) Kevin Vassily (“Vassily”), Senior Research Analyst at
Pacific Crest, was asked about STEC’s allegedly false guidance and financial
reporting and whether STEC engaged in channel stuffing to increase its revenues.
Kevin Vassily Dep. Tr. at 263, 270-74.

(x) Michael Crawford (“Crawford”), Director of Research at
B. Riley & Co., was asked about channel stuffing and whether STEC engaged in
channel stuffing. Michael Crawford Dep. Tr. at 117-18, 215.

(d) Co-Lead Counsel also questioned several deponents about
whether Defendants knowingly shipped defective products in order to inflate
STEC’s reported revenues:

(1) Defendant Mark Moshayedi was questioned about HP
issuing a stop shipment order because it had received defective products. Mark
Moshayedi Dep. Tr. at 128-29.

(i1) Pridgen was questioned about HP returning defective and
unwanted products to STEC and STEC improperly charging HP for shipments.
Mark Pridgen Dep. Tr. at 48-49, 57.

(111)  Vogtman was questioned about shipping defective
products to Hitachi. Thomas Vogtman Dep. Tr. at 102-21.

(iv)  Salhi was questioned about intentionally shipping
defective products. Lorenzo Salhi Dep. Tr. at 173-74.

200. Co-Lead Counsel reviewed the transcripts of depositions taken by the
SEC, including the deposition of Defendant Mark Moshayedi, who was questioned
by the SEC about STEC’s revenue recognition policies and moving EMC’s buffer
inventory to fill revenue gaps. Mark Moshayedi SEC Dep. Tr. at 34, 192-94.
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201. Co-Lead Counsel attended the deposition of CW2, a marketing
employee for one of STEC’s customers, who was questioned by Defendants about
STEC shipping empty boxes, defective products, and products that were not
ordered. CW2 Dep. Tr. at 43-45, 73.

202. Co-Lead Counsel attended the deposition of CW3, a former sales
employee at STEC, who was questioned by Defendants about shipping defective
products; incorrectly reporting product failures to HP; shipping products to HP
despite a stop order; and moving sales into an earlier quarter to inflate sales

numbers. CW3 Dep. Tr. at 29-39, 43, 48-54.
D.  Plaintiffs Vigorously Prosecuted the Competition Claim

203. Plaintiffs reviewed publicly available documents and documents
produced in discovery by Defendants and various third parties, including EMC, the
Other OEMs, and financial analysts who covered STEC during the Class Period,
relating to, inter alia, actual and projected competition for STEC’s ZeusIOPS.

204. Plaintiffs reviewed documents relating to the September 17, 2009
research report issued by Betsy Van Hees (“Van Hees”), a Publishing Analyst at
Wedbush (the “Wedbush Report™), which asserted that there would be competition
for STEC’s ZeusIOPS by the fourth quarter of 2009. See ECF No. 335-7.

205. Co-Lead Counsel questioned numerous deponents about competition
for STEC’s ZeusIOPS and investigated, e.g., whether EMC was planning not to
renew the EMC Agreement because it expected to start purchasing more cheaply
from STEC’s competitors and whether STEC knew that and whether the Other
OEMs were refraining from purchasing from STEC because they were expecting
competition to emerge and force STEC to lower its pricing. Several analysts were
also questioned about whether the issue of developing competition was important
to them and what they thought ultimately was disclosed about competition. Both
Plaintiffs and Defendants sought to elicit information about STEC’s competition to

support their side of the case.
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(a) Defendant Manouch Moshayedi was questioned about, inter
alia, competitors selling enterprise SSDs in 2009; the announcement in 2009 by
Hitachi and Intel, Inc. of plans to jointly develop enterprise SSD products, with the
first shipments expected in early 2010; whether in 2009 other companies
announced plans to enter the market; whether in 2009 EMC expected STEC to
have competition; exclusivity agreements with customers and whether they were
necessary if STEC was the only supplier; EMC’s purchases from competitors in
2010 and competitors’ pricing for EMC; EMC’s qualification of competitors’
products; and potential competition from Samsung. Manouch Moshayedi Dep. Tr.
at 81, 84-88, 99, 103-104, 204-206, 230-31, 302-306.

(b) Defendant Mark Moshayedi was questioned about competition
for STEC’s SSDs in 2007; competitive products first manufactured by Samsung
and Hitachi in the second half of 2010; EMC’s qualification of Samsung as a
competitor; Seagate’s announced plans to release an enterprise SSD; the
announcement in 2009 by Hitachi and Intel, Inc. of plans to jointly develop
enterprise SSD products, with the first shipments expected in early 2010; and
collaboration between Sun and Micron to develop enterprise SSDs. Mark
Moshayedi Dep. Tr. at 19-20, 137-38, 140-42.

(c) Defendant Cook was questioned about competition for STEC’s
ZeusIOPS in 2009; the Wedbush Report and other analyst reports in 2009
regarding competition in the SSD market; and pressure on STEC’s stock because
of competition. Raymond Cook Dep. Tr. at 31-32, 132-36.

(d) Fahey was questioned about competition for STEC’s ZeusIOPS
in 2008; other SSD suppliers offering price quotes to EMC for the 2011 time-
frame; Samsung’s pricing and Samsung’s SSDs expected to be qualified in 2010;
and competition from Sandforce and Hitachi. William Fahey Dep. Tr. at 123-25,
130-31, 136-38.
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(e)  Anvari and Vogtman were also questioned about competition
for STEC’s ZeusIOPS. Anthony Anvari Dep. Tr. at 146; Thomas Vogtman Dep.
Tr. at 24-25.

(f)  Timothy Smith, Senior Director at EMC, was questioned about
STEC’s ZeusIOPS and the development and availability to EMC of competitive
products; and STEC’s pricing prior to EMC’s qualification of a competitor.
Timothy Smith Dep. Tr. at 97-100, 181.

(g)  Tevor Schick, Vice President and Chief Procurement Officer at
EMC, who executed the EMC Agreement on behalf of EMC, was questioned about
his expectations—at the time when he executed the EMC Agreement—regarding
when there would be competition for STEC’s ZeusIOPS; and whether he ever
purchased SSDs from other manufacturers while working for EMC. Trevor Schick
Dep. Tr. at 58:14-62:22; 81:2-84:23.

(h)  During the deposition of Trevor Schick, Plaintiffs’ attorney
explained the relevance of a certain question he was asking by saying, “[t]he
history of EMC’s purchases from STEC and the context of those purchases and the
competition is all very essential to this case.” Trevor Schick Dep. Tr. at 84:6-9.

(1)  Reese was questioned about STEC’s pricing and Sun’s interest
in various other suppliers as potential replacements for STEC. Cindy Reese Dep.
Tr. at 17-19.

()  Pridgen was questioned about HP’s purchases of SSDs from
Samsung. Mark Pridgen Dep. Tr. at 70.

(k)  Christopher Casella, Manager of Global Supply Chain for SSDs
at EMC, was questioned about conversations around January 2010 with
competitors or potential competitors of STEC about pricing. Christopher Casella
Dep. Tr. at 116-17.

(1) Van Hees was questioned about the EMC Agreement and

protection for STEC from its competitors; her industry checks regarding
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competition; the Wedbush Report; competition from Samsung; and her concerns
that the competitive landscape would likely pose challenges to STEC’s earnings
and revenues in the second half of 2010. Van Hees Dep. Tr. at 18-19, 80-82, 93-
95, 125-28. During that deposition, Van Hees was also questioned by Defendants
about her industry expectations in the middle of 2009 and in 2010; and statements
by EMC that it was actively working with competitors and looking for a second
source for enterprise SSDs. Id. at 203-207.

(m) Gary Hsueh, Executive Director at Oppenheimer, discussed
STEC’s competition in response to questions asked by Co-Lead Counsel at various
points during his deposition. Gary Hsueh Dep. Tr. at 102-103, 112-13, 131. He
was also questioned by Defendants about his suspicion or concern about intensified
competition or the possibility that EMC might be qualifying a second source for
SSDs and whether EMC ever qualified a second source. Id. at 162-63, 198-99.

(n)  Vassily was questioned about the competitive pressures on
STEC and a setback at Seagate, one of STEC’s potential competitors. Kevin
Vassily Dep. Tr. at 55-56, 73, 78-79. During that deposition, Vassily was also
questioned by Defendants about competition in 2009 and 2010 for STEC’s
ZeusIOPS; his statement in an analyst report that, as of June 2009, legitimate
competition in the enterprise storage space was still at least three to four quarters
away; sources of information published in his analyst reports regarding STEC’s
competition; rumors of impending competition around November 2009; and the
competitive landscape as of February 24, 2010. Id. at 195-203, 252-55.

(o) Aaron Rakers (“Rakers”), Managing Director and Senior
Analyst at Stifel Nicolaus, was questioned about whether he had an understanding
that the EMC Agreement would continue and EMC potentially sourcing SSDs
from a company other than STEC in the future; statements in his analyst reports
that, as of July 2009, his checks continued to suggest that there would be no viable
competitor to STEC in the market for enterprise SSDs until mid-2010; the sources
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of information published in his analyst reports regarding STEC’s competition;
EMC’s interest in other SSD suppliers. Aaron Rakers Dep. Tr. at 49-54, 75-76.
During that deposition, Rakers was also questioned by Defendants about
conversations with EMC regarding STEC’s competitive position. Id. at 164.

(p) Vijay Rakesh (“Rakesh”), Think Equity’s Analyst covering
semiconductors, was questioned about STEC’s competition in September 2009 and
November 2009; the potential for competition for STEC’s ZeusIOPS; his estimate
that competition would come in early 2010; and his conversations with Defendant
Manouch Moshayedi regarding the competitive landscape. Vijay Rakesh Dep. Tr.
at 88-89, 123-27, 130, 136. During that deposition, Rakesh was also questioned by
Defendants about a statement in his March 13, 2009 analyst report that aggressive
competition for SSDs was on the horizon; analyst reports citing competition as a
risk to STEC in his analyst reports; and STEC’s competition at or around the time
of the Offering. Id. at 147-49, 154, 172-73, 182, 199-201.

(@) Crawford was questioned about competition as a risk factor
STEC faced. Michael Crawford Dep. Tr. at 239. During that deposition, Crawford|
was also questioned by Defendants about the risk that prices and margins would be
affected when other vendors emerged as competitors and investor concern
regarding when and whether a competitor might emerge. /d. at 179-80, 184-85.

(r)  Jeffrey Schreiner, Senior Research Analyst at Capstone, was
questioned about the EMC Agreement and protection for STEC from its
competitors, as well as the competitive landscape in 2009. Jeffrey Schreiner Dep.
Tr. at 61-62, 95-97, 116-17.

206. Co-Lead Counsel attended the deposition of Steven L. Henning,
Ph.D., CPA, an expert retained by Lead Plaintiff, who was questioned by
Defendants about whether he was aware of any suppliers of enterprise SSDs in
2009 other than STEC and when STEC’s competitors were qualified with EMC.
Steven Henning Dep. Tr. at 130-32.
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207. Co-Lead Counsel reviewed the transcripts of depositions taken by the
SEC, during which several deponents were questioned about STEC’s competition:

(a) Defendant Manouch Moshayedi was asked by the SEC about
competition around the time of the EMC Agreement and in 2010; communications
with EMC regarding competitors and competitive pricing; and what Fahey and
Chris Coeney, a field application engineer, both of whom were at the EMC factory,
told him regarding EMC’s alternatives to STEC’s ZeusIOPS. Manouch
Moshayedi SEC Dep. Tr. at 251-57, 261, 264.

(b) Defendant Mark Moshayedi was asked by the SEC about
communications in 2009 and 2010 with EMC regarding competitors and
competitive pricing. Mark Moshayedi SEC Dep. Tr. at 142-44, 207-08.

(c) Masoud (“Mike”) Moshayedi, who co-founded STEC with his
brothers Manouch and Mark Moshayedi and was President of the Company prior
to his retirement in 2007, was questioned by the SEC about the Wedbush Report
and what Manouch and Mark Moshayedi told him regarding STEC’s competition.
Mike Moshayedi SEC Dep. Tr. at 130-31, 136-37.

(d) Fahey was questioned by the SEC regarding when he heard
about competition from EMC and whether in 2010 EMC would qualify other
suppliers. William Fahey SEC Dep. Tr. at 89-92.

(e) Co-Lead Counsel attended the deposition of Roberto Basilio,
Vice President of Hardware Product Management at Hitachi, who was questioned
by Defendants about whether in 2009 Hitachi procured SSDs from manufacturers
other than STEC and when other suppliers became available to Hitachi. Roberto
Basilio Dep. Tr. at 24-28.
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IX. PLAINTIFFS VIGOROUSLY PROSECUTED
THE SECURITIES ACT CLAIMS

A.  Plaintiffs Vigorously Prosecuted the Securities Act Claims
Through Their Vigorous Prosecution of the Exchange Act Claims

208. The Exchange Act Claims and the Securities Act Claims alleged in
this Action are based on the same factual predicate.'® Every misstatement or
omission alleged under the Securities Act is identical to one or more of the
misstatements or omissions alleged under the Exchange Act, compare 99 46-321
with 99 356-85—except for the alleged omission, under the Securities Act, to file
the EMC Agreement with the SEC, see 9 101."” Therefore, every effort to discover
evidence sufficient to prove the elements of the Exchange Act Claims was,
necessarily, an effort to prove the smaller set of elements comprising the related
Securities Act Claims.

209. Plaintiffs conducted an extensive pre-discovery investigation, which
included, inter alia,

(a) review and analysis of documents filed publicly by Defendants
with the SEC;

(b) review and analysis of press releases, news articles, and other
public statements issued by or concerning Defendants;

(c) review and analysis of research reports issued by financial
analysts concerning STEC’s securities and business;

(d) interviews of former STEC employees;

(e) interviews of employees and former employees of computer

manufacturing companies; and

' The Court has previously recognized that the Exchange Act Claims and the
Securities Act Claims are based on a “unified course of fraudulent conduct”, see
ECF No.175 at 4, 14, and the “same foundation of facts”, ECF No. 279 at 12.

' The factual details regarding the omission to file the EMC Agreement with the
SEC (in violation of the Securities Act) are Eart of the allegations under the

t

Exchange Act because the omission to file the EMC Agreement is also evidence of
scienter. See 9 100-12.
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(f) review and analysis of news articles, media reports, and other
publications concerning the computer industry.

210. Plaintiffs engaged in significant and meaningful discovery regarding
the facts underlying the Action.

(a) Co-Lead Counsel served interrogatories and notices to produce
documents on Defendants, which resulted in the production by Defendants of more
than 1.7 million pages of documents, including documents previously produced by
Defendants to the SEC in connection with the SEC’s related investigation of STEC
and the Moshayedis (the “SEC Investigation”).

(b) Co-Lead Counsel also obtained over 1 million pages of
documents from third parties, including EMC, the Other OEMs, the Underwriters,
STEC’s auditor PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (“PwC”), and financial analysts who
covered STEC during the Class Period.

(c) Co-Lead Counsel deposed more than two dozen witnesses,
including Defendants and certain of their employees and various third parties,
including employees of EMC and the Other OEMs, as well as financial analysts
who covered STEC during the Class Period."®

211. The Parties exchanged expert reports, with each side retaining
multiple experts. Reports were rendered on the subjects of Class Members’
damages, the role of financial analysts in the market, the response of analysts to
Defendants’ misrepresentations and omissions, and Defendants’ duties under

regulations promulgated by the SEC."”

'S Pursuant to a stipulation with Defendants, Plaintiffs were allowed to take 30
de}i)ositions. ECF No. 62.

’ Depositions of the experts were scheduled to occur, and the Court’s deadline
for filing summarg Jqument motions was fast approaching, prior to the scheduled
November 6, 2012 trial date, when the Parties reached a settlement.
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B.  Plaintiffs Continuously Searched for a Plaintiff
with Standing to Allege the Securities Act Claims

212. Throughout the prosecution of this Action, including during discovery
and depositions, Plaintiffs diligently searched for a representative plaintiff with
standing to assert the Securities Act Claims.*

213. Among other reasons for Plaintiffs’ continuing search for a Securities
Act representative plaintiff, on January 5, 2012, during the first mediation,
Defendants communicated to Plaintiffs that Defendants would not settle unless the
Securities Act Claims were included in the settlement.

214. The Court held that, to have standing to bring the Securities Act
Claims, a plaintiff must have purchased or otherwise acquired STEC stock
traceable to the Offering and held that stock until at least after the first alleged
partial corrective disclosure, which, in the SAC, was after the close of trading on
November 4, 2009. See ECF No. 314 at 2.

215. None of the plaintiffs who filed the seven initial complaints, the
Consolidated Complaint, and/or motions for appointment as lead plaintiff alleged
that they purchased or otherwise acquired STEC stock pursuant or traceable to the
Offering and held that stock until at least November 4, 2009.'

216. On March 7, 2012, the Court stayed the action for all purposes other
than discovery, to permit Plaintiffs to find a class representative with standing. See
ECF No. 279 at 21 (staying Action for 60 days for all purposes other than
discovery to permit Plaintiffs to find a class representative with standing).

217. On April 19, 2012, after having taken twenty-two of its twenty-five

fact depositions, Lead Plaintiff still was vigorously searching for a Securities Act

*% See ECF No. 314 at 7 (“Should Plaintiffs discover an adequate Securities Act
repres;,e)ntatlve upon Class notification, the Court may revisit the class certification
issue.”).

2! Oncl?r one of the initial complaints alle%ed Securities Act Claims. See Class
Action Complaint for Violation of Federal Securities Laws Eﬂ 104-21, Sakhai v.
STEC, Inc., No. 8:09-cv-01306-JVS-MLG (C.D. Cal. Nov. 6, 2009) (ECF No. 1).
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representative plaintiff. Compare, e.g., ECF No. 288 (stipulation, dated April 4,
2012, explaining that only three of Lead Plaintiff’s twenty-five fact depositions
remained to be taken), with ECF No. 307-2 (letter from Lead Plaintiff, dated April
19, 2012, seeking Securities Act representative plaintiff).

218. Inits Order, dated June 19, 2012, the Court concluded that Lead
Plaintiff had “reasonably exhausted all avenues for discovering an adequate
Securities Act representative.” See ECF No. 314 at 3-4 (reciting Lead Plaintiff’s
efforts, during the 60 day stay, to find a Securities Act representative plaintiff who
had purchased in the Offering, and who had held until at least November 4, 2009);
see also ECF No. 307-1 (declaration by Co-Lead Counsel, detailing search efforts
made during the stay) & 307-2 (exhibits to Co-Lead Counsel’s declaration).

219. Following the July 30, 2012 mediation, Plaintiffs broadened their
criteria for a Securities Act representative plaintiff to include purchasers in the
Offering who held until the September 17, 2009 disclosure related to the
Competition Claim. Dr. Ripperda, who purchased on the Offering and held
through September 17, 2009, agreed to serve as a Securities Act representative
plaintiff and retained Thomas Bienert and Robert Green as his counsel.

C. Plaintiffs Vigorously Prosecuted Claims Relating to the Offering

220. Among the topics thoroughly investigated during discovery by
Plaintiffs were those relating to the nature of the Offering and how it compared to
the Moshayedis’ history of trading, the Moshayedis’ motivations for the Offering,
the process by which the Offering was approved by STEC, the essential
simultaneity of the Offering with the alleged misstatements and material
omissions, the specifics of the alleged misstatements and material omissions—
which were made primarily in the Registration Statement and Prospectus, and in
the Form 10-Q incorporated into the Registration Statement and Prospectus—and
Defendants’ knowledge at the time of the Offering that their statements were false

and their omissions were material.
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221. On August 3, 2009, STEC filed with the SEC, and thereby made
public, the registration statement and prospectus for a secondary offering of STEC
stock comprised entirely of stock owned by Manouch and Mark Moshayedi (the
“Registration Statement,” “Prospectus” and “Offering”), as well as STEC’s Form
10-Q for the 2009 second quarter. The Prospectus is incorporated by reference
into the Registration Statement. The Form 10-Q is incorporated by reference into
both the Prospectus and Registration Statement.

222. The Offering closed on August 11, 2009.

223. As part of discovery, Plaintiffs evaluated the unusualness of the
number of shares sold by Manouch and Mark Moshayedi in the Offering, by
obtaining and reviewing documents filed with the SEC, and documents produced
herein by Defendants, regarding Manouch and Mark Moshayedis’ holdings of
STEC stock; their sales in, and profits from, the Offering; and their trading in
STEC stock during the six years between STEC’s IPO and the Offering. Plaintiffs
also questioned Manouch and Mark Moshayedi about this subject during each of
their depositions, including what they did with their proceeds from the Offering.
To shed further light on this subject, Plaintiffs also investigated the history of
trading in STEC stock by Mike Moshayedi, the brother of Manouch and Mark,
who was retired at the time of the Offering. Plaintiffs obtained and reviewed more
than 6,400 pages of documents produced by Mike Moshayedi, documents filed
with the SEC regarding his trading history, and the transcript of a deposition of
Mike Moshayedi taken by the SEC.

224. Also as part of discovery, Plaintiffs investigated Manouch and Mark
Moshayedis’ motivations for conducting the Offering, including the Moshayedis’
decision to sell STEC shares as part of the Offering rather than pursuant to Rule
10b5-1 trading plans created by Manouch and Mark in the spring of 2009, or
pursuant to certain other arrangements that were suggested by investment banks

other than the Underwriters for the Offering. Plaintiffs obtained from Defendants
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and reviewed the 10b5-1 trading plans, including, without limitation, the plans
created by Manouch and Mark for trading shares of STEC stock held by Manouch
or Mark as a trustee for other family members. Plaintiffs also obtained from
Defendants and reviewed documents relating to STEC’s insider trading policy.
Plaintiffs also obtained from Defendants and reviewed relevant emails and other
communications, including communications between Manouch and Mark
Moshayedi, and communications between one or both of the Moshayedis and third
persons, including STEC employees, personal investment advisers, and even
customers. During his deposition, Manouch was asked about, among other
relevant things, statements by him prior to the Offering that he wanted to sell his
stock at a certain price, his reason for cancelling his 10b5-1 plans, his reasons for
rejecting a competing proposal made by an investment bank other than the
Underwriters, the level of advance investor interest in the Offering, the expected
effect of the Offering on the price of STEC stock, and Manouch’s need to
approve—and therefore know the contents of—Mark’s 10b5-1 plans. During
Mark Moshayedi’s deposition he was asked about, among other relevant things, his
reasons for selling his stock through the Offering rather than through his
pre-existing 10b5-1 plans, the timing of the decision to make the sales through the
Offering, the price of STEC stock at the time when the decision to sell through the
Offering was made, the expected effect of the Offering on the price of STEC stock
and his communications with Manouch and others regarding possible alternative
methods for the sale of his STEC stock.

225. Also as part of discovery, Plaintiffs investigated the process by which
the approval of STEC’s board of directors was obtained for the Offering, including
by, among other things, obtaining and reviewing the minutes of relevant board
meetings, and by deposing the Moshayedis and other relevant witnesses regarding
this subject. For example, Defendant Raymond Cook, STEC’s CFO and member

of the board of directors, was questioned during his deposition regarding the timing
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and process by which the board approved the Offering, Cook’s knowledge of the
Moshayedis’ motive for the Offering, prior involvement with the Moshayedis’
10b5-1 trading plans by Cook and STEC’s board of directors, the selection of the
Underwriters for the Offering, meetings with the Underwriters, the intended and
actual operation of the over-allotment provision in the underwriting agreement, the
decision to do the Offering through a shelf-registration, whether STEC had
planned to also sell shares owned by the Company through the Offering or
otherwise pursuant to the shelf-registration, whether and why such a subsequent
offering ever was or was not made, Cook’s public remarks about the Offering
made during STEC’s 2009 second quarter earnings conference call, the road show
for the Offering, and the fact that the decision to do the Offering was made at the
same time that the EMC Agreement was being negotiated and then announced to
the public.

226. Also as part of discovery, Plaintiffs sought and obtained an agreement
from Defendants that they would make a limited-scope waiver of the attorney-
client privileged as it applied to communications between themselves and their
outside attorney at the time of the Offering—Reed Smith—concerning, among
other subjects, the Offering. Pursuant to this agreement, Plaintiffs deposed David
Mittelman, an attorney at Reed Smith, and questioned him on, among other things,
his contemporaneous knowledge of the Offering and the Moshayedis’ motives for
the Offering, whether he advised STEC—and the content of any such advise—
regarding (a) cancellation of the Moshayedis’ 10b5-1 plans, (b) the decision to do
the Offering, (c) public statements made by STEC during the time that STEC was
planning to do the Offering and/or during the Offering itself—including in the
Prospectus, STEC’s second quarter Form 10-Q, and STEC’s second quarter
earnings conference call—whether Mittelman attended STEC board meetings

regarding the Offering and, if so, what happened at the meetings, and how else the
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job of Mittelman and other Reed Smith attorneys was affected by the planning for
and implementation of the Offering.

227. Also as part of discovery, Plaintiffs made vigorous and wide ranging
efforts prove the falsity of statements and omissions made by Defendants during or
shortly before the Offering—including, especially, in the Offering documents
themselves—and to prove that Defendants had contemporaneous knowledge of
such falsity. One way to understand the breadth and depth of these efforts is to
consider certain aspects of Lead Plaintiff’s answers to Defendants’ contention
interrogatories, which were served by Lead Plaintiff after the end of fact
discovery—on June 25, 2012 (the “Interrogatory Answers”).

228. The Interrogatory Answers assert that Defendants are liable for
sixteen (16) false statements and material omissions made by Defendants on
August 3, 2009, the same day that STEC filed with the SEC the Registration
Statement, Prospectus and third quarter Form 10-Q incorporated into the
Registration Statement and Prospectus.*

229. These sixteen alleged misstatements and omissions, made on the same
day that the Registration Statement, Prospectus and Form 10-Q were filed with the
SEC, comprise the large majority of misstatements and omissions that ever have
been alleged in this case.

230. Ten of the sixteen alleged misstatements and omissions made on
August 3, 2009, were made in the Prospectus, or in the Form 10-Q incorporated
into the Prospectus.

231. All ten of the misstatements and omissions made in, or incorporated

into, the Prospectus are actionable under the Securities Act.

*? For the purpose of this tally, if the same misstatement or omission appears in
two separate places—e.g., in both the Prospectus and the Form 10-Q—it is counted
twice. Similarly, if a statement contains both a misrepresentation and an omission,
or two distinct omissions, it is counted twice.
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232. Two of the ten misstatements and omissions listed in the Interrogatory
Answers that are actionable under the Securities Act are alleged in the Second
Amended Complaint as being actionable only under the Securities Act, and not
under the Exchange Act. See ECF No. 178-3, at 99 312-23; compare id. at Y 304-
24 with id. at 9 224-31.

233. Five of the sixteen misstatements and omissions listed in the
Interrogatory Answers that were made on August 3, 2009—the same day that the
Registration Statement, Prospectus and Form 10-Q were filed—had not been
alleged in the Second Amended Complaint. These five additional misstatements
and omissions were alleged in the Interrogatory Answers because evidence in
support of their material falsity had been obtained during discovery. In summary
form, these five additional misstatements and omissions made on August 3, 2009,
include:

(a) A material omission from an estimate of expected third quarter
revenue made in STEC’s earnings release filed on August 3, 2009;

(b) A statement by Manouch made during STEC’s 2009 second
quarter earnings conference call, on August 3, 2009, that STEC’s customers, other
than EMC, were ““a quarter or two away from full ramping production [of systems
incorporating STEC’s ZeusIOPS]”;

(c) A material omission from a statement made by Manouch during
STEC’s 2009 second quarter earnings conference call that “I would say $55
million out of the $120 million [of purchases agreed to by EMC under the EMC
Agreement] was built into the Q3 [revenue projection]”;

(d) A statement made by Manouch to a securities analyst during a
telephone call made shortly after STEC’s 2009 second quarter earnings conference
call, on August 3, 2009, as recorded in notes made by Defendants regarding what

was said during the call; and
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(e) A statement made by Manouch to a second securities analyst
during a second telephone call made shortly after STEC’s 2009 second quarter
earnings conference call, on August 3, 2009, as recorded in notes made by
Defendants regarding what was said during the call.

234. A description of some, but not all, of the evidence obtained during
discovery demonstrating that Defendants’ knew, as of August 3, 2009, that the
sixteen statements and omissions made by them on August 3, 2009, were
materially false, fills twenty-five pages of the Interrogatory Answers.”

235. Also following the close of fact discovery, Plaintiffs served
Defendants with the report of Steven L. Henning, Ph.D., CPA, an expert witness
regarding disclosures required under SEC regulations, and materiality under SEC
guidance. This report contained opinions regarding the materiality of each of the
two alleged omissions made on August 3, 2009, that the Second Amended
Complaint alleges are actionable solely under the Securities Act, see supra, and a
third opinion regarding the materiality of the omission made on August 3, 2009, in
STEC’s third quarter revenue forecast—which, as explained, supra, was alleged
for the first time in the Interrogatory Answers, based on evidence obtained during
discovery.

236. Prior to the completion of fact discovery Plaintiffs already had served
Defendants with the declaration of John D. Finnerty, Ph.D., an expert witness
regarding, among other things, market efficiency, which included Dr. Finnerty’s
analysis of the reaction of STEC’s stock price to news regarding STEC made
public on August 3, 2009, including, but not limited to, the misstatements and

omissions made by Defendants on August 3, 2009. See ECF No. 220, at 19-22.

> This description of evidence is provided in response to Manouch Moshayedi’s

Interrogatory No. 12, and includes the response to Manouch Moshayedi’s
Interrogatory No. 10, which is incorporated by reference into the response to
Manouch Moshayedi’s Interrogatory No. 12.
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D.  Plaintiffs Vigorously Prosecuted the
Securities Act Claims Against the Underwriters

237. The Offering was underwritten by the four Underwriters: J.P. Morgan
Securities, Deutsche Bank Securities, Barclays Capital, and Oppenheimer.
Prospectus Supplement at S-27 (Aug. 7, 2009). The lead underwriters (a/k/a “joint
bookrunners™) of the Offering were J.P. Morgan Securities and Deutsche Bank
Securities.

238. The Underwriters were named as defendants in both the CAC and the
SAC. However, as noted, the Court dismissed the class claims against the
Underwriters on June 17, 2011.

239. On November 9, 2011, Plaintiffs issued subpoenas out of the Southern
District of New York to each of the Underwriters (the “Underwriter Subpoenas™).
The Underwriter Subpoenas sought the production of documents relating to, inter
alia, the due diligence performed by the Underwriters in connection with the
Offering, all communications with STEC personnel regarding the Offering, and the
identities of all Offering Purchasers.**

240. After protracted negotiations concerning the scope of discovery, lead
underwriters J.P. Morgan Securities and Deutsche Bank Securities produced to
Plaintiffs a total of 668,105 pages of documents responsive to the Underwriter
Subpoenas. In addition, the other two underwriters produced a total of 63,876
pages of documents.

241. The Underwriters’ document productions included all of the due
diligence documents that they had produced to the SEC in connection with the
SEC Investigation. Significantly, the Underwriters’ production included the

** Plaintiffs issued supplemental subpoenas out of the Central District of
California to the Underwriters seeking the identities of the Offering Purchasers.
After a discovery dispute concerning the production of the Offering Purchasers’
addresses, which Plaintiffs raised with Magistrate Judge Goldman on March 28,
2012 (ECF No. 283), the Underwriters eventually produced that information.
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“Commitment Committee” memorandum that each firm drafted in connection with
the Offering. The Commitment Committee memoranda described the due
diligence procedures performed by each Underwriter and contained each
Underwriter’s rationale for participating in the Offering—including a detailed
analysis of STEC’s financial position, competitive position, and business
prospects—based on public information, STEC's internal documents, and
interviews with STEC's managers, auditors, and customers.

242. In addition, on April 2, 2012, Plaintiffs deposed Sherri Scribner
(“Scribner”), a financial analyst at Deutsche Bank Securities who was part of the
Deutsche Bank Securities engagement team for the Offering, and who
subsequently initiated coverage of STEC as a securities analyst on August 16,
2009. Scribner was questioned about, inter alia, Deutsche Bank Securities’
Commitment Committee memorandum; due diligence with respect to the Offering;
Scribner’s involvement with the Offering; and Scribner’s interaction with another
analyst at Deutsche Bank Securities who published research reports on STEC prior
to the Offering. Sherri Scribner Dep. Tr. at 22-23, 29-36, 44-57, 62-81. During
that deposition, Scribner was also questioned by Defendants about due diligence
for the Offering. Id. at 247-52, 278-79, 295.

243. Plaintiffs also questioned other deponents such as Defendants
Manouch Moshayedi, Mark Moshayedi and Raymond Cook, and STEC’s outside
counsel at the time of the Offering, David Mittleman, regarding any involvement
by the Underwriters in drafting alleged misstatements or deciding to conduct the
Offering, and any knowledge by the Underwriters of the falsity of Defendants’
alleged misstatements or omissions.

244. Defendant Manouch Moshayedi specifically testified that he did not
inform the Underwriters about the email that he received from EMC’s Timothy
Smith some hours before the filing of the Prospectus, in which Smith told
Manouch Moshayedi that “I think I can say with a high degree of confidence that
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our most recent volume commitment deal will be our last.” Manouch Moshayedi
Tr. 220:18- 221:18; 439:19-440:7.

E. Plaintiffs Vigorously Prosecuted the Only Alleged Misstatements
or Omissions Alleged as Actionable Only Under the Securities Act

245. The SAC alleges that Defendants had a duty to disclose the one-off
nature of the EMC Agreement in, among other places, STEC’s 2009 second
quarter 10-Q, because that is one of the places where Defendants made a
misleading statement about the EMC Agreement. See ECF No. 178-1 at 9 97-
109. The SAC also alleges that, even if Defendants did not otherwise have a duty
to disclose the one-off nature of the EMC Agreement in STEC’s 2009 second
quarter 10-Q, they had a duty under the SEC’s Regulation S-K to do so. This duty
under Reg. S-K is alleged to be actionable only under the Securities Act, not under
the Exchange Act. See ECF No. 178-3 at 99 321-23. The report of Plaintiffs’
expert on accounting and SEC regulations, Dr. Steven L. Henning, drafted and
produced during expert discovery, devoted one of its three opinions to the role of
this requirement under Reg. S-K.

246. The only other statement or omission alleged in the SAC as actionable
only under the Securities Act was Defendants’ omission to file the EMC
Agreement with the SEC. Although this omission was not alleged to be actionable
under the Exchange Act, it was alleged to be evidence of Defendants’ scienter
under the Exchange Act, and was vigorously prosecuted for that reason, as well as
because it was actionable under the Securities Act. The second of Dr. Henning’s
three expert opinions regarded Defendants’ failure to file the EMC Agreement with
the SEC.

X. SETTLEMENT

A. Negotiations Among the Settling Parties

247. The Settlement resulted from extensive negotiations that were

undertaken over the course of nearly nine months with the assistance of the
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1 ||Honorable Layn R. Phillips, a former Federal Judge, who was retained by the
2 || Parties as a mediator.
3 248. In the fall of 2011, Co-Lead Counsel and Defendants’ Counsel,
4 || contacted Judge Phillips to request his assistance in mediating this case. After
5 || ensuring that no conflicts existed, Judge Phillips agreed to do so.
6 249. The Parties first met with Judge Phillips for a formal, full-day
7 || mediation session on January 5, 2012. In advance of this session, Co-Lead
8 || Counsel and Defendants’ Counsel submitted detailed, comprehensive mediation
9 || statements. Along with Co-Lead Counsel, a representative of Lead Plaintiff (a
10 || Deputy Attorney General) attended and actively participated in the mediation
11 ||session.
12 250. During the January 2012 mediation session, Judge Phillips engaged in
13 || numerous discussions with Co-Lead Counsel and the Defendants’ Counsel in an
14 || effort to find common ground between the Parties’ respective positions. However,
15 || although the January 2012 mediation session narrowed some of the Parties’
16 || differences, it did not lead to a resolution.
17 251. Thereafter, the Parties ceased all mediation discussions, deciding to
18 || pursue discovery. During this time, Judge Phillips was generally kept apprised of
19 || the litigation, including the progress of discovery.
20 252. Then, in May 2012, Co-Lead Counsel and Defendants’ Counsel
21 ||agreed that further formal mediation in the wake of the completion of extensive
22 || fact discovery might prove fruitful. Therefore, they scheduled a formal, full-day
23 || mediation with Judge Phillips for July 30, 2012. In advance of this session, Co-
24 || Lead Counsel and Defendants’ Counsel submitted detailed, comprehensive
25 || mediation statements informed by their extensive mutual discovery.” The July
26
27 * In connection with this mediation, Lead Plaintiff’s damages expert prepared
an event study, using a conservative model suitable for trial, and calculated
28 ||aggregate damages of approximately $233 million.
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2012 mediation session was also attended by client representatives from the
Parties, including a Deputy Attorney General from New Jersey and the General
Counsel of STEC, who were actively involved in the discussions.

253. Although the mediation in July 2012 was productive in terms of
focusing the areas of dispute and narrowing the settlement range, the Parties were
not able to reach an agreement.

254. In August 2012, Dr. Ripperda agreed to serve as a class representative
on behalf of investors who acquired STEC stock pursuant or traceable to the
Offering and held that stock until at least the September 17, 2009 Corrective
Disclosure, the first partial corrective disclosure alleged in the TAC.”

255. Dr. Ripperda retained Thomas Bienert, Jr. (“Bienert”) of Bienert
Miller & Katzman and Robert S. Green (“Green”), of Green & Noblin, P.C. After
Dr. Ripperda retained them as counsel, Bienert and Green reviewed the pleadings,
the discovery record, and other aspects of the Action prior to joining the Parties in
settlement negotiations. See ECF No. 354-2 (Green Decl.) 99 7-9; ECF No. 354-3
(Bienert Decl.) 9 6.

256. On September 5, 2012, the Parties met in New York for a third and
final mediation session with Judge Phillips.”” The mediation was attended by
counsel for the Parties, an Assistant Attorney General from New Jersey, the

General Counsel of STEC, and counsel for Dr. Mark Ripperda.”® Bienert and

*° Dr, Ripperda initially contacted Co-Lead Counsel on April 24, 2012 to discuss
the Action. At that time, Dr. épperda provided to Co-Lead Counsel his trading
records, which show that he had purchased STEC common stock on the Offering
but had sold that stock prior to November 4, 2009 and, thus, did not have standing

to assert the Securities Act Claims alleged in the SAC.

>’ Bernie Schneider, a colleague of Judge Philips, began the mediation. Judge
Philips arrived later and jointly conducted the mediation with Mr. Schneider.

® Counsel requested that Dr. Ripperda attend the mediation. However, because
Dr. Ripperda is an Emergency Room physician in Arizona, it was not possible for
him to arrange his schedule to attend in person. Instead, he communicated with
counsel via e-mail and was available during the mediation by telephone. See ECF
No. 354-4 (Ripperda Declaration) q 7.
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Green actively participated in the negotiations. ECF No. 354-2 q 11; see also ECF
No. 354-3 9 7. At the close of the third day of mediation, the Parties had narrowed
their areas of dispute, but there was no agreement reached.

257. After additional discussions by telephone over the next two days, the
Parties, including Dr. Ripperda, reached agreement and signed a Memorandum of
Understanding on September 11, 2012, which set forth, subject to the preparation
of formal stipulations of settlement, the material terms and conditions of the
combined $35.75 million settlement. The Settlement Agreement was executed on
October 5, 2012. ECF No. 328-1.

B. Negotiations Between Class Representatives’ Counsel

258. In October 2012, Co-Lead Counsel and counsel for Dr. Ripperda

participated in additional negotiations with the assistance of Judge Phillips
regarding the allocation of the Settlement between Class Members with only
Exchange Act Claims and those with both Exchange Act and Securities Act
Claims.

259. On October 22, 2012, Judge Phillips held a conference call solely on
the issue of allocation, at which time Lead Plaintiff and Co-Lead Counsel accepted
the allocation proposed by Dr. Ripperda and his counsel, whereby Class Members
with Securities Act Claims would receive a 25% premium on their recovery.

260. The loss causation and damages expert retained by Lead Plaintiff to
assist in creating the Plan of Allocation, Professor John D. Finnerty, has opined
that a premium of 25% to Securities Act Claims, as compared to Section 10(b)
claims, 1s reasonable. See ECF No. 354-5.

XI. THE RISKS OF FURTHER LITIGATION
261. Co-Lead Counsel respectfully submit that the $35.75 million cash

Settlement represents an outstanding result for the Class, and fully satisfies the
requirements for final approval, especially in light of the substantial risks faced by

Class Representatives. Co-Lead Counsel, together with Lead Plaintiff and the
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Class Representatives, were fully aware and carefully evaluated the risks of further
litigation. This Settlement was reached only after substantial fact discovery,
including the depositions of the Individual Defendants and many of STEC’s
officers and employees with direct responsibility for the ZeusIOPS, analysis of
millions of pages of documents, briefing multiple motions addressing the critical
issues in the case, and careful consideration by Co-Lead Counsel in close
consultation with Class Representatives and the Office of the New Jersey Attorney
General. Accordingly, there can be no doubt that Lead Plaintiff and Class
Representatives were fully aware of the strengths and weaknesses of the case at the
time.

262. Based on this careful assessment, Lead Plaintiff and Class
Representatives have concluded that the Settlement is fair, adequate and
reasonable, and in the best interest of the Class. In reaching this conclusion, Lead
Plaintiff, the Class Representatives and Co-Lead Counsel considered: (1) the
substantial and immediate benefits that members of the Class will receive from the
Settlement; (i1) the evidence available to support Class Representatives’ claims;
(i11) the risks that STEC’s likely motion for summary judgment could be granted,
in whole or in part; (iv) the risks at trial, especially in a complex action such as this
one; and (v) the delay from the likely post-trial motions and appeals if the Class

were to prevail at trial.

A. Falsity Defense

263. Defendants have consistently maintained that their statements were
accurate and made without material omissions. Although it is not unusual for
defendants to assert the truthfulness of their previous statements, in this case,
Defendants have consistently asserted an additional defense that their statements
regarding the EMC Agreement did not have the meaning attributed to them by

Plaintiffs. Thus, the meaning communicated by Defendants’ statements about the
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EMC Agreement, as well as the truthfulness of that meaning, would be facts to be
determined by the jury.

264. In addition to statements regarding the EMC Agreement, the
Operative Complaint alleges false statements and omissions regarding at least three
other subjects: (1) sales to the Other OEMs, (i1) STEC’s 2009 second quarter
revenues, and (ii1) competition for the ZeusIOPS. However, in allowing Plaintiffs
to go forward with discovery, the Court did not find it necessary to examine
whether Plaintiffs’ allegations regarding any of these three other subjects were
plausible, which adds to the difficulty of predicting how the Court would rule on a
motion by Defendants to dismiss these claims on summary judgment. Moreover,
when the SEC recently filed its own complaint against Defendant Manouch
Moshayedi, the SEC did not allege the falsity of any statements regarding any of
these three other subjects.

B. Scienter Defense

265. Defendants have consistently maintained that, when making their
statements, they reasonably believed them to be true. Even if any of their
statements were found by a jury to have been false, Defendants cannot be liable
under the Exchange Act for such falsity, unless Defendants made the statements
with scienter—i.e., knowledge of their falsity, or reckless disregard for whether the
statements were true or false. Even under the Securities Act, if the statements were|
forward looking statements—i.e., primarily statements about the future—
Defendants cannot be liable, unless they made such forward looking statements
with knowledge of their falsity.

266. Whether Defendants reasonably believed that their statements about
the EMC Agreement were true, may depend, in part, on what they had been told by
EMC, and on whether they reasonably doubted what EMC had told them,

Therefore, the ability of Plaintiffs to prove Defendants’ scienter may depend not
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1 || only on the credibility of Defendants, but also, on the credibility of the EMC

2 || witnesses—an additional factor to be determined by the jury.

3 C. Safe Harbor Defense

4 267. Defendants have persistently asserted that the majority of the alleged

5 || misstatements were “forward looking” statements made in the context of

6 || cautionary language. Under the so called “safe harbor” that governs securities

7 || suits by private plaintiffs, Defendants cannot be held liable for forward looking

8 || statements made in the context of other, cautionary language about the same

9 || subject, even if the forward looking statements were knowingly false. Therefore,
10 || regardless of whether Defendants made knowingly false statements, Defendants
11 || may be able to escape liability, if they can show that the statements were forward
12 || looking statements made in the context of other, adequately cautionary language,
13 || regarding the same subjects.
14 D. Defenses Against Damages
15 268. In moving to dismiss the CAC, Defendants argued that Plaintiffs had
16 || failed to allege that any of the stock drops following any of the alleged corrective
17 || disclosures—whether on September 17, 2009, November 3, 2009, or February 23,
18 || 2010—had been caused by a disclosure of any truth concealed by Defendants’
19 || alleged misstatements. ECF No. 147 at 21-24. Because the CAC was dismissed
20 || for other reasons, the Court never ruled on Defendants’ argument, and it is likely
21 || that similar arguments would be made by Defendants on a motion for summary
22 ||judgment and at trial. If the Court or a jury were to determine that Defendants’
23 || statements did not cause Class Members’ losses, Class Members would not be able
24 ||to recover anything, regardless of whether or not Defendants’ statements were
25 || knowingly false.
26 269. Defendants also made a separate argument specifically attacking Class|
27 ||Members’ ability to recover damages for the stock drop on February 23, 2010. In
28 || opposing Plaintiffs’ motion for Class Certification, Defendants argued that
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Plaintiffs had failed to allege that they had relied on any statement whose falsity,
when disclosed, could have caused the stock drop on February 23, 2010, because
any truth concealed by Defendants’ alleged false statements already had been fully
disclosed by the alleged corrective disclosure on November 3, 2009. The Court
held that such a defense was premature on a motion for Class Certification. See
ECF No. 279 at 20. However, Defendants likely would reassert such a defense at
summary judgment and trial

270. Damages from the stock drop on September 17, 2009, might not be
available to Class Members for a different reason, namely, because these damages
are alleged to have been caused solely by disclosure of the truth regarding the
Competition claim. For reasons explained, supra, the chances of this claim
surviving summary judgment, trial and appeal are relatively small.

271. Finally, it is routine for defendants to argue that every disclosure that
causes a stock drop is merely a disclosure regarding a new development in the
issuer’s business, rather than a disclosure of some concealed truth regarding a past
event. Therefore, it is likely that Defendants will make such an argument
regarding the stock drop that followed the corrective disclosure on November 3,
2009. Even if Defendants could not convince a jury that the disclosure on
November 3, 2009, was entirely about a new event, they might be able to convince
the jury that the disclosure was at least partly about a new event, and, therefore,
only partly about a previously concealed truth, and thereby might be able to limit
Class Members’ damages to some fraction of the loss caused by the stock drop that
followed the disclosure.

272. As aresult of the availability to Defendants of the various defenses
described, supra, it is possible that, even if a jury were to find that Defendants
knowingly made misleading statements, Class Members would recover no

damages, or damages in an amount smaller than the amount of the Settlement.

E. The Complexity of Trial
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273. Another significant risk was trial. One of the ways in which Lead
Plaintiff and Class Representatives have analyzed this risk was by organizing and
observing jury focus groups. Securities class actions, in general, are already
difficult cases that involve complicated questions of law and fact, including arcane
technical questions of loss causation and damages. Probably, the case would not
be entirely disposed of at summary judgment, since certain of STEC’s anticipated
arguments on summary judgment raise pure issues of fact. But summary judgment
could make the case considerably smaller. Moreover, at trial, loss causation would
have become a hotly debated issue mired in expert testimony and statistical jargon.
Further, the issues related to the ZeusIOPS would require expert testimony and
extreme attention to detail on the part of the jury. This complexity would have
worked against the Class because Class Representatives have the burden of proof.
While Lead Plaintiff and Class Representatives did not believe that explaining the
case at trial was impossible, the risk of losing even with a flawless presentation
was substantial.

274. In short, the risk that the Class could see its claims diminished at
summary judgment, and dismissed entirely at trial or on an appeal by Defendants,
was significant. Having completed fact discovery and exchanged expert reports,
Class Representatives balanced the risk, the expense, and the length of time
necessary to prosecute the action through the end of expert discovery, summary
judgment motions, trial, and any appeals, with the substantial and assured recovery
provided by the Settlement. In light of these considerations, Class Representatives
and Co-Lead Counsel all believe that the Settlement is fair, adequate and

reasonable, and should be approved.
XII. PLAN OF ALLOCATION

275. Pursuant to the Preliminary Approval Order, all Class Members who
wish to participate in the Settlement are required to file a valid Proof of Claim

form on or before June 25, 2013.
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276. As set forth in the Notice, Class Members will receive a distribution
from the settlement proceeds, after deduction of fees and expenses approved by the
Court, administrative costs and taxes incurred on interest income earned by the
Settlement Fund, i.e. the Net Settlement Fund. The distribution will be made in
accordance with the Plan of Allocation, as preliminarily approved by the Court,
which has been set forth and described in detail on pages 10-15 of the Notice.

277. The Plan of Allocation is not intended to estimate the amount a class
member might have been able to recover after a trial, nor is it intended to estimate
the amount that will be paid to Authorized Claimants. The Plan of Allocation is
the basis upon which the Net Settlement Fund will be proportionately divided
among all eligible Authorized Claimants, who will receive their pro rata share of
the Net Settlement Fund. The Court will be asked to approve the Claims
Administrator’s determinations before the Net Settlement Fund is distributed to
Authorized Claimants.

278. The Plan of Allocation was crafted by Co-Lead Counsel and Class
Representatives’ damages expert. It is consistent with the TAC and reflects the
allegations that the price of STEC common stock during the Class Period was
inflated artificially by reason of Defendants’ allegedly false and misleading
statements. The artificial inflation allegedly began on June 16, 2009, when STEC
issued a press release increasing its quarterly guidance. STEC denies any
allegations of liability and had no input into the Plan of Allocation.

279. The Class Period began on June 16, 2009, when STEC issued a press
release announcing a $120 million supply agreement for the ZeusIOPS for the
second half of 2009. Class Representatives allege that the artificial inflation was
eliminated after disclosures on February 23, 2010. Class Representatives’ expert’s
methodology was incorporated into the Plan of Allocation by taking into account
that there were disclosures of the truth on September 17, 2009, followed by
additional news on November 3, 2009 and February 23, 2010, as discussed above.
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The Plan of Allocation provides a recovery for each claimant that is relative to the
amount of stock price inflation suffered.

280. Based on the analysis conducted by Class Representatives’ damages
expert, and Class Representatives’ and Co-Lead Counsel’s careful assessment of
the claims in the Action, Co-Lead Counsel respectfully submits that the Plan of
Allocation is fair, adequate and reasonable, and should be approved by the Court.
XIII. ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND EXPENSES

A.  The Fee Request is Fair and Reasonable, and
Has the Support of Lead Plaintiff

281. Plaintiffs’ Counsel seeks an award of attorneys’ fees of 16.07% of the
Settlement Fund, including accrued interest, and payment of litigation expenses in
the amount of $1,925,895.67, plus accrued interest. While the determination of
whether to approve a fee and expense request rests squarely with this Court, Lead
Plaintiff supports Plaintiffs Counsel’s request and believes that an award of such
fees and expenses would be reasonable under the circumstances of this case. See
McDonough Decl., Ex. 1 annexed hereto.

282. Here, we submit that the result achieved strongly supports an award of]
the requested fee. The global settlement of $35.75 million represents a tremendous
result for the Class.

(i) Fees Typically Awarded
283. A fee of 16.07% is well below the 25% “benchmark”™ governing the

award of attorneys’ fees in common fund cases established by the Ninth Circuit
Court of Appeals. See, e.g., Vizcaino v. Microsoft Corp., 290 F.3d 1043 (9th Cir.
2002) (affirming award of 28% fee).

284. Likewise, a fee of 16.07% is below the Ninth Circuit’s 25%
benchmark in securities class actions involving comparable recoveries in district

courts within the Ninth Circuit. See, e.g., In re Heritage Bond Litig., No. 02-ML-
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1475 DT, 2005 WL 1594403, at *27 (C.D. Cal. June 10, 2005) (awarding 33 1/3%

of $27,783 million settlement).

(i) Risks Faced by Plaintiffs’ Counsel and
Contingent Nature of Fee

285. The fee request is also fair and reasonable because of the significant
risks Plaintiffs’ Counsel faced in pursuing this action. As noted above, scienter,
loss causation and damages were vigorously disputed throughout the course of the
Action, and the case could have been dismissed by the Court or rejected by the jury
at trial. Compounding these risks, Plaintiffs’ Counsel made a very significant
financial commitment to the prosecution of the case, including litigation expenses

of $1,925,895.67.

(iii) Plaintiffs’ Counsel’s Extensive Efforts and
Quality of Work

286. In addition, the fee request should be approved because the Settlement
was in large part the result of Plaintiffs’ Counsel’s hard work, persistence and skill.
The challenges posed by the significant size of the document production in
connection with the Defendants and third parties, the scope of the case, and the
complexity of the issues were substantial. Counsel for Defendants is a top-tier
national firm that mounted a vigorous defense. Through the skill, experience and
dedication of Plaintiffs’ Counsel, Lead Plaintiff and Class Representative were
able to mount a strong and vigorous prosecution, which ultimately led to this
excellent recovery.

287. Indeed, Plaintiffs’ Counsel expended over 41,000 hours in the
prosecution and investigation of this Action. See Summary Table of Lodestar and
Expenses annexed hereto as Exhibit 3.

288. The hours invested by counsel are a testament Plaintiffs’ Counsel’s
commitment and professional dedication to obtaining the best possible result.
Having demonstrated exceptional commitment, perseverance and skill, coupled

with an outstanding recovery, Plaintiffs’ Counsel respectfully submit that they
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performed a great service to the Class. The fee requested fairly and reasonably
rewards Plaintiffs” Counsel’s performance.

289. The fee is also reasonable in terms of the lodestar multiplier. At the
Court’s discretion, a lodestar multiplier serves as a “cross-check™ to the
reasonableness of a fee award based on the percentage approach. It is calculated
by (1) dividing the fee requested by (i1) the number of hours counsel billed to the
case multiplied by counsel’s standard hourly rate. The multiplier reflects litigation
risk, the complexity of the issues, the nature of the engagement, the skill of the
attorneys, and other factors. Courts have recognized that a multiplier is
appropriate to compensate for the risk inherent in contingency fee arrangements.

290. The cumulative hours expended by Plaintiffs’ Counsel was 41,050.50
hours and the resulting lodestar for the services performed totals $20,995,456.00,
at counsel’s current billing rates. See Exs. 3-8. Thus, the requested fee represents
a negative multiplier of 0.27 of counsel’s lodestar. This means that Co-Lead
Counsel, in particular, will recover significantly less than their actual time
expended in prosecuting this Action.

291. The lodestar multiplier here strongly supports approval of the fee
request because it is squarely below the multiplier range of 1.0 to 4.0 that the Ninth
Circuit has found reasonable. Vizcaino, 290 F.3d at 1051 n.6 (finding multipliers
from 1.0 to 4.0 are frequently awarded and affirming multiplier of 3.65).

292. In sum, we respectfully submit that a fee request of 16.07% is fair and
reasonable. It is well within the range of fees typically approved by Courts in this
District and in this Circuit. It is significantly below the fee request of cases of
similar size, complexity and result, and it fairly compensates Plaintiffs’ Counsel
for an extraordinary result and outstanding effort. The fact that the lodestar

multiplier 1s 0.27 further confirms that the fee request is reasonable.
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B. Payment of the Requested
Litigation Expenses is Fair and Reasonable

293. Plaintiffs’ Counsel also request payment of the expenses incurred in
connection with this Action. Plaintiffs’ Counsel have submitted declarations (see
Exhibits 4-8 annexed hereto) which state that the expenses are (1) reflected in the
books and records maintained by the respective Plaintiffs’ firm, (i1) an accurate
recording of the expenses incurred, and (ii1) reasonable and necessary for the
successful prosecution of the case. In total, Plaintiffs’ Counsel incurred
reimbursable expenses in the amount of $1,925,895.67 as more fully set forth
below:

(a) Labaton Sucharow LLP incurred expenses of $1,594,630.56;

(b) Lite DePalma Greenberg, LLP incurred expenses of
$323,865.65;

(c) Lim, Roger & Kim LLP incurred expenses of $2,460.92;

(d) Bienert, Miller & Katzman incurred expenses of $1,929.88;

(e) Green & Noblin, P.C. incurred expenses of $2,615.94; and

(f)  Berman DeValerio incurred expenses of $393.32.

294. Of this amount, $1,098,475 relates to substantial but critical
expenditures for consulting and testifying experts in the fields of damages, SEC
regulation and financial markets, who submitted expert disclosures and opinions to
Defendants and provided Co-Lead Counsel with substantial guidance and analysis
into the substantive issues in dispute.

295. The remaining expenses reflect the typical expenses incurred in the
course of complex commercial litigation, such as legal research (i.e., Westlaw
fees), mediation and special master fees, travel, document duplication, telephone,
FedEx, etc.

296. Lead Plaintiff has considered the expenses for which Plaintiffs’

Counsel seek payment and believes that they are reasonable and were necessary for
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the prosecution of the Action. See McDonough Decl. § 14-16 Accordingly, Lead

Plaintiff also supports Plaintiffs’ Counsel’s application for payment of expenses.

XIV. CLASS REPRESENTATIVES’ EXPENSE REQUEST
PURSUANT TO THE PSLRA

297. As set forth in the annexed McDonough Declaration, Exhibit 1 hereto,

as representative of Lead Plaintiff, Mr. McDonough attests to the fact that New
Jersey, during the course of representing the Class, incurred $31,657.53 in
expenses related to lost wages given the time employees of the Office of the
Attorney General of the State of New Jersey dedicated to prosecution of the Action
in connection with the claims against Defendants.

298. Assistant Attorney General McDonough explains that the Attorney
General’s deputies: (a) engaged in numerous meetings and conferences with Co-
Lead Counsel; (b) reviewed documents, including those related to the adequacy of
the Amended Complaint, discovery, and attempts at settlement; (c) attended court
hearings; (d) provided input regarding litigation and settlement strategy; ()
monitored and participated in settlement sessions, settlement negotiations and
approval of the Settlement with Defendants. The McDonough Declaration further
details that the New Jersey spent more than 240 hours overseeing the Action and
the hourly rates used to determine the amount of lost wages.

299. Accordingly, New Jersey is seeking a total of $31,657.53 as
reimbursement of expenses directly related to the prosecution of the Action, as is
permitted by the PSLRA, 15 U.S.C. §78u-4 (a)(4).

300. As set forth in the Declaration of Michael Patrick Donovan
(“Donovan Decl.”), annexed hereto as Exhibit 9, Class Representative Local 103,
working under the Direction of Lead Plaintiff, expended 51.5 hours in connection
with litigating the claims against Defendants. Among other things, Michael

Patrick Donovan was deposed by Defendants in this Action and, along with
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Richard Gambino, supervised the litigation. Accordingly, Local 103 seeks total of
$2,750.04 as reimbursement of expenses.

301. The total amount sought by Lead Plaintiff and Local 103 is
$34,407.57.
XV. MISCELLANEOUS EXHIBITS

302. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 10 is a true and correct copy of the
Declaration of Layn R. Phillips.

303. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 11 is a true and correct copy of a research
study by Ellen Ryan & Laura E. Simmon of Cornerstone Research, titled Securities
Class Action Settlements: 2012 Review and Analysis (2013).

304. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 12 is a compendium of unreported cases, in|
alphabetical order, cited in the accompanying Memorandum of Points and
Authorities in Support of Plaintiffs’ Counsel’s Motion for an Award of Attorneys’
Fees and Expenses.

305. Annexed hereto as Exhibit 13 is a true and correct copy of a research
study by Dr. Renzo Comolli, Dr. Ron Miller, Dr. John Montgomery, and Svetlana
Starykh, titled Recent Trends in Securities Class Action Litigation: 2012 Mid-Year
Review (NERA July 24, 2012).

XVI. CONCLUSION

306. In view of the outstanding recovery obtained for the Class, the
substantial risks of this litigation, the enormous efforts of Co-Lead Counsel and
Plaintiffs’ Counsel, the quality of the work performed, the nature of the fee, the
complexity of the case, and the experience of and outstanding work performed by
all counsel, Co-Lead Counsel respectfully submit that the Settlement should be
approved as fair, adequate and reasonable; that the Plan of Allocation should be
approved as fair and reasonable; that attorneys’ fees in the amount of 16.07% of
the Settlement Fund, or $5,745,025, should be approved as fair and reasonable; and

that the litigation expenses should be reimbursed in full.
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I declare under penalty of perjury under the laws of the United States that

the foregoing is true and correct. Executed on April 8, 2013.

/s/ Thomas A. Dubbs

Thomas A. Dubbs
LABATON SUCHAROW LLP
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Christopher Kim (Bar No. 082080)

christopher.kim@limruger.com
LisaJ. Yang (Bar No. 208971)
lisa.yang@limruger.com

LIM, RUGER & KIM, LLP

1055 West Seventh Street, Suite 280
Los Angeles, California 90017-2554

Telephone: (213) 955-9500
Facsimile: (213) 955-9511

Thomas A. Dubbs (Pro Hac Vice)
tdubbs@labaton.com

James W. Johnson (Pro Hac Vice)
jjohnson@labaton.com

chard T. Joffe (Pro Hac Vice)
I%Offe@labaton.com

Allyn Z. Lite (Pro Hac Vice)
alite@litedepalma.com

Bruce D. Greenberg (Pro Hac Vice)
bgreenberg@litedepalma.com

homas G. Hoffman, Jr. (Pro Hac Vice) atrina Carroll

thoffman@labaton.com
LABATON SUCHAROW LLP
140 Broadwa

New York, New York 10005
Telephone: (212) 907-0700
Facsimile: (212) 818-0477

kcarroll@litedepalma.com ,
LITE DEPAL GREENBERG, LLC
Two Gateway Center, 12th Floor
Newark, New Jersey 07102
Telephone: (973) 623-3000
Facsimile: (973) 623-0858

Attorneys for Lead Plaintiff the State of New Jersey, Department of Ti reasu?,
Division of Investment, Plaintiffs International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers,
Local 105 and Norfolk County Retirement System and Lead Counsel for the Class
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I, BRIAN MCDONOUGH, declare, pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1764, as follows:

1. The State of New Jersey, Division of Investment, is the lead plaintiff
in this matter. I am an Assistant Attorney General in the Affirmative Civil
Enforcement Practice Group with the Division of Law in the Office of the Attorney]
General of the State of New Jersey. Since approximately April 1,2011, my
responsibilities have included monitoring and supervising the conduct of this
matter.

2. A significant amount of this work was performed by Samuel S.
Cornish, a Deputy Attorney General and the Section Chief of the Securities Fraud
Prosecution Sectibn, Division of Law, Office of Attorney General of the State of
New Jersey, from approximately February 1, 2011 through February 2013. During
that time, I was Mr. Cornish’s immediate superior. Prior to Mr. Cornish’s
involvement in this matter, the monitoring and supervision role was performed by
Carol G. Jacobson, Assistant Attorney General in charge of Pension Securities
Fraud Litigation in the Office of the Attorney General.

3. I have personal knowledge of facts contained in this declaration that
relate to the time period beginning as of approximately April 2011. I have
knowledge of events prior to that date from documents in the files of Lead Plaintiff
as well as the files of the Division of Law. Without waiving the attorney-client
privilege, if called as a witness, I could and would competently testify to the
following;:

Background

4, Lead Plaintiff has participated extensively and diligently in all phases

of this matter. New Jersey carefully evaluated, both internally and with its outside

|| counsel, Lite DePalma Greenberg, LLC and Labaton Sucharow LLP, who became

the Co-Lead Counsel here, whether to pursue appointment as Lead Plaintiff,
Thereafter, Lead Plaintiff communicated on a regular, frequent basis (sometimes

daily) with Co-Lead Counsel as to the status of this case. New Jersey, through me
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and other senior personnel in the Office of the New Jersey Attorney General,
carefully monitored and supervised the work of Co-Lead Counsel.

5. Lead Plaintiff required Co-Lead Counsel to provide periodic written
reports about the status of the case, Co-Lead Counsel’s staffing, lodestar and
expenses, and other matters. New Jersey authorized Co-Lead Counsel’s choice of
Christopher Kim of Lim, Ruger & Kim, LLP to serve as Co-Lead Plaintiff’s local
counsel, and also authorized Co-Lead Counsel to use the services of one additional
law firm (Berman DeValerio) to assist in the task of enforcing a document
subpoena against EMC, a key third party witness, in the District of Massachusetts.
In addition to scrutinizing Lead Counsel’s reports and providing feedback to Co-
Lead Counsel, New Jersey (among other things):

(a) Selected Co-Lead Counsel from a number of law firms who are
on a list maintained by New J ersey of firms that, after a qualification process, have
been deemed qualified to handle plaintiffs’ class action securities fraud litigation;

(b)  Agreed with Co-Lead Counsel in 2010, in advance of seeking
lead plaintiff status and at arms-length, on an attorneys’ fee schedule;

(¢)  Rigorously reviewed, substantively participated in the drafting
of, and approved the pleadings, briefs on dispositive motions, written submissions
in mediation, and other work product in connection with this matter;

(d)  Consulted extensively with Co-Lead Counsel regarding
discovery;

(e) Carefully evaluated with Co-Lead Counsel the decision to
retain and the identities of liability and damage experts, and reviewed their expert
reports;

| ()  Observed jury focus group presentations conducted by Co-Lead
Counsel and reviewed in detail the results of those jury focus group presentations;
(g) Provided Co-Lead Counsel with parameters for settlement

discussions:

DECLARATION OF BRIAN MCDONOUGH : 2
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(h)  Worked with Co-Lead Counsel in selecting a private mediator;

(1)  Attended and participated directly, through me and Mr.
Cornish, in the mediations that resulted in the settlement of this matter;

()  Reviewed, edited, and ultimately approved the stipulation of
settlement, the Plan of Allocation, and other settlement documents; and

(k)  Authorized the selection of The Garden City Group, Inc.
(“Garden City”) as notice and claims administrator based on the advice of Co-Lead

Counsel.

The Settlement

6. Co-Lead Counsel kept New Jersey fully apprised, through their
periodic written reports and otherwise, of the status and progress of, and the
outlook for, this case. When defendants indicated an interest in mediation, Mr.
Cornish and I consulted with Co-Lead Counsel as to the identity of the mediator,
and we approved the ultimate choice, former United States District Judge Layn R.
Phillips of Irell & Manella in Newport Beach, California. Three mediation
sessions with Judge Phillips occurred in 2012. Mr. Cornish and I were intimately
involved on behalf of Lead Plaintiff with all of those sessions, and with activities
surrounding them. Mr. Cornish attended the first two mediation sessions, one of
which took place in New York, New York and the other in Newport Beach,
California, while I attended the third session, which occurred in New York,‘New
York.

7. Among other things, I participated, on behalf of Lead Plaintiff, in
numerous conferences with Co-Lead Counsel concerning the decision to mediate,
the identity of potential mediators, and the strategy and settlement objectives for
the mediation in light of the results of discovery, the results of the jury focus
group, the opinions of our liability and damage experts, and the opinions of the
experts retained by defendants. I fully understood the strengths and potential

weaknesses of our case. Co-Lead Counsel made me fully aware of the insurance
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coverage that defendants had, and the layering of and limitations on that coverage.
I reviewed and ultimately approved the written submissions that New Jersey made
to the mediator. |

8. The first mediation session occurred on January 5, 2012 in New York,
New York. Mr. Cornish attended along with Co-Lead Counsel. Counsel for
defendants (both in-house and outside counsel) and counsel for numerous insurers
were also present. The mediation began at 9 A.M. and lasted all day, but did not
make any real progress.

0. The second mediation session occurred on July 30, 2012 in Newport
Beach, California. Mr. Cornish again attended with Co-Lead Counsel: The
mediation began early in the morning and consumed another entire day of often
contentious bargaining. The parties made substantial progress in closing the gap
toward settlement, but no agreement was reached.

10.  The parties reconvened with Judge Phillips for a third time on
September 5, 2012 in New York, New York. I attended that mediation session,
along with Co-Lead Counsel and counsel for Dr.. Ripperda. They worked until
nearly 8 P.M. that day. Still, the case was not resolved. Only after further
discussions by telephone did the parties finally reach this settlement. The New
Jersey Attorney General’s Office and the Division of Investment approved that
settlement.

11. Based on Lead Plaintiff’s direct, intimate and extensive involvement
with the prosecution of this action, our awareness of the maximum potential
damages recoverable and the risks of litigation, and my role, with Mr. Cornish and
Co-Lead Counsel, in negotiating the settlement through the three mediation
sessions and the further discussions that followed the final mediation, Lead
Plaintiff strongly endorses the settlement. Lead Plaintiff also unqualifiedly

approves the Plan of Allocation as a fair, reasonable and appropriate means of
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valuing the claims of class members and apportioning the settlement fund among
them.

12. New Jersey has served as the court-appointed lead plaintiff in other
securities class actions, including, in this District, In re Tenet Healthcare Securities
Litigation, Docket No. 02-8462 RSWL (RZx) (C.D. Cal.), as well as In re
Electronic Data Systems Securities Litigation, Docket No. 6:03-MD-1512 (N.D.
Tex.); In re Nortel Networks Securities Litigation, Docket No. 05-MD-1659
(S.D.N.Y.); In re Motorola Securities Litigation, No. 03 C 00287 (N.D. IlL.), and In
re Sears, Roebuck & Co. Securities Litigation, Case No. 02C 07527 (N.D. IlL.).
All of the cases listed in the preceding sentence have resulted in full or partial
settlements. New Jersey is very experienced in evaluating proposed securities
class action settlements, and New Jersey believes that this is a fair and reasonable
settlement that should be approved by the Court.

Co-Lead Counsel’s Fee and Expense Report

13.  New Jersey authorized Co-Lead Counsel to proceed with the
settlement of the claims against Defendants for $35.75 million in cash. New Jersey
continues to believe that the Settlement represents an outstanding recovery that
would not have been possible without the tremendous efforts of Class
Representatives and Co-Lead Counsel.

14.  In a case of this magnitude and degree of complexity, where Co-Lead
Counsel has demonstrated superior skill and ability, which directly resulted in an
outstanding recovery for the Class, New Jersey believes that a fee of 16.07% for
Co-Lead Counsel is a reasonable attorneys’ fee award. New Jersey authorizes
counsel to present this fee request to the Court for its ultimate determination on the
application for attorneys’ fees.

15.  New Jersey, in agreeing to this fee amount, took into consideration,
among other things, the following factors: (a) the very favorable result achieved for

the Class; (b) Co-Lead Counsel’s litigation efforts; (¢) Co-Lead Counsel expended

DECLARATION OF BRIAN MCDONOUGH 5
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1 ||in excess of 43,000 hours in the prosecution of the claims against Defendants; (d)
2 || the quality of Co-Lead Counsel’s work particularly in light of the difficulty of the
3 || claims against Defendants; and (e) the fee agreement between Lead Plaintiff and
4 || Co-Lead Counsel.
5 16.  In light of these factors and considerations, the result obtained by
6 || Plaintiffs’ Counsel, and the quality of work which counsel performed, I believe
7 ||that a fee of 16.07% of the Settlement Fund, plus any accrued interest, and
8 || reimbursement of Plaintiffs’ Counsel’s litigation expenses, plus any accrued
9 ||interest, is fair and reasonable. However, New Jersey understands that the matter
10 || of the total award of attorneys’ fees for litigating this action, as is typical in all
11 ||class actions, is ultimately left to the sound discretion of the Court.
12 17. New Jersey also approved the language in the Notice that Plaintiffs’
13 || Counsel would seek fees “not to exceed 16.75%”. New Jersey understands that
14 || Co-Lead Counsel, along with counsel for Mark Ripperda and Berman DeValerio,
15 || will collectively seek a fee of 16.07% of the Settlement Fund. As noted above,
16 || New Jersey supports this fee request.
17 18; In addition, the law firm of Kahn Swick & Foti (“KS&F”) represented
18 || former lead plaintiffs Keith A. Ovitt and Arman Rashtchi. I understand, based on
19 || communications between Co-Lead Counsel and KS&F , that KS&F has a lodestar
20 || of $781,297.00 plus expenses. I further understand from Co-Lead Counsel that
21 || KS&F has agreed to take the same negative multiplier as Co-Lead Counsel of
22 110.27% and will seek a fee of $210,950.19, or approximately 0.59% of the
23 || Settlement Fund, plus interest, and expenses that will not exceed $20,000. New
24 ||Jersey approved including this fee request in the 16.75% fee cap set forth in the
25 |(Notice and does not object to KS&F’s request for fees and expenses.
26 || Lead Plaintiffs Request For Reimbursement Of Its Costs And Expenses
27 19.  Lead Plaintiff is aware that the Private Securities Litigation Reform
28 || Act (“PSLRA”) permits a lead plaintiff to apply for reimbursement of its
DECLARATION OF BRIAN MCDONOUGH : 6
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reasonable costs and expenses (including lost wages) directly relating to the
representation of the class. I have determined the unreimbursed costs and expenses
that the Office of the Attorney General (“AG”) has incurred, including the time
expended by personnel of the AG. Those unreimbursed costs and expenses
through March 30, 2013 total $31,657.53, as detailed in the chart below:
Name Office Hours Charge
Carol G. Jacobson AG 41.3 $ 6,535.85
(Assistant Attorney General)
Brian McDonough AG 29.9 $4,957.26
(Assistant Attorney General)
Samuel S. Cornish AG 171.2 $20,164.42
(Deputy Attorney General)
Total 242.4 $31,657.53

20. Lead Plaintiff reserves the right to submit a further request for
reimbursement for costs and expenses incurred by the New J ersey Department of
Treasury and/or its Division of Investment.

I declare, under penalty of perjury, that the foregoing facts are true and
correct. -

Executed at Newark, New Jersey, this chay of April, 2013.

O L tlpniln,

BRIANF.MCDONOUGH T~

DECLARATION OF BRIAN MCDONOUGH 7

CASENO. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 1 of 34 Page ID
#:9362



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 2 of 34 Page ID
#:9363



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 3 of 34 Page ID
#:9364



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 4 of 34 Page ID
#:9365



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 5 of 34 Page ID
#:9366



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 6 of 34 Page ID
#:9367



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 7 of 34 Page ID
#:9368



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 8 of 34 Page ID
#:9369



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 9 of 34 Page ID
#:9370



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 10 of 34 Page ID
#:9371



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 11 of 34 Page ID
#:9372



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 12 of 34 Page ID
#:9373



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 13 of 34 Page ID
#:9374



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 14 of 34 Page ID
#:9375



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 15 of 34 Page ID
#:9376



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 16 of 34 Page ID
#:9377



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 17 of 34 Page ID
#:9378



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 18 of 34 Page ID
#:9379



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 19 of 34 Page ID
#:9380



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 20 of 34 Page ID
#:9381



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 21 of 34 Page ID
#:9382



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 22 of 34 Page ID
#:9383



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 23 of 34 Page ID
#:9384



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 24 of 34 Page ID
#:9385



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 25 of 34 Page ID
#:9386



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 26 of 34 Page ID
#:9387



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 27 of 34 Page ID
#:9388



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 28 of 34 Page ID
#:9389



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 29 of 34 Page ID
#:9390



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 30 of 34 Page ID
#:9391



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 31 of 34 Page ID
#:9392



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 32 of 34 Page ID
#:9393



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 33 of 34 Page ID
#:9394



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-2 Filed 04/08/13 Page 34 of 34 Page ID
#:9395



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-3 Filed 04/08/13 Page 1 of 2 Page ID
#:9396

EXHIBIT 3



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-3 Filed 04/08/13 Page 2 of 2 Page ID
#:9397

Summary Table of Lodestars and Expenses

Firm Hours Fees Expenses
Labaton Sucharow LLP 36,409.5 $18,396,408.50 $1,594,630.56
Lite DePalma Greenberg, LLC 3,967.8 $2,254,357.50 $323,865.65
Lim, Ruger & Kim LLP 279.3 $87,080.00 $2,460.92
Berman DeValerio 57.5 $24,826.00 $393.32
Bienert, Miller & Katzman 140.3 $96,494.50 $1,929.28
Green & Noblin, P.C. 196.1 $136,289.50 $2,615.94
TOTAL 41,050.50 $20,995,456.00 $1,925,895.67

794603 v2
[4/5/2013 15:03]
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Christopher Kim ﬁBar No. 082080)
christopher kim@limruger.com

Lisa J. anF (Bar No. 208971)
lisa.yang@limruger.com

LIM, R% ER & KIM, LLP

1055 West Seventh Street, Suite 2800
Los Angeles, California 90017-2554
Telephone: (213) 955-9500
Facsimile: (213) 955-9511

Thomas A. Dubbs (Pro Hac Vice) Allyn Z. Lite (Pro Hac Vice)

tdubbs(@labaton.com alite@litedepalma.com

James W. Johnson (Pro Hac Vice) Bruce D. Greenberg (Pro Hac Vice)
ohnson@labaton.com bgreenberg@litedepalma.com
ichard T. Joffe (Pro Hac Vice) LITE DePALMA GREENBERG, LLC

Eoffe labaton.com Two Gateway Center, 12th Floor
ABATON SUCHAROW LLP Newark, New Jersey 07102

140 Broadwa Telephone: (973) 623-3000

New York, New York 10005 Facsimile: (973) 623-0858

Telephone: (212) 907-0700
Facsimile: (212) 818-0477

Attorneys {or Lead Plaintiff, the State of New Jersey, Department of Treasury,
Division of Investment, Plaintiff International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers,
Local 103, The Norfolk County Retirement System and Lead Counsel for the Class

Thomas Bienert, Jr. Robert S. Green
tbienert@bmbkattorneys.com rsg@classcounsel.com

BIENERT, MILLER & KATZMAN GREEN & NOBLIN, P.C. .

903 Calle Amanecer, Suite 350 700 Larkspur Landing Circle, Suite 275
San Clemente, CA 92673 Larkspur, CA 94939

Telephone: (949) 369-3700 Telephone: (415) 477-6700

Facsimile: (949) 369-3701 Facsimile: (415) 477-6710

Attorneys for Plaintiff Mark Ripperda

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
SOUTHERN DIVISION
IN RE STEC, INC. SECURITIES No. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGx)

LITIGATION
DECLARATION OF THOMAS A.
, DUBBS IN SUPPORT OF CLASS
This Document Relates To: REPRESENTATIVES’ COUNSEL’S
APPLICATION FOR ATTORNEYS’
ALL ACTIONS FEES AND REIMBURSEMENT OF
LITIGATION EXPENSES

Hearing Date: May 20, 2013

Time: 1:30 p.m.

Judge: Honorable James V. Selna
Courtroom: 10C

DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES
No. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)
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THOMAS A. DUBBS, Esq., declares as follows pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §
1746:

1. I am a member of the law firm of Labaton Sucharow LLP. I submit
this declaration in support of Co-Lead Counsel’s motion for an award of attorneys’
fees and payment of litigation expenses in the above-captioned action (the
“Action”) from inception through March 25, 2013 (the “Time Period”).

2. My firm, which served as Co-Lead Counsel in the Action, was
involved in all aspects of the litigation and settlement of the Action as set forth in
detail in the Declaration of Thomas A. Dubbs in Support of Class Representatives’
Motion for Final Approval of Proposed Class Action Settlement, Plan of
Allocation, and Award of Attorneys’ Fees and Expenses, submitted herewith.

3. The schedule attached hereto as Exhibit A is a summary indicating the
amount of time spent by each attorney and professional support staff of my firm
who was involved in the prosecution of the Action, and the lodestar calculation
based on my firm’s current billing rates. For personnel who are no longer
employed by my firm, the lodestar calculation is based upon the billing rates for
such personnel in his or her final year of employment by my firm. The schedule
was prepared from contemporaneous daily time records regularly prepared and
maintained by my firm, which are available at the request of the Court. Time
expended in preparing this application for fees and payment of expenses has not
been included in this request.

4. The hourly rates for the attorneys and professional support staff in my
firm included in Exhibit A are the same as the regular rates charged for their
services in non-contingent matters and/or which have been accepted in other

securities or shareholder litigations.

DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES 2
No. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)
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5. The total number of hours expended on this litigation by my firm

during the Time Period is 36,409.5 hours. The total lodestar for my firm for those
hours is $18,396,408.50.

6. My firm’s lodestar figures are based upon the firm’s billing rates,
which rates do not include charges for expenses items. Expense items are billed
separately and such charges are not duplicated in my firm’s billing rates.

7. As detailed in Exhibit B, my firm has incurred a total of
$1,594,630.56 in unreimbursed expenses in connection with the prosecution of the
Action (this includes an estimate of the expenses that will be incurred in order to
attend the final settlement hearing). With respect to transportation expenses, all
charges for airfare were billed at economy class rates.

8. The expenses are reflected on the books and records of my firm.
These books and records are prepared from expense vouchers, check records and
other source materials and are an accurate record of the expenses incurred.

0. My firm was also responsible for maintaining a litigation fund on
behalf of Co-Lead Counsel (the “Litigation Fund”). As reflected in Exhibit C, the
Litigation Fund has received deposits totaling $938,658.55 from Co-Lead Counsel
and has incurred a total of $1,286,238.44 in unreimbursed expenses in connection
with the prosecution of the Action during the Time Period. Accordingly, there is a
negative balance of $347,579.89 in the Litigation Fund, which has been added to
my firm’s expense application (see Exhibit B hereto). The expenditures from the
Litigation Fund are separately reflected on the books and records of my firm.
These books and records are prepared from expense vouchers, check records and
other source materials and are an accurate record of the expenses incurred.

10.  With respect to the standing of my firm, attached hereto as Exhibit D
is a brief biography of my firm as well as biographies of the firm’s partners and of

counsels.

DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES 3
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I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.
Executed on April 8, 2013.
/s/ Thomas A. Dubbs
THOMAS A. DUBBS
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EXHIBIT A

IN RE STEC. INC. SECURITIES LITIGATION

LODESTAR REPORT

FIRM: LABATON SUCHAROW LLP
REPORTING PERIOD: INCEPTION THROUGH MARCH 25 2013

TOTAL
HOURS TOTAL
HOURLY TO LODESTAR

NAME STATUS RATE DATE TO DATE

Dubbs, T. P $975 895.7 $873,307.50
Johnson, J. P $875 1,887.7 | $1,651,737.50
Gottlieb, L. P $875 770.8 $674,450.00
Alex, M P $875 763.0 $667,625.00
Keller, C. P $875 7.4 $6,475.00
Stocker, M. P $775 87.8 $68.,045.00
Tountas, S. P $750 56.4 $42,300.00
Joffe, R. oC $775 3,840.7 | $2,976,542.50
Zeiss, N. oC $725 333 $24,142.50
Hoffman, T. oC $650 2,565.7 | $1,667,705.00
Einstein, J. OC $550 6.2 $3,410.00
Wierzbowski, E. A $665 2423 $161,129.50
Ellman, A. A $615 57.6 $35,424.00
Rogers, M. A $615 7.5 $4,612.50
Martin, C. A $590 133.9 $79,001.00
Sundel, S. A $500 20.6 $10,300.00
Bockwoldt, J. A $490 1,653.9 $810,411.00
Alexander, J. A $490 545.3 $267,197.00
Vasilchenko, I. A $490 10.8 $5,292.00
Chakrabarti, M. A $465 680.8 $316,572.00
Oberdorfer, K. A $440 50.3 $22,132.00
Schramm, K. A $425 1,547.6 $657,730.00
Benitez, E. STA $425 1,250.9 $531,632.50

DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES

NoO. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)
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TOTAL
HOURS TOTAL
HOURLY TO LODESTAR

NAME STATUS RATE DATE TO DATE

Nahoum, B. STA $425 923.7 $392,572.50
Fields, H. STA $410 356.2 $146,042.00
Esposito, D. STA $400 2,050.7 $820,280.00
Hamed, I. STA $400 1,263.8 $505,520.00
Lee, D. STA $390 978.8 $381,732.00
Dickin, A. STA $360 1,796.8 $646,848.00
Page, K. STA $360 1,556.8 $560,448.00
Onji, C. STA $360 543.1 $195,516.00
Dennany, N. STA $360 157.3 $56,628.00
Knight, S. STA $350 770.5 $269,675.00
Daigle, C. STA $335 2,102.6 $704,371.00
Mamorsky, J. STA $335 22.7 $7,604.50
Hughes, D. STA $325 1,289.4 $419,055.00
Ozarow, J. STA $325 1,017.2 $330,590.00
Schneider, M. STA $325 880.1 $286,032.50
Schervish, W. LA $510 38.8 $19,788.00
Ching, N. RA $405 23.5 $9,517.50
Pontrelli, J. I $485 30.3 $14,695.50
Gumney, A. I $440 149.7 $65,868.00
Polk, T. I $420 162.3 $68,166.00
Wroblewski, R. I $410 76.0 $31,160.00
Muchmore, E. I $410 56.5 $23,165.00
Cooper, S. I $375 95.8 $35,925.00
Warner, R. I $365 111.3 $40,624.50
Gottlieb, E. LC $280 83.4 $23,352.00
He, J. LC $275 125.5 $34,512.50
Zhang, K. LC $275 52.8 $14,520.00
Langadakis, A. LC $275 11.1 $3,052.50
Appenfeller, M. LC $265 10.5 $2,782.50
Bliss, J. PL $370 5.0 $1,850.00
Penrhyn, M. PL $295 1,163.2 $343,144.00
Wattenberg, S. PL $295 121.4 $35,813.00

DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES

NoO. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)
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TOTAL
HOURS TOTAL
HOURLY TO LODESTAR

NAME STATUS | RATE DATE TO DATE
Kupersmith, R. PL $295 53.8 $15,871.00
Mehringer, L. PL $295 14.0 $4,130.00
Boria, C. PL $295 11.0 $3,245.00
Benitez, N. PL $295 8.0 $2,360.00
Rogers, D. PL $295 6.3 $1,858.50
Auer, S. PL $295 6.0 $1,770.00
Lewis, G. PL $280 286.7 $80,276.00
Messier, R. PL $280 70.0 $19,600.00
Mangini, M. PL $280 38.5 $10,780.00
Chichilla, M. PL $270 738.2 $199,314.00
Chan-Lee, E. PL $270 34.0 $9,180.00
TOTAL 36,409.5 | $18,396,408.50

Partner (P)

Of Counsel (0OC)

Associate (A)

Short Term Attorney (STA)

Research Analyst (RA)

Investigator ()

Law Clerk (LC)

Paralegal (PL)

DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES

NoO. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)
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1 EXHIBIT B
2 IN RE STEC. INC. SECURITIES LITIGATION
i EXPENSE REPORT
5 || FIRM: LABATON SUCHAROW LLP
6 || REPORTING PERIOD: INCEPTION THROUGH MARCH 25, 2013
7
2 TOTAL
AMOUNT
9 DISBURSEMENT TO DATE
10 Expert Fees $184,962.93
Forensic Economics (Loss
11 Causation and Damages) $3,000.00
12 Finnerty Economic Consulting, LLC
13 (Market Efficiency, Loss Causation
and Damages) $174,537.93
14 Karpman & Associates
15 (Communications with Class) $5,000.00
Technical Advisory Services for
16 Attorneys (Expert Identification
17 Service) $2,425.00
18 Duplicating $43,584.05
Postage $280.75
19 Telephone / Fax $4,326.55
20 Messengers $477.25
21 Transportation / Meals / Lodging $151,791.47
2 Litigation Support $35,063.10
Class Notice $39,544.00
23 Filing Fees $2,249.10
24 Service Fees $12,607.30
75 Computer Research $76,223.90
%6 Federal Express $24,086.72
Contribution to Litigation Fund $637,515.06
27 Research Material $272.87
28
DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES
NO. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)
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TOTAL
AMOUNT
DISBURSEMENT TO DATE

Court Reporter Service / Transcript
Fees $1,540.62

Mediation Fees $32,525.00
Additional Litigation Fund Costs $347,579.89
TOTAL $1,594,630.56
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DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES
No. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)
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EXHIBIT C
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IN RE STEC. INC. SECURITIES LITIGATION
LITIGATION FUND REPORT

FIRM: LABATON SUCHAROW LLP

REPORTING PERIOD: INCEPTION THROUGH MARCH 25, 2013

DISBURSEMENT AMOUNT
Experts $913,513.42
Alan D. Jagolinzer
(SEC Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans) $33,000.00
Christopher S. Armstron
(SEC Rule 10b5-1 Traging Plans) $12,000.00
Finnerty Economic Consulting
Market Efficiency, Loss Causation and
amages) $667,175.92
Forensic Economics
(Loss Causation and Damages) $32,868.75
Forensis Group (Role of Securities Analysts) $17,518.75
Karpman & Associates (Communications
with Class) $1,930.00
Marks Paneth (SEC Reporting Obligations) $58,520.00
Richard H. Willis
(Role of Securities Analysts and Underwriters)] $70,500.00
Tom Baker (Plan of Allocation) $20,000.00
Cotton & Gundzik, LLP
(Counsel for Confidential Witnesses) $16,155.05
II Magazines (Expert Identification
Service) $1,600.00
Irell & Manella (Mediation Fees) $21,513.95
Legalink Inc (Merrill)  (Litigation Support -
Depositions) $82,904.23
Merrill Communications LLC
%itigation Support -
ocument Discovery) $184,088.60
Record Press Inc. (Appeal Printer) $1,046.88
Serving By Irving Inc.  (Service of Process) $957.00
Juryscope, Inc. (Jury Research) $64,459.31
GRAND TOTAL $1,286,238.44
DEPOSITS
Lite DePalma Greenberg, LLC $301,143.49
Labaton Sucharow LLP $637,515.06
TOTAL DEPOSITS $938,658.55
BALANCE IN LIT FUND -$347,579.89

DECLARATION IN SUPPORT OF APPLICATION FOR ATTORNEYS’ FEES AND REIMBURSEMENT OF EXPENSES

NoO. SACV 09-01304-JVS (MLGX)
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Labaton
Sucharow

Firm Resume

InvestorProtectionLitigation

New York 140 Broadway | New York, NY 10005 | 212-907-0700 main | 212-818-0477 fax | www.labaton.com
Delaware 300 Delaware Avenue, Suite 1225 | Wilmington, DE 19801 | 302-573-2540 main | 302-573-2529 fax
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Founded in 1963, Labaton Sucharow LLP (“Labaton Sucharow”) is an internationally
respected law firm with offices in New York, New York and Wilmington, Delaware and has
relationships throughout the United States, Europe and the world. The Firm consists of over
70 attorneys and a professional support staff that includes paralegals, sophisticated financial
analysts, e-discovery specialists, licensed private investigators, certified public accountants,
and forensic accountants with notable federal and state law enforcement experience. The
Firm prosecutes major complex litigation in the United States, and has successfully conducted
a wide array of representative actions (primarily class, mass and derivative) in the areas of:
Securities; Antitrust & Competition; Financial Products & Services; Corporate Governance &
Shareholder Rights; Mergers & Acquisitions; Derivative; REITs & Limited Partnerships;
Consumer; and Whistleblower Representation.

For nearly 50 years, Labaton Sucharow has cultivated a reputation as one of the finest
litigation boutiques in the country. The Firm's attorneys are skilled in every stage of business
litigation and have successfully taken on corporations in virtually every industry. Our work has
resulted in billions of dollars in recoveries for our clients, and in sweeping corporate reforms
protecting consumers and shareholders alike.

On behalf of some of the most prominent institutional investors around the world,
Labaton Sucharow prosecutes high-profile and high-stakes securities fraud. Our Securities
Litigation Practice has recovered billions of dollars and achieved corporate governance
reforms to ensure that the financial marketplace operates with greater transparency, fairness
and accountability.

Labaton Sucharow also brings its unparalleled securities litigation expertise to the
practice of Whistleblower Representation, exclusively representing whistleblowers that have

original information about violations of the federal securities laws. The Firm’s Whistleblower
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Representation Practice plays a critical role in exposing securities fraud and creating necessary
corporate reforms.

Labaton Sucharow’s Corporate Governance & Shareholder Rights Practice successfully
pursues derivative and other shareholder actions to advance shareholder interests. In addition
to our deep knowledge of corporate law and the securities regulations that govern corporate
conduct, our established office in Delaware where many of these matters are litigated,
uniquely positions us to protect shareholder assets and enforce fiduciary obligations.

Visit our website at www.labaton.com for more information about our dynamic Firm.

Labaton Sucharow is committed to corporate governance reform. Through its
leadership of membership organizations which seek to advance the interests of shareholders
and consumers, Labaton Sucharow seeks to strengthen corporate governance and support
legislative reforms which improve and preserve shareholder and consumer rights.

Through the aegis of the National Association of Shareholder and Consumer Attorneys
(NASCAT), a membership organization of approximately 100 law firms that practice class
action and complex civil litigation, the Firm continues to advocate against those who would
legislatively seek to weaken shareholders’ rights, including their right to obtain compensation
through the legal system.

From 2009-2011 Partner Ira A. Schochet served as President of NASCAT, following in
the footsteps of Chairman Lawrence A. Sucharow who held the position from 2003-2005.

Labaton Sucharow is also a patron of the John L. Weinberg Center for Corporate
Governance of the University of Delaware (“The Center”) and was instrumental in the task
force of the Association of the Bar of the City of New York, which drafted recommendations

on the roles of law firms and lawyers’ in preventing corporate fraud through improved
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governance. One of Labaton Sucharow’s partners, Edward Labaton, is a member of the
Advisory Committee of The Center.

In early 2011, Partner Michael W. Stocker spoke before the Securities and Exchange
Commission’s Trading and Markets Division regarding liability for credit rating agencies under
the Dodd-Frank Act. His articles on corporate governance issues have been published in a
number of national trade publications.

On behalf of our institutional and individual investor clients, Labaton Sucharow has
achieved some of the largest precedent-setting settlements since the enactment of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (“PSLRA"), and has helped avert future instances of
securities fraud by negotiating substantial corporate governance reforms as conditions of
many of its largest settlements.

Some of the successful cases in which Labaton Sucharow has been able to affect
significant corporate governance changes include:

In re Waste Management, Inc. Securities Litigation,
Civ. No. H-99-2183 (S.D. Tex.)

In the settlement of the In re Waste Management, Inc. Securities Litigation case, we
earned critical corporate governance improvements resulting in:

e A stronger and more independent audit committee;

* A board structure with greater accountability; and

¢ Protection for whistleblowers.

In re Bristol-Myers Squibb Securities Litigation,
Civ. No. CV-98-W-1407-S (N.D. Ala.)

In Bristol-Myers Squibb, we won unprecedented corporate governance concessions,
including:
e Required public disclosure of the design of all clinical drug trials; and

e Required public disclosure on the company’s website of the results of all clinical
studies on drugs marketed in any country throughout the world.
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Cohen v. Gray, et al.,
Case No. 03 CH 15039 (C.C. IIl.)

In this case against the Boeing aircraft company, we achieved a landmark settlement
establishing unique corporate governance standards relating to ethics compliance
including:

o At least 75 percent of Boeing's Board must be independent under NYSE criteria;

Board members will receive annual corporate governance training;

Direct Board supervision of an improved ethics and compliance program;

Improved Audit Committee oversight of ethics and compliance; and

A $29 million budget dedicated to the implementation and support of these
governance reforms.

In re Vesta Insurance Group Securities Litigation,
Civ. No. CV-98-W-1407-S (N.D. Ala.)

In settling Vesta, the company adopted provisions that created:

e A Board with a majority of independent members;

e Increased independence of members of the company’s audit, nominating and
compensation committees;

¢ Increased expertise in corporate governance on these committees; and
e A more effective audit committee.

In re Orbital Sciences Corporation Securities Litigation,
Civ. No. 99-197-A (E.D. Va.)

In this case against Orbital Sciences Corporation, Labaton Sucharow was able to:

» Negotiate the implementation of measures concerning the company'’s quarterly
review of its financial results;

e The composition, role and responsibilities of its Audit and Finance committee; and

e The adoption of a Board resolution providing guidelines regarding senior
executives’ exercise and sale of vested stock options.

In re Take-Two Interactive Securities Litigation,
Civ. No. 06-CV-803-RJS (S.D.N.Y.)

In settling Take-Two Interactive, we achieved significant corporate governance reforms
which required the company to:

e Adopt a policy, commonly referred to as “clawback” provision, providing for the
recovery of bonus or incentive compensation paid to senior executives in the event
that such compensation was awarded based on financial results later determined to
have been erroneously reported as a result of fraud or other knowing misconduct
by the executive;

e Adopt a policy requiring that its Board of Directors submit any stockholder rights
plan (also commonly known as ‘poison pill’) that is greater than 12 months in
duration to a vote of stockholders; and
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e Adopt a bylaw providing that no business may be properly brought before an
annual meeting of stockholders by a person other than a stockholder unless such
matter has been included in the proxy solicitation materials issued by the company.

Few securities class action cases go to trial. But when it is in the best interests of its
clients and the class, Labaton Sucharow repeatedly has demonstrated its willingness and
ability to try these complex securities cases before a jury. More than 95% of the Firm’s
partners have trial experience.

Labaton Sucharow’s recognized willingness and ability to bring cases to trial
significantly increases the ultimate settlement value for shareholders.

In In re Real Estate Associates Limited Partnership Litigation, when defendants were
unwilling to settle for an amount Labaton Sucharow and its clients viewed as fair, we tried the
case with co-counsel for six weeks and obtained a landmark $184 million jury verdict in
November 2002. The jury supported plaintiffs’ position that defendants knowingly violated
the federal securities laws, and that the general partner had breached his fiduciary duties to
plaintiffs. The $184 million award was one of the largest jury verdicts returned in any PSLRA
action and one in which the plaintiff class, consisting of 18,000 investors, recovered 100% of

their damages.

Labaton Sucharow's institutional investor clients are regularly appointed by federal
courts to serve as lead plaintiffs in prominent securities litigations brought under the PSLRA.
Dozens of state, city and country public pension funds and union funds have selected Labaton

Sucharow to represent them in federal securities class actions and advise them as securities
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litigation/investigation counsel. Listed below are several of our current notable lead and co-

lead counsel appointments:

In re Computer Sciences Corporation Securities Litigation,
No. 11-cv-610 (E.D. Va.)
Representing Ontario Teachers’ Pension Plan Board as lead plaintiff

In re MF Global Holdings Limited Securities Litigation,
No. 11-cv-7866 (S.D.N.Y.)
Representing the Province of Alberta as co-lead plaintiff

Richard Gammel v. Hewlett-Packard Company, et al.,
No. 8:11-cv-01404-AG-RNB (C.D.Cal.)
Representing Arkansas Teacher Retirement System and the Labourers’ Pension Fund of
Central and Eastern Canada as co-lead plaintiff

In re Massey Energy Co. Securities Litigation,
No. 5:10-cv-00689 (S.D. W. Va.)
Representing Commonwealth of Massachusetts Pension Reserves Investment Trust
(“Massachusetts PRIT"”) as lead plaintiff

In re Schering Plough/Enhance Securities Litigation,
No. 08-cv-00397-DMC-JAD (D.N.J.)
Representing the Pension Reserves Investment Management Board (Commonwealth
of Massachusetts) as co-lead plaintiff

Listed below are several of our current notable lead and co-lead counsel appointments

resulting from the credit crisis:

In re Regions Morgan Keegan Closed-End Fund Litigation,
No. 07-CV-02830 (W.D. Tenn)
Representing Lion Fund, L.P., Dr. J. Samir Sulieman, and Larry Lattimore as lead plaintiffs

In re Goldman Sachs Group Inc. Securities Litigation,
No. 1:10-cv-03461 (S.D.N.Y.)
Representing the Arkansas Teacher Retirement System as co-lead plaintiff

In re 2008 Fannie Mae Securities Litigation,
No. 08-CV-1859 (E.D.Mo.)
Representing Boston Retirement Board as co-lead plaintiff

Stratte-McClure v. Morgan Stanley et al.,
No. 09-cv-2017 (S.D.N.Y.)
Representing State Boston Retirement System as lead plaintiff



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-4 Filed 04/08/13 Page 25 of 85 Page ID
#:9422

Labaton Sucharow has achieved notable successes in major securities litigations on

behalf of its clients and certified investor classes.

Docket Information Results of the Case

In re Bear Stearns Companies, Inc. Securities
Litigation, No. 08-md-1963 (S.D.N.Y.)

In re American International Group Inc. Securities
Litigation, No. 04-cv-8141 (S.D.N.Y.)

In re HealthSouth Securities Litigation,
No. 03-cv-1500 (N.D. Ala.)

In re Waste Management, Inc. Securities Litigation,
No. H-99-2183 (S.D. Tex.)

In re Countrywide Financial Corp. Securities
Litigation, No. 07-cv-5295 (C.D. Cal.)

In re General Motors Corp. Securities & Derivative
Litigation, No. 06-md-1749 (E.D. Mich.)

In re El Paso Corporation Securities Litigation,
No. 02-cv-2717 (S.D. Tex.)

In re PaineWebber Limited Partnerships Litigation,
No. 94-cv-832/7 (S.D.N.Y.)

Eastwood Enterprises LLC v. Farha (WellCare
Securities Litigation), No. 07-cv-1940 (M.D. Fla.)

In re Bristol-Myers Squibb Securities Litigation,
No. 00-cv-1990 (D.N.J.)

In re Broadcom Corp. Securities Litigation, No. 06-
cv-5036 (C.D. Cal.)

In re Satyam Computer Services, Ltd. Securities
Litigation, No. 09-md- 2027 (S.D.N.Y.)

In re Mercury Interactive Securities Litigation,
No. 05-cv- 3395 (N.D. Cal.)

In re Prudential Securities Inc. Limited Partnership
Litigation, No. M-21-67 (S.D.N.Y.)

$275 million settlement with Bear Stearns plus a
$19.9 million settlement with Deloitte & Touche
LLP, Bear Stearns’ outside auditors

Negotiated settlements totaling more than
$1 billion

Settlement valued at $671 million

Settled for $457 million

Settled for $624 million — the largest credit-crisis-
related settlement at the time

Settled for $303 million

Settled for $285 million

Settled for $200 million

Settled for $200 million

Settled for $185 million and significant corporate
governance reforms

Settled for $160.5 million — at the time, the second
largest up-front cash settlement ever recovered
from a company accused of options backdating;
plus a $13 million settlement with the auditor,
Ernst & Young

Settled for $125 million with Satyam and
$25.5 million with PwC Entities (partial settlements,
case is ongoing)

Settled for $117.5 million — the largest options
backdating settlement at the time

Negotiated $110 million partial settlement
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Docket Information Results of the Case

In re Oppenheimer Champion Fund Securities
Fraud Class Actions, No. 09-cv-386 (D. Colo.) and
In re Core Bond Fund, No. 09-cv-1186 (D. Colo.)

In re Vesta Insurance Group, Inc. Securities
Litigation, No. 98-cv-1407 (N.D. Ala.)

In re St. Paul Travelers Securities Litigation,
No. 04-CV-3801 (D. Minn.)

In re St. Paul Travelers Securities Litigation Il
No. 04-cv-4697 (D. Minn.)

In re Regions Morgan Keegan Closed-End Fund
Litigation

In re Monster Worldwide, Inc. Securities Litigation,
No. 07-cv-2237 (S.D.N.Y.)

Hughes v. Huron Consulting Group, Inc.,
No. 09-cv-4734 (N.D. IIl.)

Abrams v. Van Kampen Funds, Inc.,
No. 01-cv-7538 (N.D. Ill.)

In re Novagold Resources Inc. Securities Litigation,
No. 08-cv-7041 (S.D.N.Y.)

Police & Fire Ret. System of Detroit v. SafeNet,
Inc., No. 06-cv-5797 (S.D.N.Y.)

Desert Orchid Partners, L.L.C. v. Transactions
Systems Architects, Inc., No. 02-cv-533 (D. Neb.)

In re Orbital Sciences Corp. Securities Litigation,
No. 99-cv-197 (E.D. Va.)

In re Take Two Interactive Securities Litigation,
No. 06-cv-803 (S.D.N.Y.)

In re International Business Machines Corp.
Securities Litigation, No. 05-cv-6279 (S.D.N.Y.)

In re Just for Feet Noteholder Litigation,
No. 00-cv-1404 (N.D. Ala.)

In re American Tower Corporation Securities
Litigation, No. 06-cv-10933 (D. Mass.)

In re CapRock Communications Corp. Securities
Litigation, No. 00-CV-1613 (N.D. Tex.)

Settled for $100 million

Settled for $80 million in total and significant
corporate governance reforms

Settled for $67.5 million

Settled for $77 million

Settled for $62 million

Settled for $47.5 million — required Monster's
founder and former Chief Executive Officer
Andrew McKelvey to personally pay $550,000
toward the settlement

Settled for $38 million

Settled for $31.5 million

Settled for $22 million

Settled for $25 million

Settled for $24.5 million

Settled for $23.5 million and significant corporate
governance reforms

Settled for $20.1 million and significant corporate
governance reforms

Settled for $20 million

Settled for $17.75 million

Settled for $14 million

Settled for $11 million
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Docket Information Results of the Case
In re SupportSoft, Inc. Securities Litigation, .
No. 04-cv-5222 (N.D. Cal) Settled for $10.7 million
In re InterMune Securities Litigation, Settled for $10.4 million

No. 03-cv-2954 (N.D. Cal.)

In re HCC Insurance Holdings, Inc. Securities

Litigation, No. 07-cv-801 (S.D. Tex.) itz frer G0 mil fom

In re Regions Morgan Keegan Closed-End Fund Litigation,
No. 07-CV-02830 (W.D. Tenn)

Labaton Sucharow served as sole lead counsel, representing the Lion Fund, L.P., Dr. J.
Sulieman and Larry Lattimore, in this case against Regions Morgan Keegan (“RMK"),
alleging that they fraudulently overstated the values of portfolio securities and
reported false Net Asset Values (“NAVs"). RMK also falsely touted their professional
portfolio management by “one of America’s leading high-yield fund managers” when,
in fact, portfolio securities frequently were purchased blindly without the exercise of
basic due diligence. On April 13, 2011, defendants moved to dismiss. On March 30,
2012, the court issued an Opinion denying the motions to dismiss nearly in their
entirety. The court upheld the Section 10(b) claims as against the Funds and defendant
James R. Kelsoe, the Funds’ Senior Portfolio Manager, and dismissed those claims as
against three other individual defendants. The court upheld plaintiffs’ Securities Act
claims in their entirety. In April 2012 Labaton Sucharow achieved a $62 million
settlement.

In re HealthSouth Securities Litigation,
Civ. No CV-03-BE-1500-S (N.D. Ala.)

Labaton Sucharow served as co-lead counsel in a case stemming from the largest fraud
ever perpetrated in the healthcare industry. In early 2006, lead plaintiffs negotiated a
settlement of $445 million with defendant HealthSouth. This partial settlement,
comprised of cash and HealthSouth securities to be distributed to the class, is one of
the largest in history. On June 12, 2009, the Court also granted final approval to a
$109 million settlement with defendant Ernst & Young LLP (“E&Y") which at the time
was approximately the eighth largest securities fraud class action settlement with an
auditor. In addition, on July 26, 2010, the Court granted final approval to a

$117 million partial settlement with the remaining principal defendants in the case,
UBS AG, UBS Warburg LLC, Howard Capek, Benjamin Lorello and William McGahan
(the “UBS Defendants”). The total value of the settlements for HealthSouth
stockholders and HealthSouth bondholders, who were represented by separate
counsel, is $804.5 million.

In re NYSE Euronext Shareholders Litigation,
Consolidated C.A., 6220-VCS (Del. Ch. 2011)

Labaton Sucharow played a leadership role in landmark shareholder litigation arising
from the acquisition of the New York Stock Exchange—a deal that had implications not
only for NYSE shareholders, but for global financial markets. Following aggressive
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litigation spanning both sides of the Atlantic, the Firm secured a proposed settlement
which would have provided a special dividend of nearly a billion dollars to NYSE
shareholders if the transaction was completed. While European regulators ultimately
rejected the merger in 2012 citing anticompetitive concerns, the Firm’s work in the
litigation cemented its reputation as a leader in the field.

In re American International Group, Inc. Securities Litigation,
No. 04 Civ. 8141 (JES) (AJP) (S.D.N.Y.)

In one of the most complex and challenging securities cases in history, Labaton
Sucharow secured a landmark $725 million settlement with American International
Group (“AlG") regarding allegations of bid rigging and accounting fraud. This
followed our $97.5 million settlement with AlG’s auditors and an additional $115
million settlement with former AIG officers and related defendants which is still
pending before the Court. Further, a proposed $72 million settlement with General
Reinsurance Corporation, which was alleged to have been involved in one of the
accounting frauds with AlG, is pending before the Second Circuit. In total, the four
AIG settlements would provide a recovery of more than $1 billion for class members.

In re Countrywide Financial Corp. Securities Litigation,
No. CV 07-cv-05295-MRP-MAN (C.D. Cal.)

Labaton Sucharow served as sole lead counsel on behalf of the New York State
Common Retirement Fund and the five New York City public pension funds. Plaintiffs
alleged that defendants violated securities laws by making false and misleading
statements concerning Countrywide’s business as an issuer of residential mortgages,
the creditworthiness of borrowers, underwriting and loan origination practices, loan
loss and other accounting provisions, and misrepresenting high-risk low-documentation
loans as being “prime.” While the price of Countrywide stock was artificially inflated
by defendants’ false representations, insiders received millions of dollars from
Countrywide stock sales. On February 25, 2011, the Court granted final approval to a
settlement of $624 million, which at the time was the 14th largest securities class action
settlement in the history of the PSLRA.

In re Waste Management, Inc. Securities Litigation,
Civ. No. H-99-2183 (S.D. Tex.)

In 2002, Judge Melinda Harmon approved an extraordinary settlement that provided
for recovery of $457 million in cash, plus an array of far reaching corporate governance
measures. At that time, this settlement was the largest common fund settlement of a
securities action achieved in any court within the Fifth Circuit and the third-largest
achieved in any federal court in the nation. Judge Harmon noted, among other things,
that Labaton Sucharow “obtained an outstanding result by virtue of the quality of the
work and vigorous representation of the class.”

In re General Motors Corp. Securities Litigation,
No. 06-1749, (E.D. Mich.)

Labaton Sucharow was co-lead counsel for Dekalnvestment GmbH. The complaint
alleged that, over a period of six years, General Motors (“GM"), its officers and its
outside auditor overstated GM's income by billions of dollars, and GM’s operating cash
flows by tens of billions of dollars, through a series of accounting manipulations that
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included, among other things, prematurely recognizing income from supplier rebates,
misclassifying cash flow as operating rather than investing cash flow, and omitting to
disclose the nature and amount of GM'’s guarantee of pension benefits owing to
workers at GM's former parts division, now an independent corporation in Chapter 11
bankruptcy protection, Delphi Corporation. On July 21, 2008, a settlement was
reached whereby GM made a cash payment of $277 million and defendant Deloitte &
Touche LLP, which served as GM’s outside auditor during the period covered by the
action, agreed to contribute an additional $26 million in cash.

In re El Paso Corporation Securities Litigation,
Civ. No. H-02-2717 (S.D. Tex.)

Labaton Sucharow secured a $285 million class action settlement against the El Paso
Corporation. The case involved a securities fraud stemming from the Company'’s
inflated earnings statements, which cost shareholders hundreds of millions of dollars
during a four-year span. The settlement was approved by the Court on March 6, 2007.

In re PaineWebber Limited Partnerships Litigation,
No. 94 Civ. 832/7 (SHS) (S.D.N.Y.)

Judge Sidney H. Stein approved a settlement valued at $200 million and found “that
class counsel’s representation of the class has been of high caliber in conferences, in
oral arguments and in work product.”

Eastwood Enterprises, LLC v. Farha et al. (WellCare Securities Litigation),
No. 8:07-cv-1940-T-33EAJ (M.D. Fla.)

On behalf of The New Mexico State Investment Council and the Public Employees
Retirement Association of New Mexico, co-lead counsel for the class, Labaton
Sucharow, negotiated a $200 million settlement over allegations that WellCare Health
Plans, Inc., a Florida-based managed healthcare service provider, disguised its
profitability by overcharging state Medicaid programs. Under the terms of the
settlement, which was approved by the Court on May 4, 2011, WellCare agreed to pay
an additional $25 million in cash if, at any time in the next three years, WellCare is
acquired or otherwise experiences a change in control at a share price of $30 or more
after adjustments for dilution or stock splits.

In re Bristol-Myers Squibb Securities Litigation,
Civ. No. 00-1990 (D.N.J.)

After prosecuting securities fraud claims against Bristol-Myers Squibb (“BMS”) for
more than five years, Labaton Sucharow reached an agreement to settle the claims for
$185 million and significant corporate governance reforms. This settlement is the
second largest recovery against a pharmaceutical company, and it is the largest
recovery ever obtained against a pharmaceutical company in a securities fraud case
involving the development of a new drug. Moreover, the settlement is the largest ever
obtained against a pharmaceutical company in a securities fraud case that did not
involve a restatement of financial results.

11 -



Case 8:09-cv-01304-JVS-MLG Document 386-4 Filed 04/08/13 Page 30 of 85 Page ID
#:9427

In re Broadcom Corp. Securities Litigation,
No. 06-cv-05036-R-CW (C.D. Cal.)

Labaton Sucharow served as lead counsel on behalf of lead plaintiff New Mexico State
Investment Council in a case stemming from Broadcom Corp.’s $2.2 billion restatement
of its historic financial statements for 1998-2005. In August 2010 the Court granted
final approval of a $160.5 million settlement with Broadcom and two individual
defendants to resolve this matter, the second-largest upfront cash settlement ever
recovered from a company accused of options backdating. On April 14, 2011, the
Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit issued an opinion in New Mexico State
Investment Council v. Ernst & Young LLP—a matter related to Broadcom. In particular,
the Ninth Circuit’s opinion held that the Complaint contains three separate sets of
allegations that adequately allege Ernst & Young's (“E&Y") scienter, and that there is
“no doubt” that lead plaintiff carried its burden in alleging E&Y acted with actual
knowledge or reckless disregard that